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Executive Summary

The Academy for Urban School Leadership (AUSL) is seeking to become a Lead Partner for
Turnaround school (i.e., “Restart model”) school interventions, both in Chicago and elsewhere in
the Illinois Partnership Zone. AUSL’s model for intervention involves a whole-school
transformation for schools in which performance is significantly and persistently unacceptably
poor, based on criteria established by the district. The school turnaround process is a dramatic
reform intervention to comprehensively reset failing schools.

AUSL, founded in 2001 and based in Chicago, is an established and nationally recognized
Educational Management Organization which has implemented and refined the Turnaround
school model for intervening in the most poorly performing Chicago Public Schools. AUSL’s
mission is to improve student achievement in Chicago’s high-poverty, chronically failing schools
through its disciplined transformation process, built on a foundation of specially trained AUSL
teachers.

AUSL currently manages 14 elementary and secondary schools in Chicago, serving more than
7,500 students. Eight of these schools are “Turnaround schools” in which AUSL and CPS have
partnered to intervene, using the model that AUSL describes in this proposal. AUSL also runs a
Teacher residency training program to provide a pipeline of talent for Turnaround schools.
AUSL believes that its models can be implemented successfully outside Chicago, and would
welcome the opportunity to participate in Turnaround school interventions elsewhere in Illinois.

In the Turnaround school model, the district closes the school at the end of a school year and re-
opens it after the summer under AUSL’s management. Admission is open to any former student
who wishes to attend, as well as all students in the school’s geographic boundary area. AUSL
replaces the principal with an individual selected by and accountable to AUSL as well as the
district, and also brings in a cohort of specially trained new teachers from AUSL’s Teacher
residency program. AUSL evaluates all incumbent teachers and staff before re-hiring any who
are interested in remaining. We expect that more than half of the school’s incumbent teachers and
staff would be replaced.

Service area/capacity: AUSL proposes to be a Lead Partner with the Chicago district to
continue to transform schools in Chicago. AUSL has already proposed, and received CPS Board
approval for, a contract to manage six additional Turnaround schools in Chicago to re-open in
2010 (four elementary plus two high schools). Our proposal to CPS for 2010 Turnaround schools
dated July 2009 is attached to this proposal.

We also propose to export our model to become a Lead Partner with other Illinois districts for
elementary Turnaround schools to open in fall 2011. Toward this end, we are open to partnership
discussions with any interested district in the state except those located in Regions V and VI, due
to the challenge of their distance from AUSL’s central office in Chicago.

Record of effectiveness. Since 2002 AUSL has launched eight Turnaround elementary schools
plus one Turnaround high school in Chicago. AUSL is still managing all of these schools, and all
but one have made steady year-to-year gains in student achievement (see appendix). For AUSL,
the performance metric that matters most is student achievement, and the goal is to narrow and
ultimately erase the “achievement gap” between a Turnaround school’s students and students in
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well-performing schools. AUSL’s expectations for Turnaround elementary school performance
gains are:
e Turnaround Intervention (years 1 to 3): Narrow pre-turnaround achievement gap by one-
third (e.g., reduce a 60 percentage-point gap to a 40-point gap)
e Continued Improvement (years 3 to 5): Narrow remaining achievement gap by half (e.g.,
improve by 20 points more)
e Sustain change (ongoing): Students achieve greater than 1 year of growth per school
year, until the achievement gap is closed.

The table below summarizes the performance gains of AUSL’s elementary Turnaround schools in
Chicago. Dodge Renaissance Academy has reached Phase 3; Sherman and Harvard are close to
Phase 2; and AUSL’s Turnaround schools started since 2008-09 are still in Phase 1. In 2009-10,
AUSL has launched three additional elementary Turnaround schools (not shown), with the first
test results since AUSL’s management to come in mid-2010.

Composite ISAT*

M Prior to AUSL m 2009

75.2

Dodge Sherman Harvard Howe Morton

*Percentage of students meeting or exceeding the state standard. AUSL has been managing the
schools above since: Dodge 2003, Sherman 2006, Harvard 2007, Howe 2008, Morton 2008.

Fiscal and Management Capacity: AUSL has diversified sources of funding, including
individual and foundation donors, government grants, and management fees from the Chicago
Public Schools. AUSL’s senior management team includes highly experienced urban educators,
including former principals of highly successful schools in high-poverty neighborhoods. AUSL’s
five-year plan calls for growth in its network from 14 schools in 2009-10 to 38 schools in 2013-
14,

3
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Service Area and Capacity Limitations

Service Area. AUSL seeks to continue to serve the City of Chicago district (Region I-A), and to
expand our scope to serve up to two elementary schools in one additional district in any of the
following regions:

West Cook County (Region I-B-B)

South Cook County (Region I-B-C)

North Cook County (Region I-B-D)

Northwest Illinois (Region 1)

West Central Illinois (Region 111)

East Central Illinois (Region V)

Capacity Limitations. An essential element of AUSL’s elementary Turnaround school model is
that 50 percent or more of the core classroom teachers employed to serve in new Turnaround
schools are graduates of AUSL’s teacher residency training program. Because of this, there is a
long lead time for implementing the Turnaround school model; for example, the teachers who
will serve in Chicago Turnaround schools that we will launch in Fall 2010 were recruited in
spring 2009 and are currently in our training program during the 2009-10 school year. If we
started tomorrow to recruit “state residents” to train for later placement in a district outside
Chicago, these teachers would be in training during the 2010-11 school year and would not be
ready for employment in a Turnaround school until summer 2011.

Therefore, AUSL has the capacity to apply as a Lead Partner to implement the Turnaround school
model as follows:

Within the City of Chicago: four Turnaround (Restart model) elementary schools, plus two
Turnaround high schools, to launch in Fall 2010.

PLUS
Outside the City of Chicago: Up to two Turnaround elementary school(s) to restart in Fall 2011.

If a Lead Partner or school district outside the City of Chicago is interested in an intervention for
school year 2010-11 rather than for 2011-12, or to plan for additional turnaround schools for 2012
and beyond, see AUSL’s Supporting Partner application for how AUSL would be able to support
and assist by making its knowledge and experience with Turnaround school management
available to others.

Priority for services. If there is more demand than supply for AUSL’s Lead Partner Turnaround
management services outside the City of Chicago, the priority for delivering our services will be
determined based on these criteria:

e School(s) must be significantly and persistently underperforming relative to the
expectations of the district and the state.

e District must be willing to offer autonomy for AUSL to implement substantial changes in
people and programs, including replacing the principal and half or more of the school
staff.
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o District must arrange for financing for the turnaround intervention, including fees to
AUSL as well commitments to make other one-time and ongoing district expenditures
through the intervention period.

o District’s proximity to the Chicago metro area, which will facilitate recruitment and
placement of new teachers who will be trained in AUSL’s Chicago Training Academies,
and make it easier for AUSL’s central office staff to simultaneously support schools both
in and outside Chicago.

o Degree to which the district is urban or suburban (preferred) vs. rural (not as good a fit
for AUSL’s model).
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Work Plan

6

Needs assessment - Describe how you will analyze a school’s current programs.

AUSL Turnaround school model. An AUSL-managed school is not a charter school, but a
district school with autonomy for AUSL as the contract manager on staff hiring decisions and on
curricular and budgetary policies. School-based employees are union members (if there is a
union in the district). AUSL Turnaround schools continue to use district services for many
operational supports (e.g., facilities project management, transportation, food service).

AUSL’s model for school improvement involves replacing programs and many employees in a
failing school with new leadership, people, and programs. AUSL will visit the school, review
data, and analyze school programs to assess their effectiveness and to determine which should be
retained or replaced. AUSL would replace a school’s principal, and would require the autonomy
to observe, evaluate, and potentially replace any teachers or staff applying to continue. AUSL
would expect to release half or more of the school’s pre-turnaround teachers and staff.

Planning and implementation timelines. AUSL submitted its proposal to Chicago Public
Schools in July 2009 for additional Turnaround schools to open in 2010, and AUSL was
authorized at the October 28, 2009 Chicago Board of Education meeting to be the manager of
four elementary plus two high school Turnaround schools. The specific schools are to be
announced in early 2010. Key milestones for AUSL’s timeline for Chicago Turnaround schools
opening in fall 2010 are:

October 2009 Principal recruitment begins

January 2010 Principals hired to begin full-time incubation work

January 2010 District announcement recommending specific schools for turnaround,
followed by public hearings

February 2010 Final district approval of schools and of AUSL as operator

March 2010 Begin advertising and screening for new teachers and staff; hire Assistant
principal; develop plan for facility upgrades

April-May 2010 Community and parent meetings to introduce AUSL and principal, and to
listen to community and parent desires for their school

July 2010 Summer Professional Development (6 weeks) begins for teachers and
staff

August 2010 Facilities work completed

Late August Community outreach: open house picnic, teacher and staff calls on
parents at their homes

September 2010 School re-opens with upgraded facilities, new staff

For a partnership between AUSL and one or more districts outside Chicago, the timeline would
be moved back by one year with a September 2011 date for school to re-open under AUSL
management. The reason for this is that AUSL-trained teachers are a critical ingredient for an
AUSL Turnaround school, and the teachers who would serve in a district outside Chicago need to
be recruited in spring 2010, trained in 2010-11, and not available for placement until summer
2011.
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The timeline for an elementary Turnaround school partnership between AUSL and a new district
partner outside Chicago is below.

December 2009 AUSL is approved as Lead Partner and engaged by district

December 2009- District leaders visit to observe AUSL Turnaround schools in Chicago,

January 2010 meet key AUSL staff, and begin joint planning

January 2010 AUSL begins recruiting State Residents to train during 2010-11 for
placement as teachers in fall 2011

January 2010 Joint planning between AUSL and senior district leaders begins, to
develop the implementation timeline and to work on gaining key
agreements needed for autonomy, e.g., collective bargaining agreement
waivers

May 2010 District confirms its final approval of needed autonomies and of AUSL as
an operator to manage school(s) as of fall 2011, including confirmation of
funding for state residents beginning in June 2010

June 2010 State residents begin their residency training in Chicago

Summer 2010 Principal recruitment begins; AUSL hires District Officer and continues
planning with district staff

January 2011 District announcement recommending specific schools for turnaround,
followed by public hearings

January 2011 Principal(s) hired and begin full-time incubation work with District
Officer and AUSL team

February 2011 Final district approval of schools and of AUSL as operator

March 2011 District Officer, new principal, and AUSL staff begin evaluations of
incumbent teachers and staff to determine which employees will be
renewed

March 2011 Begin advertising and screening for new teachers and staff; AP(s)hired:;

develop plan for facility upgrades

April-May 2010

Community and parent meetings to introduce AUSL and principal, and to
listen to community and parent desires for their school

July 2011 Summer Professional Development (6 weeks) begins for teachers and
staff

August 2011 Facilities work completed

Late August 2011 Community outreach: open house picnic; teachers visit families at their
homes

September 2011 School re-opens with upgraded facilities, new principal and many new
staff (including state residents), and new AUSL programs

September 2012 Summer Professional Development (2 weeks) begins for teachers and

staff

Community Involvement and Engagement - Describe how you will involve parents and

community members.

AUSL’s community engagement experience. AUSL has accumulated experience engaging
with parents and the local community through its management of Chicago public schools located
in various communities in the south and west sides of Chicago. AUSL manages these elementary
Turnaround schools, listed by the year AUSL took over management and indicating the school’s

neighborhood:




Academy for Urban School Leadership
Illinois Partnership Zone Lead Partner

2006: Sherman School of Excellence (Englewood)

2007: Harvard School of Excellence (Auburn-Gresham)

2008: Howe School of Excellence (Austin), Morton School of Excellence (East Garfield Park),
and Orr Academy High School (Humboldt Park)

2009: Dulles School of Excellence (Greater Grand Crossing) Bethune School of Excellence
(East Garfield Park), and Johnson School of Excellence (North Lawndale)

In all of our experiences, initial objections by parents and community members to the turnaround
of their school did not persist long after the new school opened. Parents from each of these
communities have volunteered to speak in public about their appreciation of what the new
Turnaround school has meant for them and for their children, and these testimonials have been
helpful in forums with parents of prospective new Turnaround schools. In the course of engaging
the community in a new district, AUSL would expect to bring some of these voices from Chicago
to key share their experiences with non-Chicago community audiences, if the district thinks this
would be helpful.

Roles and responsibilities for community engagement. A school’s principal has a key
leadership role to play in engaging the community, and AUSL puts the principal of new
Turnaround schools in front of community and parent audiences as soon as the school’s
turnaround is approved. AUSL also supports its newly designated principals by providing an
AUSL staff member who can introduce and coordinate the principal’s interactions with the
community. In Chicago, this is AUSL’s Community Engagement Coordinator; in a new district,
it would be AUSL ’s District Officer. This person is responsible for identifying and building
relationships with individuals in the community who can influence the community’s view of
AUSL and school leadership, and/or who can help the school’s principal make connections in the
local neighborhood to better support the needs of the children and youth who attend the school.
Examples of helpful connections to make: school’s parent organization leaders, leaders of local
businesses, management of retail/food service establishments in the vicinity of the school,
pastors, leaders of community-based organizations, social service organization offices, elected
officials, and law enforcement personnel.

AUSL also works closely with district central office communications and community relations
staff, communicating very frequently at critical points in the calendar to coordinate public
announcements about Turnaround schools. For example, in a new district, AUSL’s District
Officer, local school district staff, and AUSL home office communications staff would work
closely together to plan for the announcement of a new Turnaround school, strategize about who
would attend public hearings and meetings, etc.

Community engagement strategies at each phase of the Turnaround school process. In our
experience, some families, members of the community, and older students react very
negatively to the announcement that their school will be turned around. They do not trust
“the system,” they resent being labeled as “failing,” and they do not appreciate how
poorly the failed school has been serving its students. A further challenge is the presence
of incumbent teachers and staff, who continue to work in the school for several months
after a turnaround is announced. Both the district and AUSL need to be aligned and
prepared to listen to these objections, build relationships and trust, and make a firm, but

8



Academy for Urban School Leadership
Illinois Partnership Zone Lead Partner

compassionate, case for the need for dramatic change to serve the best interests of the
children. Examples of some of our strategies:

Establish and maintain relationships with key influencers in the community, in advance of
Turnaround school announcements. During the planning period, AUSL staff members and the
new principal reach out to set up in-person meetings with community leaders in areas with poorly
performing schools (e.g., elected officials, pastors, leaders of community-based social services
organizations, etc.). At these meetings, we introduce ourselves and listen to what the community
wants for their school.

The District Superintendent/Board, not AUSL, announces the decision to intervene to
transform an underperforming school. When a Turnaround school is first named and
announced, it is the local district (not AUSL) who engages with the community to make the case
for change. In Chicago, the school district leadership has set policies for objective, published
criteria for specifying how poorly, and for how long, a school needs to perform in order to be
subject to turnaround intervention. The announcement is followed by a public comment period
(about 1 month) and public Board of Education hearings prior to a final vote to approve the
Turnaround and AUSL as the school’s operator. AUSL is careful not to presume approval (for
example, by starting to recruit teachers) during this time.

Prompt visibility for AUSL and new school leaders. As soon as possible after AUSL is
approved to operate a Turnaround school, AUSL announces and hosts public events on “neutral
territory” in the community (i.e., not at the school, but at a facility in the community like a church
or other public space). The Turnaround school’s new principal and representatives from AUSL
leadership attend to introduce ourselves and to describe our vision and plans. At these meetings,
we ask parents what matters to them, what they have been disappointed with in the school, and
other questions which give us valuable information to use in designing the school and
determining priorities for investments in programs and facilities. These interactions set an early
tone for school-community collaboration and planning; in the past, parents’ suggestions have
guided AUSL’s choices about facilities improvements and after-school programming.
References and testimonials. Parents, community leaders, and even older students with
experience at prior AUSL Turnaround schools have been willing to speak out with testimonials
about their positive experiences. Our Community Engagement Coordinator helps organize these
individuals and enlarge their ranks. Parent testimonials are very effective with prospective
parents, elected officials, and prospective donors. AUSL organizes periodic “See our Schools”
events to display successful turnaround schools.

Outreach by teachers and school leaders. During the summer before school begins, the new
Turnaround school’s teachers and school leaders call on families personally, going door-to-door
to introduce themselves. A community picnic and Open House shortly before school opens
allows us to show off renovations to the facility.

Engaging parents to support their children’s success. Once school is open, AUSL
communicates clearly to parents what is expected from them to help their child succeed. Our
mantra is, “this is not a choice — you must be involved in the academic life of your child.”
Parents are expected to support good attendance every day, ask their children what has happened
at school; ask what homework needs to be done daily; help their children set aside time for work
to get done at home; continually support and challenge their children to strive for success in all
areas of study; encourage their children to join in after-school sports, arts, and school clubs; set
aside time to discuss each child’s individual progress with the principal and teachers; use the
school’s “open door policy”; telephone and visit the school when questions or concerns arise;
attend monthly meetings with the principal to offer suggestions; report topics of interest; and

9
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receive information about school matters. In each school community, AUSL enlists willing
parents to interact with other parents to promote understanding the role parents play in advancing
the academic lives of their children.
Many events and initiatives to connect parents with the school. Leaders within individual
schools also reach out to their communities, especially to parents and families, in many ways.
For example:
e Regular monthly meetings of the principal with a parent advisory committee
e Parent and student satisfaction surveys (building on whatever the district already does)
e Assigned Teacher Assistant or other staff member as the Parent Involvement Coordinator
to network with families and plan programs
e Establishing a “Parent Patrol” of volunteers to greet students and create a positive, well-
supervised environment during morning entry and afternoon dismissal
e Publishing a school handbook, monthly newsletter, and calendar with a strong emphasis
on school policies, programs, curriculum and instruction
e Making parents feel welcome by providing a space in the school where they can meet and
have access to a telephone, a computer and other supplies and equipment
e Using the school as a “lighthouse” for the community, providing GED courses and
parenting training for adults
e Using the exterior message board to share information with local residents
e Open invitation for parents to visit and participate in activities such as the Student of the
Month Luncheon, after school tutorial programs, field trips, sports and all other extra-
curricular activities
o Encouraging parents to share their skills and experiences with students as part of
classroom activities
e Quarterly programs designed especially for parents such as Math Workshops, Literacy
Nights, Open Houses, Increasing the Role of Fathers, Parenting Skills, Learning at Home,
Decision Making, Family Fitness and other events focusing specifically on parents
e Inviting parents to attend AUSL special events, such as meetings with parents of
prospective Turnaround schools.

Intervention Plan — Address transformation criteria from Appendix A of the RFSP

In Chicago, AUSL’s proposes to be a Lead Partner in intervening in both elementary schools
(PK-8) and high schools (9-12). The broad outlines of the intervention approach are similar for
both types of schools; see AUSL’s July 2009 proposal to Chicago Public Schools for more
details.

Outside Chicago, AUSL proposes to be a Lead Partner in intervening in one or two elementary or
middle school(s), encompassing any or all of grades PK-8.

AUSL is prepared to accept the school(s) assigned by the district(s). We have a preference, but
not an absolute requirement, for schools with enrollment of at least 400 students. In AUSL’s
prior experiences with interventions using its Turnaround school model, school enrollment
following the intervention was typically similar to, or slightly greater than, enrollment prior to the
intervention.

In Chicago, AUSL has already completed a detailed proposal for 2010 Turnaround schools. A
copy of AUSL’s proposal and the CPS October 2009 Board Report approving AUSL as a



Academy for Urban School Leadership | 11
Illinois Partnership Zone Lead Partner

contract manager are enclosed with this proposal. This detailed proposal addresses many of the
same topics as are included in the RSFP Appendix A questions, so it should be reviewed along
with our responses below. The balance of this section will supplement the CPS proposal,
responding to the Appendix A Transformation Criteria and other work plan questions. Responses
below will supplement the Chicago proposal by focusing on additional information needed to
describe how AUSL would work with an Illinois district other than the Chicago district.

Turnaround school model. An AUSL-managed school is not a charter school, but a district
school with autonomy for AUSL as the contract manager on staff hiring decisions and on
curricular and budgetary policies. School-based employees are maintained as union members (if
there is a union). AUSL Turnaround schools continue to use district services for many
operational supports (e.g., facilities project management, transportation, food service).

With a new district partner, AUSL would use the Chicago Performance School model as a
baseline for a discussion about roles and responsibilities across AUSL, the individual school’s
leaders, and the local district staff, but would be open to negotiating mutually agreeable variations
from that model. See above, for the high-level timeline for planning and implementation of
AUSL’s Lead Partner collaboration with a district to undertake a new Turnaround school.

AUSL has launched new elementary Turnaround schools each school year since 2006, and our
senior AUSL central office staff has recruited principals and coached them through the school
planning process in four successive school years. This same team, supplemented by a full-time
District Officer, would perform the same selection and coaching roles with new non-Chicago
principals as they have and will with Chicago principals. During the incubation period, all of the
principals of upcoming turnaround schools work together with AUSL’s full-time coach,
collaborating with and assisting one another and building lasting relationships, while benefiting
from the experience and guidance of AUSL central office staff who have supported Turnaround
school incubation in previous years.

Research foundations for the Turnaround school model. Mass Insight Education and
Research Institute’s 2007 work The Turnaround Challenge distinguishes between marginal
efforts and the whole school transformation efforts needed to improve the nation’s lowest
performing schools. According to this study, successful turnarounds:

e Are much more challenging than school improvement
Require whole school transformation
Produce achievement improvement within two years
Are empowered to make decisions about staff, schedule, budget, etc.
Require new partners and structures within the state and district

PASSAGE: AUSL’s unique approach to developing high-performing schools. Building on
research from Mass Insight and others, as well as from our own experience, AUSL has codified
the key components of our work to provide a “roadmap” for each Turnaround effort. Our
PASSAGE framework summarizes and makes memorable what characterizes an AUSL school.
New principals and all school staff learn about the PASSAGE framework and use it to guide their
detailed planning. The PASSAGE framework is very similar to the Transformation Criteria
required in the RSFP. Therefore, we will refer to the various elements of PASSAGE in the
responses below.
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1. Transformation Criterion: School culture and climate

Establish a safe, orderly environment

Create a climate of high expectations

Staff commitment to mission and goals

Parents understand and support school

Provide social, emotional services for low-income students

o0 o

For a new AUSL Turnaround school, ensuring a positive school culture begins months before the
school re-opens.

Facilities upgrades. All too often, facilities in underperforming schools have been neglected.
Turnaround school buildings must signal high expectations to students and families by being safe,
in compliance with codes, clean, in good repair, and adequately equipped. Also, AUSL needs the
flexibility to evaluate and, if necessary, replace any or all of the school’s on-site facilities staff.

As soon as a school is identified for turnaround intervention, and no later than six months prior to
the opening of school, AUSL staff (including the new principal) and district representatives walk
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through the facility together to develop an agenda for needed repairs and improvements. The
agreed-upon projects are funded and implemented speedily, over the summer, by the district’s
facilities organization. When school opens in the fall, these noticeable improvements to the
physical plant create a more positive learning environment and signal to students, parents and the
community that “times have changed.”

The extent and cost of needed improvements will vary depending on the initial condition of the
facility, but they can be considerable. In Chicago, CPS’s expenditures for AUSL turnaround
school facilities have ranged from $750,000 to $2 million or more.

Additional discretionary capital projects. In some AUSL turnaround schools, AUSL’s
Development office has assembled donors to fund major capital projects, which provide a further
boost to the programming options and image of the school. For example, in previous Chicago
Turnaround schools, donors from the local business community funded upgrades ranging from
new classroom whiteboards, to a new playground, to a brand-new $2.6 million high school
athletic field.

Clear, highly detailed checklists for how AUSL schools and classrooms should look, and clarity
on key policies and processes (e.g., entry/exit procedures, uniforms, silent and orderly lines in the
hallways during class transitions, etc.). See AUSL’s July 2009 Chicago proposal, Exhibit 21 for
AUSL’s school and classroom environment checklist. Principals, teachers and staff receive a
copy of “The AUSL Way” with detailed guidelines for Day 1 routines and procedures. To ensure
accountability, AUSL’s central office team conducts a fall “audit” of every school and every
classroom to provide feedback to principals and teachers about whether AUSL’s expectations are
being met.

School-wide practices to reinforce a culture of high expectations and success. School leaders
specify hallway posters and create bulletin board displays to communicate expectations, build
school spirit, and celebrate success. All teachers receive training on, and use, AUSL’s “Signature
Strategies” for classroom management and instruction. Beginning with summer professional
development, and also reinforced by the presence of a cohort of AUSL residency graduates,
teachers and all school staff are expected to be consistent, positive, and respectful with students,
and to expect such behavior in return.

Summer professional development is required for all school leaders, teachers, and staff
(including all school support staff such as security, lunchroom, etc.). This investment in common
planning and preparation time ensures that all adults in the building are aligned, committed, and
well prepared for Day 1 and beyond. Six weeks of Summer PD before the turnaround school
reopens includes time for the team to discuss and gain alignment about what the school’s mission
and policies will be, and to plan in detail how they will together set a new tone of high
expectations. Summer PD also includes training for teachers on AUSL’s curriculum and
assessment tools and protocols. See AUSL’s July 2009 Chicago proposal, exhibit 22 for the
AUSL 2009 Turnaround Training Academy summer schedule.

The AUSL turnaround school model also calls for two weeks of Summer PD prior to the opening
of the Turnaround school’s second year of operation under AUSL management. This investment
realigns all adults in the building to review and refresh school expectations and procedures, and
also includes some professional development for teachers.
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Action Against Adversity is part of AUSL’s framework because the poorest-performing schools
are almost always in high-poverty, high-mobility communities. AUSL welcomes the challenge
for the school to provide and to coordinate the extra supports that poor and sometimes homeless
children need, such as:
e Well-organized, non-bureaucratic procedures for welcoming and quickly enrolling new
students throughout the school year
e School uniform policy, including a supply of “loaner” uniforms so kids who show up
without theirs will not miss school time
e Supplemental services from nearby social service providers. Chicago partners include
Youth Guidance, UCAN. AUSL has partnered with City Year to provide after-school
tutoring in most AUSL elementary schools
Donated school supplies
e Breakfast for all children
Frequent communication from multiple media to keep parents and guardians informed

As described above, AUSL’s new principal and teachers reach out to parents and the community
before school starts, and continue to engage them throughout the year. Some of these
community-building strategies also contribute to our “action against adversity.” Some creative
examples of how AUSL schools enlist parent and community support to create a better school
experience for the children include:

e “Parent Patrol” of parent volunteers to mingle with and offer positive greetings to
children as they wait to enter school in the morning. Fighting is less frequent and
students enter school calmer and ready to learn

o Agreement by near-school food retailers to suspend sales of unhealthy snacks during
certain times of the day.

After-school arts and sports programs are another AUSL “Action Against Adversity” strategy.
Parents in AUSL school communities consistently ask for programming to keep their children
supervised and learning after the school day. Also, after-school arts and sports activities can
inspire and develop students with different talents, and motivate them to come to school and
behave well in order to keep the privilege of participating. For example, in the first year of its
turnaround, the 8" grade boys’ wrestling team at AUSL’s Howe School of Excellence won the
Chicago city championship — a huge source of pride for the boys involved and the school, neither
of whom had felt like “winners” for a long time.

AUSL employs two full-time staff in Chicago, one to coordinate Visual and Performing Arts
programs and another for sports. These individuals would work with the District Officer and
local district staff in a new district to arrange for teaching artists, coaches, buses, etc. and to seek
funding for these enrichment activities.

2. Transformation Criterion: Developing teacher and school leader effectiveness
Designate a principal who is the instructional leader

Transition to distributed leadership

Evaluate teachers and leaders performance

Provide high quality professional development

Recruit, place and retain high quality staff

®oo o
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District Officer. Soon after AUSL and a non-Chicago district agree to work together, AUSL
would recruit a District Officer to be the project manager and leadership coach for the
Turnaround school(s) in a new district. This position would report to Dr. Jarvis Sanford, AUSL’s
Managing Director — Elementary Schools. The District Officer would coordinate AUSL senior
management and central office staff interactions with district and school staff throughout the
planning and implementation of each new Turnaround school, and would be responsible for
ensuring that the district and schools follow the AUSL model closely, including any agreed-upon
deviations from it.

Principal and Assistant Principal. In AUSL’s Turnaround school model, the principal of the
poorly-performing school is always replaced by a new principal hired by AUSL. AUSL recruits
locally and nationally for principals, using New Leaders for New Schools and other sources.
Principals are expected to have some experience in school leadership, but AUSL emphasizes
leadership qualities over length of experience in its selection criteria. AUSL principals typically
also have at least some prior experience in school leadership in a school with a high-needs student
population.

An AUSL Turnaround school principal is an employee of the district, but AUSL requires that the
position be an “at-will” employment arrangement, not a multi-year contract. (In Chicago, this is
accomplished by having AUSL principals be “Interim principals” appointed by the district CEO.).
AUSL has, in the past, replaced principals when the performance of their schools did not meet
AUSL’s expectations. AUSL elementary principals will report to AUSL’s Managing Director —
Elementary Schools.

AUSL also requires that all of its schools have a full-time, non-teaching Assistant Principal to
support the principal in both operational and instructional leadership. A school’s Assistant
principal is hired by the principal, subject to approval by AUSL senior staff. One of the teachers
in each grade-level team is also designated as the grade level team leader, but this role does not
include extra compensation and could be shared or rotated among team members.

The principal is hired to begin full-time work in January or February prior to the opening of
school, and the Assistant principal is hired to begin full time in April. Sometimes the school
clerk/business manager is also hired early if the right person is available. These individuals are
coached, trained, and supported by the District Officer and by AUSL’s Director of Special
Projects, an experienced former elementary school principal who has partnered with each of the
principals to plan for all of AUSL’s previous Turnaround elementary schools.

Principal evaluation and compensation. In AUSL schools, principals and teachers are
formally evaluated and compensated according to the district’s collective bargaining agreement.
However, AUSL’s model includes variable incentive compensation for principals (only), in the
range of about $5,000 to $11,000 annually. It is paid in two installments and calculated
according to a “balanced scorecard” review of school and individual performance, including
weighting achieving academic growth targets at 25 percent. See Exhibit 18 of AUSL’s Proposal
for Chicago Public Schools 2010 Turnaround schools.

School organization structure and staffing model. The staffing models for AUSL schools vary
depending on school size, numbers of students requiring special education, etc. All school staff
report to the principal. If this is typical in the district, staff in some support service areas (e.g.,
food service) may report to central district or third-party operators. In such cases, however,
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AUSL would expect that the principal would have the opportunity to evaluate and potentially
reject a proposed new or continuing employee to be placed in the building by the central district
office or a third party.

Selection of teachers and staff. Teachers for AUSL schools are recruited from two sources:
AUSL teacher residency training program graduates, and all other sources (including those
returning teachers and staff who are invited to stay). New graduates of the AUSL program
typically make up 50% or more of a Turnaround elementary school’s core classroom teachers (K-
8, not including “specials” like PE, Art, Special Education etc.).

In a new district, AUSL would recruit “State residents” to train during 2010-11 for positions in a
new 2011 Turnaround school. Please see AUSL’s Supporting Partner proposal, for a more
complete description of AUSL’s teacher residency program and its results

AUSL’s teacher residency graduates are a critical and distinctive component of AUSL’s
Turnaround school human capital strategy because they are:
o Rigorously screened and selected (fewer than 10 percent of applicants to the residency
program are accepted)
e Trained for a full year, full time, and prepared with a Master’s degree (M.A.T or M. Ed.)
e Trained as a resident in an AUSL-managed school and intimately familiar with AUSL
school processes, including expectations for school culture and climate, tools for using
formative assessment data, teaching strategies, etc.
o Well known to their “cohort” of fellow trainees, and already the nucleus of a professional
learning community even before they are hired for their first teaching position
e Auvailable to be hired in time for pre-turnaround Summer PD, and committed by a
contract to work at an AUSL school for four years following their training year.

Turnaround school principals observe and interview residents in March and extend offers in
April.

Incumbent teachers and staff in a Turnaround school would also be evaluated early in the hiring
season. All may re-apply, or opt out if they choose. The new principal interviews, observes, and
selects only those who the principal believes are well qualified and prepared to adjust to the
dramatic changes that will be made to the school’s programs, policies, processes, and culture.

Finally, the principal and district recruiting staff recruit any remaining people to complete the
team, if desired with support (at the district’s discretion and expense) from a recruiting specialist
partner such as The New Teacher Project.

AUSL Coaches. To supplement and support school-based staff, AUSL employs a team of
talented former teachers to serve as full-time coaches in Turnaround schools. The typical
allocation for a 500-student elementary school would be two full-time coaches, who would be
hired by July 1 prior to the school’s re-opening. A school’s AUSL coaches observe and coach all
teachers, with particular emphasis on providing induction support to newer teachers. Coaches
report to AUSL’s central office Coaches Team Leader, not to the school’s principal.

AUSL professional development. AUSL believes, and this is supported by research, that
whether a student’s classroom teacher is effective or ineffective is the single most critical factor
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affecting student achievement growth. AUSL has high expectations for teachers and invests
heavily to help every teacher develop rapidly. AUSL’s programs for teacher development
include:

Summer PD (described above) prior to the start of school. Every adult who will work in the
school attends six weeks of summer PD together before the school re-opens, and becomes a hew
and cohesive school team during that time. Before Year 2, two weeks of all-staff summer PD
include additional time for teacher skill-building, grade level and school-wide analysis of the
prior year’s data, and joint planning.

One hour per week of paid, after-school time for all teachers. This time is programmed by the
AUSL coach, and sometimes includes all-school gatherings but is more often used for grade-level
team time for joint planning and analysis of student data.

A menu of 90-minute PD modules, designed and led by AUSL coaches across the network, to
disseminate our key frameworks: Charlotte Danielson’s Framework for Teaching rubric, and
AUSL “Signature Strategies” for instruction and classroom management. See appendix for a list
and brief descriptions of these strategies. These modules are typically delivered to teachers
during Professional Development Days built into the school calendar (typically three days prior to
the start of school, plus about one day per quarter through the year).

Structured, regular observations and “verbal feedback” for every teacher from the school’s
principal, Assistant principal, and AUSL coach. An AUSL norm is that the principal/AP gives
specific, Danielson-based feedback to a teacher at least once a day, and that the AUSL coach does
this at least twice a day. These conversations create a regular drumbeat of feedback, goal-setting,
and practice that support teachers as they work to continuously improve their craft.

Danielson Dialogues, which are meetings held twice a year during which a school’s principal,
AP, coaches, the District Officer, and an AUSL facilitator meet to discuss and rate the teacher’s
proficiency in each of Danielson’s four domains: Planning and Preparation, the Classroom
Environment, Instruction, and Professional Responsibilities. This process, which is
developmental, is conducted in addition to whatever evaluation processes are mandated by the
district’s collective bargaining agreement.

Review of student performance data by teacher. Using AUSL’s Linkit! reporting system,
school leaders and the school’s coach review and discuss the student achievement levels and
growth rates of each teacher’s students.

Because AUSL teachers are participants in district collective bargaining agreements, their formal
evaluation and compensation policies are governed by those agreements. Aside from the ability
to review and replace teachers and staff when the school is initially turned around, AUSL’s model
operates within the district’s existing human capital polices. However, collective bargaining
agreements usually include some provisions favorable to management, such as: ability to specify
non-standard employment conditions as part of the teacher’s initial hiring offer. For example,
AUSL’s offer letters to Turnaround school teachers includes provisions (such as participating in
paid summer and after-school professional development) that are not part of the collective
bargaining agreement, but that may be made mandatory as a condition of their acceptance of their
offer.

Attention to probationary teachers. Most collective bargaining agreements grant more
flexibility to replace a poorly performing teacher early in the teacher’s career, so AUSL
principals can act when necessary when a junior teacher does not perform up to their potential.
Attention to the continuing professional development of all teachers and staff. AUSL’s
summer PD, coaching, regular feedback, and professional development throughout the year are
designed to support all teachers and to help them improve their practice. Also, AUSL’s systems
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for providing data on student achievement progress (described in more detail below) give
teachers and coaches the data they need to monitor progress, differentiate instruction, and employ
strategies to help students accelerate their learning. We believe the overwhelming majority of
teachers want to grow and succeed for their students, and that supportive systems, structures,
staff, and tools will help them do so even in the absence of performance-based financial
incentives.

Participation in the AUSL network of schools. AUSL principals, teachers, and staff are
members of the AUSL community of practice as well as of the teams of their school and district.
AUSL reinforces this community through regular (monthly) meetings of all principals, all APs,
all Coaches, and all home office staff, and by hosting an annual three-day planning summit in
June for all of these groups together. Teachers also benefit from AUSL’s network scale; for
example, PD sessions on teaching strategies assembled teachers from across the network, and
were very well received (see appendix). AUSL schools in a new district would be included in as
many AUSL network activities as travel and calendar constraints would allow.

Serving the needs of all students. All AUSL schools have special education teachers, and
comply with all requirements for special education supports and services. AUSL’s home office
curriculum and assessment experts would work with district leadership and staff to tailor our
curriculum and assessment approach to adapt to any special requirements of the new district.
AUSL Turnaround elementary schools in Chicago do not typically have large ELL student
populations, but we are prepared to work with a new district to put appropriate supports in place
if a school designated for Turnaround needs them.

3. Transformation Criterion: Comprehensive instructional reform strategies
a. Use data to identify implement instructional programs
b. Differentiate instruction
c. Integrate programs that impact instruction

AUSL’s curriculum and assessment programs. AUSL will apply the curriculum and
assessment programs used in its existing Turnaround schools in Chicago to new Turnaround
schools added to the network, both in and outside Chicago. AUSL schools use a rigorous,
standards-based curriculum, with frequent formative and summative assessments. AUSL’s two
Directors of Curriculum and Assessment (one each for elementary and high schools) lead teams
for network teachers and coaches to develop common network-wide standards-based pacing
guides, assessment tools, and assessment calendars. Teachers in all AUSL schools receive
training and coaching support to use the network’s resources (coaches, data, etc.) to ensure that
their planning and instruction are informed by standards and by frequent feedback about progress
of each student.

Network-wide curriculum for elementary Turnaround schools. Beginning in 2009-10, all
new AUSL elementary Turnaround schools are using a common curriculum. Curriculum design
teams, composed of experienced teachers from schools across our network and led by home
office curriculum coordinators, design curriculum tools specifically for new Turnaround schools,
in which it is often necessary to adapt the pacing of instruction and provide for more
differentiated instruction to support a student population that is significantly further behind grade
level than is the case in a non-Turnaround school.
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For published resources, K-5 uses Everyday Math from the University of Chicago. Most schools
use Math Thematics for grades 6-8. Each of our current elementary schools uses a different set of
publisher materials for literacy; one commonality is the implementation of balanced literacy
following a Fountas & Pinnell or a Calkins model. Lucy Calkins delivered a week of PD in
summer 2009 to several teams of teachers and coaches to strengthen AUSL teachers’ ability to
teach Literacy. All new Turnaround elementary schools use the basal reading series Reading
Street by Pearson.

Formative and summative assessments. All AUSL elementary schools administer the NWEA
(Northwest Evaluation Association) MAP (Measure of Academic Progress). AUSL schools also
administer the ISAT, but we have added NWEA to provide summative data more frequently than
once a year, and to use a recognized, nationally normed test. All AUSL elementary schools will
give the NWEA assessments three times per year — September, December, and May. These
summative (Computer Adaptive), nationally normed assessments give rich, specific, real-time
data that allows teachers to target instruction to student needs, and have been shown to be strong
predictors of ISAT performance. See appendix for a sample of an NWEA teacher report.

Classroom Diagnostic Assessment System (CDAS)™. AUSL schools also use the Classroom
Diagnostic Assessment System (CDAS) for Math and Reading. This system for data-driven
instruction, developed for AUSL with the support of consultants from Lifelong Learning,
provides for frequent formative assessments (every few weeks) to enable teachers to closely
monitor the progress of their students and to re-teach as needed to appropriately differentiate
instruction and leave no children behind. Each assessment system consists of interrelated
components:

e Unpacked benchmarks to clarify and align the learning targets implied in the state
benchmarks between grades, and to identify learning targets at different levels of
cognitive rigor, namely knowledge, skills & understanding, and reasoning.

e Benchmark assessments, which are sets of forced-choice diagnostic questions which
test student attainment of the learning targets at the 3 levels of cognitive rigor.

e Pacing guides indicating how to modify published materials (by supplementing or
deleting lessons) in order to adequately address the benchmarks, and how to pace
instruction throughout the year.

o Diagnostic assessments comprised of the diagnostic questions rearranged into sets
according to the level of cognitive rigor of the benchmarks taught during a given time
period, as specified on the pacing guides.

The CDAS assessment tools for Math were complete and fully implemented in all schools in
2008-09, in 2009-10, Literacy CDAS are being rolled out network-wide while teachers will pilot
and revise Science tools. Teachers receive PD on how to use the information from CDAS to
target their lesson planning and re-teaching priorities.

Strong gains in Math ISAT scores across the board in AUSL schools (see appendix) give
testimony to the usefulness of these tools for teachers. We are also beginning the practice of
maintaining portfolios of student writing and interim assessments that will follow students from
grade to grade, to allow teachers to examine students’ writing development across school years.

Linkit! Teachers in all AUSL schools use Linkit!, a web-based software package for managing
and reporting student progress on assessments at the student, classroom, school, and network
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level. CDAS, NWEA, and ISAT assessment data are loaded into Linkit!, and teachers use its
flexible, easy-to-use reporting tools to inform analysis and planning sessions involving teachers,
coaches, and school leaders. Sample Linkit! reports are in AUSL’s July 2009 proposal for
Chicago, Exhibit 13.

Power of 5 tutoring. An AUSL elementary school employs at least one, ideally two,
instructional assistants to work with small groups of students (about five, thus the name) to
provide extra practice and more focused attention to specific small groups with common needs
for re-teaching as identified by the CDAS or other assessments. Tutors would be school
employees, with training provided by AUSL’s home office curriculum team and by the AUSL
school-based coaches.

High school curriculum and assessment. Beginning in 2009-10, all AUSL high schools will
follow a common curriculum map that outlines the specific ACT College Readiness Standards to
be taught and assessed (Interims and CDAS) each quarter in all English, Math, Science, and
History courses. This represents a transition from the CPS High School Transformation
Instructional Delivery Systems materials, in order to align our curriculum more closely with the
ACT standards (rather than the Illinois Learning Standards). Also, the ACT College Readiness
Standards for Reading are embedded across all content areas at AUSL high schools.

High schools are continuing to use the EPAS system (Explore, PLAN, ACT) and quarterly
Interim Assessments, and capturing data using the Linklt! system. AUSL high schools will also
use our Class Diagnostic Assessment System (CDAS) beginning in 2009-10 to assess student
progress on the English, Reading, Math, and Science ACT College Readiness Standards.

AUSL school educational programs are attentive to the needs of our many at-risk high school
students who are achieving below grade level. The following supports are in place:

e High schools use the Freshmen Watch Lists from CPS to identify incoming freshmen
who enter high school needing extra academic supports.

e Throughout the year, when new students arrive to enroll in AUSL high schools they will
take an entry assessment (NWEA) in reading and math to determine their current
performance level. These scores, generated within 24 hours, will allow schools to place
students with low performance levels in classes with additional academic supports.

o We offer online courses to students for credit recovery.

e Students who fall behind in two or more academic classes receive in-school interventions
during the regular school day.

e Quarterly Student Success Reports from CPS are used to identify students at-risk for
ending the year “off-track” for promotion and/or graduation.

College readiness. Each AUSL high school has a post-secondary coach to engage all students
and families in the necessary components related to getting into and paying for college. AUSL
high school students have seminar classes at each grade level: study skills for high school (9™);
individual learning styles (10™); preparation for high-stakes college entrance exams (11") and
career and college preparation through projects and internships (12™).
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4. Transformation Criterion: Extending learning time
a. Provide more time for students to learn content
b. Provide more time for teacher to collaborate
c. Provide more time for student enrichment

AUSL has in some cases extended the instructional day at our turnaround schools. The purpose
of this additional instruction is to close the achievement gap more quickly. However, since this
requires a significant investment by the district, we do not make this a standard component of our
turnaround model. AUSL will work with the district team, school principal, parents and
community to determine if this step is necessary in each school.

AUSL does always provide one hour per week of extended time to provide additional weekly
professional development for teachers. See the description of professional development in
transformation criteria #2.

Finally, AUSL invests in programs in the fine arts, music, dance and sports — both during the
school day and after school - to provide additional enrichment opportunities for students. See the
description of these programs in transformation criteria #1.

5. Transformation Criterion: Providing operating flexibility
a. Authority to select and assign school staff
b. Control over school calendar and scheduling
c. Control over financial resources

School calendar. While AUSL is prepared to work with a new district using the district’s
standard calendar, we would like to discuss the possibility of modifying the calendar for
Turnaround schools in years 2 and beyond. In Chicago, AUSL elementary Turnaround schools
all operate on either the standard CPS calendar (early September to mid-June, for 169 school
days) for their first year, since the summer prior to the opening of school is needed to complete
facilities improvements and for school team PD and planning. Beginning in Year 2, AUSL
Turnaround schools switch to the CPS “Track E” calendar, which provides for the same number
of total school days but has a school start date in mid-August with longer breaks during the
school year. AUSL prefers an extended calendar for Turnaround schools after their first year to
reduce the loss of learning momentum over the summer break, and to create meaningful windows
for mid-year planning, professional development, and renewal for administrators and staff.

School day. In Chicago, AUSL schools operate with the standard instructional day of 6 hours
and 15 minutes. For a Turnaround school in a new district, we would seek flexibility for a longer
school day than this (as appropriate and funded by the district), and possibly even a longer school
day than is standard for the district, to give the children the additional instructional time they need
to close the achievement gap. In addition to the regular school day, AUSL Turnaround schools
include supplementary programs to increase children’s supervised learning time, for example:

e  After-school arts and sports programming

e Power of 5 tutoring (pull-out instruction for small groups of students, during the school

day; see below for a description)
e Tutoring provided by City Year program members
e SES and other community programs.
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Operating flexibility related to staffing and scheduling. As described above, AUSL would
have the authority as Lead Partner to replace the school’s principal and to select the school’s
teachers and staff (including evaluation of all interested incumbents with the option to release
them). AUSL would work within the district’s standard school calendar, although we would like
to discuss flexibility for an extended calendar after year 1. Other elements of operating flexibility
include Summer PD, a longer instructional day if possible, one hour per week of paid teacher PD
time, and a handful of paid, required teacher professional development days throughout the
school year.

Financial resources necessary to implement the intervention model. Over and above a
district’s regular budget for a school, the costs of implementing AUSL’s model for dramatic
transformation of a school include one-time and annual fees to AUSL, plus commitments on the
part of the district to make special investments in the school’s people, programs and facilities in
accordance with the AUSL model’s design. The main types of expenses are summarized in the
table below; also see the Cost Proposal for this RFSP.

Included in fee to AUSL as Lead Covered by district/school budgeting

Partner (including supplemental funds
raised)
One-time planning | Recruiting state residents Summer PD compensation for all
period costs Salary, stipend, insurance, and staff (6 weeks before year 1 plus 2
mentor costs for state residents weeks before year 2)

Principal and AP compensation
during planning period

Facility repairs and upgrades
Costs to recruit teachers and staff
(other than residents)

Annual costs for Full-time District Officer One hour per week paid PD for
five years compensation teachers
Full-time AUSL coach(es) Power of 5 tutor
compensation Principal incentive pay
Part-time services and oversight Extended daily instructional time (if
from AUSL senior management and | possible)
central office staff After-school arts and sports
programs

For AUSL’s proposal to be a Lead Partner for one or two elementary Turnaround schools outside
Chicago, we have not included any fee to contribute to covering the costs of AUSL’s home office
staff and services or residency program leadership. Historically, AUSL has not used Chicago
district funds for these costs, but has raised funds from individuals, foundations, and other
government sources to cover them. These services include:

e As Lead Partner, coordinate services and manage the Turnaround school project
Recruit, train, and manage District Officer and Coach(es)
Teacher residency program overhead (indirect costs of training state residents)
Delivery of PD to teachers by AUSL home office coaches
Data analysis and reporting tools, frameworks and systems, including from AUSL’s
vendor Linkit!
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AUSL home office staff support to facilitate Data Dialogues and Danielson Dialogues,
and to capture data

Intellectual capital: PASSAGE framework, PD content, checklists

Quiality control and performance management activities: School visits from AUSL senior
staff; District Officer and principal performance management

Other AUSL home office indirect costs: Development/communications team; Recruiting
staff and marketing expenses (residents and experienced teachers); Human Resources;
Finance; IT; professional services; insurance; and office administrative expenses. AUSL
staff offices are housed rent-free in AUSL schools.

School and district staff access to participation in the AUSL network of schools:
network-wide convening and PD, exchange of best practices.
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Building Capacity for Sustained Improvement - Describe how the Lead Partner intends to phase
out the need for its services

AUSL network of schools. AUSL has, at this point in its history, never been phased out of any
school that it has begun to manage. With the exception of Dodge Renaissance Academy,
AUSL’s Chicago Turnaround school interventions are all less than five years old. Dodge
Renaissance Academy has become an AUSL teacher residency training site, under AUSL
management without an expiration date. The growing network of AUSL-managed schools within
the Chicago district supports our model of increasing teacher training capacity for new
Turnaround schools, with a vision that AUSL-managed schools which have moved through the
critical early years of turnaround could potentially become teacher training sites and remain in the
network.

Phase-out plan. Outside Chicago, AUSL would not necessarily seek to remain engaged with a
district and one or two AUSL-managed school(s) beyond five years. It would not be difficult for
AUSL to disengage; the only AUSL staff proposed to be dedicated to a non-Chicago district
would be the District Officer and one or two coaches. These employees could be hired by the
district or school, or be redeployed to serve other districts, or leave. All other employees working
in and supporting the Turnaround school (including the principal) are employees of the local
school district, not AUSL, from the outset of AUSL’s intervention.

After five years, a Turnaround school’s local school leadership and staff will be experienced and
confident with the implementation of AUSL’s PASSAGE elements, and the school should be a
stable and high-performing school. If AUSL’s involvement is to be phased out, AUSL will work
with the local school staff and the district to ensure a smooth transition to district and school staff
for other AUSL supports such as coaches, recruitment support, vendor relationships (e.g.,
Linkit!), PD programs for teachers, and ongoing leadership development for principals and other
administrators. Or, AUSL could continue to provide selected services and/or advice as a
Supporting Partner.

Options for longer-term AUSL involvement. If a district (perhaps in combination with other
nearby districts) decided to build its own network of AUSL schools by creating a residency
teacher training program and/or more Turnaround schools in school years after 2011, then AUSL
could remain involved for a longer time. Such an extended relationship would, as is the case in
Chicago, require both ongoing district support and funding for AUSL’s overhead and home office
expenses from philanthropy and grants.

Outcomes-Based Measurement Plan — Describe development of 5-year measurement plan

Turnaround phases as defined by student achievement progress. For AUSL, the
performance metric that matters most is student achievement, and the primary goal of our
Turnaround school intervention is to narrow and ultimately erase the “achievement gap” between
a Turnaround school’s students and students in high-performing schools. AUSL’s expectations
for Turnaround elementary school performance are:
e Turnaround Intervention (years 1 to 3): Narrow pre-turnaround achievement gap by half
(e.g., to 30 percentage points from 60)
o Rapid Improvement (years 3 to 5): Narrow remaining achievement gap by half again
(e.g., improve by 15 percentage points more)
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e Sustain change (ongoing): Students achieve greater than 1 year of growth per school
year, until the achievement gap is closed and the school is high-performing.

As described above, Dodge Renaissance Academy has reached Phase 3; Sherman and Harvard
are close to Phase 2; and AUSL’s Turnaround schools started since 2008-09 are still in Phase 1.

Performance management systems and structures. A cornerstone of AUSL’s performance
management approach is the Data Dialogue, which is a discussion involving a school’s
administrative leadership team plus the AUSL Managing Director responsible for the school.
(Outside Chicago, the District Officer, who will report to AUSL’s Managing Director for
Elementary schools, would also attend.) These meetings are held at least six times per year.
Before each meeting, AUSL’s home office Knowledge Management staff creates a report of the
school’s performance on a number of indicators, including student achievement, student and
teacher attendance, disciplinary incidents, and school culture and climate. During the meeting,
the Managing Director and school leaders review and commit to action plans for improving
performance. These conversations establish the agenda for continuous improvement and
adjustments to the school’s plans, and monitor progress.

Collegial visits. These are day-long visits to AUSL schools are coordinated by the school
management team. A group of AUSL employees and some invited guests visit the designated
school from 7 AM until 6 PM. They are briefed about the school’s progress and challenges.
They visit classrooms and interview teachers and staff. At the end of this observation, the group
compiles their findings and shares the feedback with the school leadership team. These visits are
a powerful way to share best practices across the AUSL network of schools.

Nonoperational Support Functions - If applicable, describe any non-operational support
functions

Not applicable.

Fiscal Status Reporting - Describe the plan for how the applicant will report on the fiscal status
of the implementation to ISBE and the school district

AUSL’s Chicago-based Finance and Administration team is prepared to work with partner
districts and ISBE to meet their requirements for fiscal reporting. Also, each individual AUSL
school complies with all reporting requirements of the school’s district.

See Fiscal Management plan below.
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Demonstrated Record of Effectiveness

Research behind turnarounds. Mass Insight’s 2007 work The Turnaround Challenge
distinguishes between marginal efforts and the whole school transformation efforts needed to
improve the nation’s lowest performing schools. According to this study, successful turnarounds:
Are much more challenging than school improvement

Require whole school transformation

Produce achievement improvement within two years

Are empowered to make decisions about staff, schedule, budget, etc.

Require new partners and structures within the state and district

AUSL was involved in the study outlined above. Sherman and Harvard, AUSL’s first two
turnaround schools were studied by the research team to draw conclusions about the turnaround
model. The study has become a call to action to states and districts to effect change in
chronically failing schools.

AUSL’s Record of Academic Improvement. The table below summarizes “before and after”
student achievement performance for all of AUSL’s Turnaround elementary schools. Also see
appendix for detailed performance data for each AUSL school.

AUSL has launched, and still manages, eight Turnaround elementary schools. The first, Dodge
Renaissance Academy, was closed for an entire school year (2002-03) and re-opened under
AUSL management. For subsequent Turnaround schools beginning with Sherman School of
Excellence in 2006, AUSL has used a turnaround model that does not disrupt students. Students
finish a school year at their failing school, and when the same students return in the fall, they are
greeted by a new principal, staff, curriculum and renovated facilities. This model has been
implemented at the other four turnaround elementary schools listed below.

Sherman School of Excellence was AUSL’s first turnaround school under the new
model of whole school transformation over summer break. In 2006, before AUSL
managed the school, only 28.9% of students met the Illinois state standard on the ISAT
composite metric. In 2009, after three years of AUSL management, Sherman has over
51% of students meeting the state standard.

Harvard School of Excellence was AUSL’s second turnaround school. In 2007, only
31.8% of students met the state standard, ranking Harvard as one of the four worst
elementary schools in Illinois. After just two years, 56.4% of students are meeting the
state standard.

Howe School of Excellence’s student achievement scores have improved by over seven
percentage points in just one year.

Morton School of Excellence’s student achievement scores dipped during the first year
of AUSL’s turnaround. We have been disappointed by Year 1 results, and we are
committed to getting the school’s performance on track. For 2009-10, we have changed
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the school’s principal and AP, as well as five of the school’s teachers. We are confident
that academic performance will be much stronger this year, and we already see a
dramatic improvement in the school climate and culture at Morton.

Bethune, Dulles and Johnson Schools of Excellence are the three elementary
Turnaround schools that AUSL has begun managing in the 2009-10 school year.

Parents in our Turnaround schools appreciate the impact of our people and programs, not
just on their children’s academic success but on the culture and climate of the school,
where incidents of misconduct and violence are reduced. Today, Harvard, Sherman,
Howe and Morton have positive school cultures and high expectations (see parent
testimonials in appendix).

Record of Establishing Partnerships. AUSL has a long track record of success in developing
and strengthening strong collaborative partnerships to support our mission. We continually seek
ways to deepen the impact of these partnerships in four ways:) to expand services from existing
partnerships to more students through AUSL-managed schools; 2) to expand partnerships to
include more organizations that could offer services to our students; 3) to utilize existing and new
partnerships for more targeted recruiting of highly qualified candidates for the residency program;
and 4) to facilitate collaboration among existing and forthcoming urban residency programs in
Illinois and nationally.

Key partners include:

e Chicago Public Schools (CPS). CPS is AUSL’s primary partner in delivering the
turnaround school model.

o Serve lllinois (AmeriCorps). AUSL is a new AmeriCorps program and joins the Serve
Ilinois network of more than 30 programs in the state. Through the residency program,
AUSL’s AmeriCorps members have the opportunity to earn an education award while
serving in AUSL’s network schools.

e New Leaders for New Schools. AUSL uses a variety of sources for leadership talent,
with New Leaders for New Schools as one such source. We have worked closely with
New Leaders to prepare principals to specifically work in our turnaround schools. New
Leaders has also shared data-driven instruction resources with AUSL.

e City Year. City Year (also an AmeriCorps program) corps members serve at all AUSL
elementary turnaround schools to implement essential school-based interventions in order
to: 1) provide literacy tutoring for underperforming children and youth in grades 1-3; 2)
establish a positive school climate for students, and 3) operate a skills-and civics-based
after-school program.

o UCAN. AUSL also started a neighborhood-specific pilot project with UCAN (a social
service organization that focuses on healing trauma, educating children and families, and
preventing violence), for a cluster of schools (two elementary high-need schools and one
training academy). UCAN provides a range of programs, such as in-class violence
prevention workshops, a youth leadership development institute, and in-home services for
families of students at-risk for dropout or expulsion due to truancy, academic or
behavioral problems. AUSL and UCAN plan to expand the program to all new AUSL-
network schools.
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e Urban Teacher Residency United (UTRU). AUSL is a founding partner of UTRU and
has been active participants in the sharing, analysis, and codification of best practices in
teacher residencies. AUSL participates in UTRU’s Residency for Residencies Program,
by participating in panel discussions and hosting site visits for school district’s seeking to
start a residency program.

e University Partners — National Louis University, Erikson Institute, and the University of
Illinois at Chicago. All university partners support AUSL by co-developing and
delivering innovative and tailored programs and calendars to align university master's
degree coursework with in-school apprenticeship experiences; supporting AUSL
residents financially with discounted tuition and assistance in securing financial aid; and
assisting AUSL in our processes to select and provide orientation to new residents, and to
evaluate their performance.

References.

e Andre Cowling, Principal of the Harvard School of Excellence
Email: accowling@cps.k12.il.us
Phone: 773-535-3045
Address: 7525 S. Harvard Ave, Chicago, IL 60620
e Keisha Campbell, Principal of the Howe School of Excellence
Email: ksrobinson@cps.k12.il.us
Phone: 773-534-6060
Address: 730 N. Lorel Ave, Chicago, IL 60634
o Barbara Eason-Watkins, Chief Education Officer, Chicago Public Schools
Email: bewatkins@cps.k12.il.us
Phone: 773-553-1485
Address: 125 S. Clark St, Chicago, IL 60610
¢ Ron Huberman, Chief Executive Officer, Chicago Public Schools
Email: huberman@cps.edu
Phone: 773-553-1510
Address: 125 S. Clark St, Chicago, IL 60610
e Melissa Megliola-Zaikos, Performance Schools Officer, Chicago Public Schools
Email: mzaikos@cps.k12.il.us
Phone: 773-553-2902
Address: 125 S. Clark St, Chicago, IL 60610

Fiscal and Management Capabilities

Organization Description. AUSL is a tax-exempt organization under section 501(c)(3) and
classified as a public charity under 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) of the Internal Revenue Code
(see appendix for tax-exempt determination letter and Illinois determination letter). AUSL is
incorporated in the state of Illinois.

AUSL was founded in 2001 by Mike Koldyke, venture capitalist and philanthropist. AUSL was
founded as a teacher training organization, started one of the first residency programs in the

country. Since then AUSL has trained over 310 new teachers and managed 14 schools. Eight of
these schools are turnaround schools. The Executive Director of AUSL is Dr. Don Feinstein, an
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18-year veteran of Chicago Public Schools and former principal of AUSL’s first school, the
Chicago Academy.

Staff Qualifications. AUSL’s staff consists of highly qualified educators and business people.
Executive Director, Dr. Don Feinstein, is a school principal of over 20 years in Chicago Public
Schools and led the first residency training academy. Managing Director of Elementary Schools,
Dr. Jarvis Sanford, served as a teacher and principal in CPS for over 15 years. As the principal of
Dodge, Dr. Sanford was responsible for the highest achievement gains in the state. Managing
Director of High Schools, Brian Sims, opened the first high school training academy in Chicago.
Managing Director of Finance and Administration, Tim Cawley, left a 30 year business career
with a Fortune 500 company to join AUSL. See appendix for resumes of all key staff.

Executive Director, Dr. Don Feinstein earned a Ph.D. in Foundations of Education in 1984
from Loyola University. In 2001, Dr. Feinstein stepped down as Principal of R. Nathaniel Dett
Elementary School after seventeen years to become Principal of The Chicago Academy, the
Academy for Urban School Leadership’s first teacher training academy. Prior to serving in the
role of Principal, Dr. Feinstein worked for five years in Chicago Public Schools’ central office as
the City-wide Administrator of Programs for Emotionally Disturbed Students. At the beginning
of his career, Dr. Feinstein taught grades four, six, and special education. Since 2003, Dr.
Feinstein has served as Executive Director of AUSL.

Managing Director of Elementary Schools, Dr. Jarvis Sanford began his professional career
in 1993 as a Student Development Coordinator for the University of Wisconsin in Milwaukee.
Promotion to several other administrative positions enabled Dr. Sanford to consistently
demonstrate his outstanding leadership skill and ability. Dr. Sanford’s administrative career with
the Chicago Public Schools began after he successfully completed the prestigious New Leaders
for New Schools Program. In 2003, Jarvis became principal at Dodge Renaissance Academy. By
the end of 2004-05 school year, Dodge was recognized locally and nationally for the highest
academic achievement gains in the state of Illinois. In 2007 Dr. Sanford was promoted to oversee
all 11 AUSL elementary schools.

Managing Director of High Schools, Brian Sims, joined AUSL in 2003 with responsibility for
designing and launching AUSL’s first training high school, which opened in the fall of 2004. He
served as principal of the Chicago Academy High School from 2004-2007. Prior to joining
AUSL, Brian was an assistant principal at an award-winning charter high school in San
Francisco. Brian began his career in education as a middle and high school social studies and
English teacher in Lafayette, Louisiana and Newark, New Jersey. He has Master’s degrees in
History and Education from Stanford University and a B.A. from Dartmouth College. Brian
received his Principal Certification from National-Louis University and is a graduate of New
Leaders for New Schools.

Managing Director of Finance and Administration, Tim Cawley, left a 30 year business
career with a Fortune 500 company to join AUSL. He is responsible for the oversight of finance,
accounting, development, information technology, human resources, communications, teacher
recruitment, and physical infrastructure improvements. Most recently, Cawley served as senior
vice president of Global Logistics and Fulfillment for Motorola’s Integrated Supply Chain, which
comprised all transportation, storage, and distribution fulfillment for all of Motorola’s businesses
worldwide. Prior to joining Motorola in 2001, Cawley held management positions with
SBC/Ameritech Inc., beginning in 1993 as vice president of marketing and later as president of its
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Small Business Services unit. Cawley was appointed president of SBC/Ameritech International
in 1997, and was based in Brussels, Belgium, where he served on the boards of several European
telecom companies. Cawley also served as chief executive officer for Revell-Monogram, world
leader in hobby model kits. He began his career with Procter & Gamble, the world’s largest
consumer packaged-goods company.

Financial Resources. AUSL’s programs are funded by private donors, foundations, management
fees from the Chicago Public schools, and government grants. In FY 2009 ended June 30,
AUSL’s revenues were $12.2 million, of which $6.1 million were from sources other than
Chicago Public Schools. AUSL currently has a surplus of $2.9 million, sufficient to run
operations for six months prior to receiving partnership funds. See appendix for audited
financials and tax filings. AUSL is audited by Mann.Weitz & Associates L.L.C on an annual
basis. Our fiscal year runs from July 1 until June 30.

Organizational Resources. In 2007, using funds from a Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation
grant, AUSL undertook a strategic review with Bridgespan, a highly regarded non-profit
consulting firm. This strategic review set out growth goals and corresponding organizational and
financial needs. AUSL has built financial and management capacity in line with the
recommendations of that review, and is now operating in accordance with a five-year plan that
anticipates that AUSL will steadily grow its capacity to manage schools from a network of 14
schools in 2009-10 to a network of up to 38 schools by 2013-14. See appendix for current five
year financial plan.

After this strategic review, AUSL hired new staff to take on the complexities of managing a
network of schools. Since 2007, AUSL’s central staff has almost doubled. This added capacity
also brought much needed skills including financial and human resource expertise. The result is a
skilled and experienced team capable of managing a large network of schools.

The current central office organization is sufficient for the added schools proposed here. As
described above, we would add three additional positions if we are selected to manage schools in
a district other than Chicago. Below is our proposed organization chart (for central staff, school
principals report directly to the managing director of elementary schools or high schools). Blue
indicates current positions, red indicates new positions. These positions are detailed in the budget
and work plan.

30
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Our implementation timeline for hiring and training new staff (including school staff) is detailed
in the work plan above.

Exceptions to RSFP

AUSL will ask for the following exceptions to appendix F, attachment 10:

1. Section 4a. AUSL would like ISBE to agree not to unreasonably withhold consent to the
use of a qualified subcontractor.

2. Section 6. AUSL would like to reserve the right to retain copies of custom work product,
embedded software and generic components.

3. Section 7b. AUSL requests the covenant to keep information confidential be qualified to
allow any disclosures required by any applicable laws.

4. Section 8. AUSL requests exception to correct any defective or deficient services of
which Contractor has been notified.

5. Section 9. AUSL requests exception to the 10 days termination notice requirement to
limit termination for cause. If a short termination notice is required, AUSL would like
ISBE and/or the district to fulfill financial commitments already agreed upon.

Contracts with ISBE

AUSL was awarded an Induction Coaching Pilot grant from ISBE for the period of April 1
through August 31, 2009. The grant award number is ISBE 09-3982-00-65-108-0790-51. AUSL
currently has no other contracts with ISBE.
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Appendix

Existing performance data worksheet (RSFP Appendix E)
2008 IRS 990

2007 IRS 990

2009 audited financials

Illinois Articles of Incorporation

Illinois Tax-Exempt Status

Resumes

Tim Cawley

Laura Couchman

Don Feinstein

Jarvis Sanford

Brian Sims

Michael Whitmore

8. Parent testimonials

9. AUSL “Signature Strategies”

10. Example of NWEA teacher report

11. AUSL’s CPS Turnaround School Proposal

12. AUSL’s CPS Turnaround School Proposal Exhibits 13, 18, 21 and 22
13. AUSL’s CPS Turnaround School Pre-Qualification

NogokrwdE
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ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP - EXISTING PERFORMANCE DATA WORKSHEET

AUSL Elementary Schools

School Year SYO7 SYO8 SY09 |SYO7 SYO8 SY09 |SYO7 SYO8 < SY09 |SYO7 SYO8 < SY09 |SYO7 SYO8 < SY09
Summary
School Name: Chicago Academy Dodge Tarkington Sherman Harvard
School District/Location:1 Chicago District 299 Chicago District 299 Chicago District 299 Chicago District 299 Chicago District 299
Year Opened: 2001 2003 2005 2006 2007
Current Grades Served: PK-8 PK-8 PK-8 PK-8 PK-8
Current Enroliment: 590 471 1111 520 466
School Model
(Public/Charter/Other): Public Public Public Public Public
School Type (New
Start/Turnaround): New Start Turnaround (Closed FY03) [New Start Turnaround Turnaround
Current Status (Academic Early
Warning Status (AES), Academic
Watch Status (AWS),
Restructuring): None None None Restructuring Restructuring
Demographic & Socio-Economic
% Students Eligible for
oS Free/Reduced Lunch: 65.0% 86.0% 94.0% 94.0% 97.0%
£ % Students Limited English
»  Proficient: 9.3% 0.0% 26.0% 0.3% 0.0%
%Students with Disabilities: 16.3% 11.9% 10.2% 11.0% 6.7%
% Students Eligible for
© Free/Reduced Lunch: 82.7% 82.7% 82.7% 82.7% 82.7%
% % Students Limited English
A Proficient: 15.1% 15.1% 15.1% 15.1% 15.1%
% Students with Disabilities 12.2% 12.2% 12.2% 12.2% 12.2%
State Assessments
Assessment Name (Reading,
Math): ISAT ISAT ISAT ISAT ISAT
% Students Scoring “Meets” or
_ above — Reading: 82.7% 85.1% 83.7% |62.8% 69.7% 72.4% [61.9% 685% 65.2% [33.2% 40.3% 46.5% ([31.8% 36.2% 51.8%
_§ % Students Scoring “Meets” or
3 above — Math: 91.6% 91.6% 92.1% |74.3% 79.4% 84.4% |[70.2% T74.2% 74.9% (39.1% 46.4% 58.8% (33.9% 47.4% 64.2%
% Students Scoring “Meets” or
above — Composite 86.2% 88.3% 90.0% |64.9% 725% 77.2% |[65.7% 69.6% 72.3% (34.9% 40.2% 51.0% (31.8% 40.1% 56.4%
% Students Scoring “Meets” or
.. above — Reading: 60.9% 66.7% 67.8% |60.9% 66.7% 67.8% [60.9% 66.7% 67.8% [60.9% 66.7% 67.8% [60.9% 66.7% 67.8%
g % Students Scoring “Meets” or
-‘Dﬁ above — Math: 68.6% 70.5% 73.6% |68.6% 70.5% 73.6% [68.6% 70.5% 73.6% [68.6% 70.5% 73.6% ([68.6% 70.5% 73.6%
% Students Scoring “Meets” or
above — Composite 64.1% 67.8% 69.8% |64.1% 67.8% 69.8% |64.1% 67.8% 69.8% [64.1% 67.8% 69.8% [64.1% 67.8% 69.8%
% White Students Scoring “Meets”
or above — Reading: 93% 94%
% White Students Scoring “Meets”
or above — Math: 95% 93%




School Year SYO7 SYO8 SY09 |SYO7 SYO8 < SY09 |SYO7 SYO8 < SY09 |SYO7 < SYO8 < SY09 |SYO7  SY08 < SYO09

% Black Students Scoring “Meets”

or above — Reading: 62% 78% 69% 72% 57% 58% 40% 46% 36% 51%

% Black Students Scoring “Meets”

or above — Math: 70% 85% 79% 84% 60% 63% 46% 59% A47% 64%

% Hispanic Students Scoring

“Meets” or above — Reading: 83% 87% 74% 75%

% Hispanic Students Scoring

“Meets” or above — Math: 96% 95% 82% 82%

% Asian Students Scoring “Meets”

or above — Reading: 91% 91%

% Asian Students Scoring “Meets”

or above — Math: 90% 90%

% ELL Students Scoring “Meets” or

above — Reading: 85% 13% 31%

% ELL Students Scoring “Meets” or

above — Math: 94% 34% 31%

% IEP Students Scoring “Meets” or

above — Reading: 20% 55% 3% 24% 15% 7% 14% 8%

% IEP Students Scoring “Meets” or

above — Math: 45% 50% 40% 29% 33% 12% 18% 18%

% Low Income Students Scoring

“Meets” or above — Reading: 78% 85% 65% 71% 67% 68% 32% 42% 35% 51%

% Low Income Students Scoring

“Meets” or above — Math: 88% 90% 78% 84% 73% 75% A47% 59% 38% 64%
_§ Student Attendance Rates: 95% 96% 96% 93% 96% 96% 91% 92% 92% 93%
A Teacher Retention Rates: 90% 93% 90% 84% 95% 93% 80% 90% 90% 96%
B Student Attendance Rates
_‘D@ (includes elementary & high school) 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90%

Teacher Retention Rates:

NA
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AUSL Elementary Schools

School Year SYO07 SYO08 SY09 SY07 SY08 SY09 SY07 SYO08 SY09
Summary
School Name: National Teachers Academy Howe Morton
School District/Location:1 Chicago District 299 Chicago District 299 Chicago District 299
Year Opened: 2007 2008 2008
Current Grades Served: PK-8 PK-8 PK-8
Current Enrollment: 427 548 279
School Model
(Public/Charter/Other): Public Public Public
School Type (New
Start/Turnaround): Other Turnaround Turnaround
Current Status (Academic Early
Warning Status (AES), Academic
Watch Status (AWS),
Restructuring): Corrective Action Restructuring Restructuring
Demographic & Socio-Economic
% Students Eligible for
B Free/Reduced Lunch: 98.0% 97.0% 92.0%
% % Students Limited English
0 Proficient: 0.6% 0.0% 0.5%
%Students with Disabilities: 11.3% 13.5% 13.1%
% Students Eligible for
‘© Free/Reduced Lunch: 82.7% 82.7% 82.7%
£ % Students Limited English
a Proficient: 15.1% 15.1% 15.1%
% Students with Disabilities 12.2% 12.2% 12.2%
State Assessments
Assessment Name (Reading,
Math): ISAT ISAT ISAT
% Students Scoring “Meets” or
_ above — Reading: 45.0% 56.5% 56.2% 33.6% 49.6% 48.9% 36.2% 39.9% 31.1.%
§ % Students Scoring “Meets” or
3 above — Math: 55.5% 56.6% 64.1% 40.2% 40.2% 58.8% 32.4% 42.8% 37.7%
% Students Scoring “Meets” or
above — Composite 48.4% 55.9% 59.7% 36.7% 42.8% 50.6% 32.8% 41.0% 33.2%
% Students Scoring “Meets” or
.. above — Reading: 60.9% 66.7% 67.8% 60.9% 66.7% 67.8% 60.9% 66.7% 67.8%
g % Students Scoring “Meets” or
-g above — Math: 68.6% 70.5% 73.6% 68.6% 70.5% 73.6% 68.6% 70.5% 73.6%
% Students Scoring “Meets” or
above — Composite 64.1% 67.8% 69.8% 64.1% 67.8% 69.8% 64.1% 67.8% 69.8%




School Year SYO07 SYO08 SY09 SYO07 SY08 SY09 SYQ7 SY08 SY09

% White Students Scoring “Meets”

or above — Reading:

% White Students Scoring “Meets”

or above — Math:

% Black Students Scoring “Meets”

or above — Reading: 56% 56% 49% 48% 39% 29%

% Black Students Scoring “Meets”

or above — Math: 56% 64% 40% 58% 42% 37%

% Hispanic Students Scoring

“Meets” or above — Reading:

% Hispanic Students Scoring

“Meets” or above — Math:

% Asian Students Scoring “Meets”

or above — Reading:

% Asian Students Scoring “Meets”

or above — Math:

% ELL Students Scoring “Meets” or

above — Reading:

% ELL Students Scoring “Meets” or

above — Math:

% IEP Students Scoring “Meets” or

above — Reading: 15% 6% 10% 10%

% IEP Students Scoring “Meets” or

above — Math: 12% 15% 17% 14%

% Low Income Students Scoring

“Meets” or above — Reading: 54% 55% 47% 31%

% Low Income Students Scoring

“Meets” or above — Math: 56% 64% 58% 38%
§ Student Attendance Rates: 93% 93% 93% 93% 92% 92%
@ Teacher Retention Rates: 60% 86% 82% 65%
B Student Attendance Rates
fg (includes elementary & high school) 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90%

Teacher Retention Rates:
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AUSL High Schools

School Year

SY07 SY08 SY09

SY07 SY08

SY09

SY07 SY08

SY09

Summary

School Name:

School District/Location:1
Year Opened:

Current Grades Served:
Current Enrollment:

School Model (Public/Charter/Other):
School Type (New Start/Turnaround):
Current Status (Academic Early

Warning Status (AES), Academic
Watch Status (AWS), Restructuring):

Chicago Academy High School
Chicago District 299

2004

9-12

497

Public

New Start

None

Collins Academy High School
Chicago District 299

2007

9-11 (will be 9-12 in 2010)
350

Public

Phase-Out

None

Orr Academy High School
Chicago District 299

2008

9-12

1139

Public

Turnaround

Restructuring

School

District

School

District

Demographic & Socio-Economic
% Students Eligible for Free/Reduced
Lunch:

% Students Limited English
Proficient:

%Students with Disabilities:

% Students Eligible for Free/Reduced
Lunch:

% Students Limited English
Proficient:

% Students with Disabilities

81.0%

2%
18%

82.7%

15.1%
12.2%

98.0%

0%
21%

82.7%

15.1%
12.2%

95.0%

4%
29%

82.7%

15.1%
12.2%

State Assessments

Assessment Name (Reading, Math):
% Students Scoring “Meets” or above
— Reading:

% Students Scoring “Meets” or above
— Math:

% Students Scoring “Meets” or above
— Composite

% Students Scoring “Meets” or above
— Reading:

% Students Scoring “Meets” or above
— Math:

% Students Scoring “Meets” or above
— Composite

% White Students Scoring “Meets” or
above — Reading:

% White Students Scoring “Meets” or
above — Math:

% Black Students Scoring “Meets” or
above — Reading:

% Black Students Scoring “Meets” or
above — Math:

PSAE

32.0% 32.0%
33.0% 28.0%
30% 34%

28% 27%

47% 54%

43% 27%

23% 29%

23% 12%

PSAE

PSAE

30%

28%

14.0%

2.0%

34%

27%

14%

3%




School Year SYQ7 SY08 SY09 SY07 SY08 SY09 SY07 SY08 SY09

% Hispanic Students Scoring “Meets”

or above — Reading: 28% 22% 16%

% Hispanic Students Scoring “Meets”

or above — Math: 30% 35% 0%

% Asian Students Scoring “Meets” or

above — Reading:

% Asian Students Scoring “Meets” or

above — Math:

% ELL Students Scoring “Meets” or

above — Reading:

% ELL Students Scoring “Meets” or

above — Math:

% IEP Students Scoring “Meets” or

above — Reading: 10% 11% 0%

% IEP Students Scoring “Meets” or

above — Math: 1% 0% 0%

% Low Income Students Scoring

“Meets” or above — Reading: 32% 30% 14%

% Low Income Students Scoring

“Meets” or above — Math: 32% 27% 2%

Student Attendance Rates: 90% 93% 89% 89% 73%
§ Student Graduation Rates (1 year): 96% 98% 71%
B Student College Attendance Rates: 95%

Teacher Retention Rates: 91% 100% 73% 33% 89%
- Student Attendance Rates (includes
g elementary & high school) 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90%
-g Student Graduation Rates (5 year): 55% 54% 55% 54% 55% 54%

Student College Attendance Rates:
Teacher Retention Rates:
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be sure to file a complete return

L Gross receipts Add lines 6b, 8b,9b,and 10btoline 12 » 18,140,572

H(b) If "Yes" enter number of affiliates &

H(c) Are all affiliates included? [ Yes [ No
(If "No," attach a list See instructions )

H(d) Is this a separate retum filed by an organization
covered by a group ruling? I_ Yes |7 No

I Group Exemption Number &

M Check & I_ If the organization 1s not required to

attach Sch B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF)

m Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets or Fund Balances (See the instructions.)

1 Contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts received
a Contributions to donor advised funds . . . . . 1a
b Direct public support (not included on line 1a) . . . 1ib 14,209,766
[ Indirect public support (not included online1a) . . . . 1c
d Government contributions (grants) (not included on line 1a) id 3,908,625
e Total (add lines 1a through 1d) (cash $ 18,118,391 noncash $ ) le 18,118,391
2 Program service revenue Including government fees and contracts (from Part VII, line 93) 2
3 Membership dues and assessments 3
4 Interest on savings and temporary cash investments 4
5 Dividends and interest from securities 5 19,901
6a Grossrents . . . . . . . . 0 . ... 6a
b Less rental expenses . . . . . . . . . . . 6b
[ Net rental iIncome or (loss) subtract line 6b from line 6a 6¢C
w 7 Other investment income (describe W= ) 7
'_:” 8a Gross amount from sales of assets (A) Securities (B) Other
= other than inventory . . . . . 8a
b Less cost or other basis and sales expenses 8b
[ Gain or (loss) (attach schedule) . . 8c
d Net gain or (loss) Combine line 8¢, columns (A) and (B) 8d
9 Special events and activities (attach schedule) If any amount 1s from gaming, check here s
a Gross revenue (not including $ of
contributions reported on line 1W e e e e e 9a 0
b Less direct expenses other than fundraising expenses . . 9b 23,394
[ Net income or (loss) from special events Subtract line 9b from line 9a 9c -23,394
10a Gross sales of inventory, less returns and allowances . . . 10a
b Less costofgoodssold . . . . . . . . . . . 10b
[ Gross profit or (loss) from sales of inventory (attach schedule) Subtract line 10b from line 10a 10c
11 Other revenue (from Part VII, ine 103) 11 2,280
12 Total revenue Add lines 1e,2,3,4,5,6c,7,8d,9c,10c,and 11 12 18,117,178
13 Program services (from line 44, column (B)) 13 7,742,232
o 14 Management and general (from line 44, column (C)) 14 655,860
E 15 Fundraising (from line 44, column (D)) 15 200,106
o 16 Payments to affiliates (attach schedule) 16
17 Total expenses Add lines 16 and 44, column (A) 17 8,598,198
" 18 Excess or (deficit) for the year Subtract line 17 from line 12 18 9,518,980
E 19 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (from line 73, column (A)) 19 2,657,674
.-:u 20 Other changes In net assets or fund balances (attach explanation) 20 0
= 21 Net assets or fund balances at end of year Combine lines 18,19, and 20 21 12,176,654

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Cat No 11282Y Form 990 (2007)



Form 990 (2007) Page 2

m Statement of All organizations must complete column (A) Columns (B), (C), and (D) are required for section
Functional Expenses 501(c)(3) and (4) organizations and section 4947 (a)(1) nonexempt charitable trusts but optional
for others (See the instructions.)

%0 by 5ty 9b, 100, o 16.0F Part @Total | (B InOm | N senermi | () Fundraisng
22a Grants paid from donor advised funds (attach Schedule)
(cash $ noncash $ )
If this amount includes foreign grants, check here I |_ 22a
22b Other grants and allocations (attach schedule)
(cash $ noncash $ )
If this amount includes foreign grants, check here I |_ 22b
23 Specific assistance to individuals (attach schedule) 23
24 Benefits paid to or for members (attach schedule) 24
25a Compensation of current officers, directors, key employees
etc Listed in Part V-A (attach schedule) . . . . 25a 137,008 61,654 61,653 13,701
b Compensation of former officers, directors, key employees
etc listed in Part V-B (attach schedule) . . . . 25b
c¢ Compensation and other distributions not icluded above to
disqualified persons (as defined under section 4958 (f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) (attach schedule) 25c¢
26 Salaries and wages of employees not included
onlines 25a,bandc . . . . . . . . . . 26 3,567,142 3,231,679 270,603 64,860
27 Pension plan contributions not included on
lines 25a,bandc . . . . . . . . . . . 27
28 Employee benefits not included on lines
25a-27 . . . . . . . . . . . 28 114,073 90,925 21,344 1,804
29 Payrolltaxes . . . . .+ .+ .+ .+ . . 29 259,335 217,754 35,582 5,999
30 Professional fundraising fees . . . . . . 30
31 Accountingfees . . . . . . . . . 31 40,310 40,310
32 Legalfees . . . . . .+ .+ . . . . 32
33 Supplles . .+ . .+ .+ . 4 . ... 33 22,140 13,311 8,617 212
34 Telephone . . . . . .+ .+ . . . . 34
35 Postage and shipping . . . . . . . . 35
36 Occupancy . « &« « &« & & o« . 36
37 Equipment rental and maintenance . . . . 37 7,298 750 6,548
38 Printing and publications . . . . . . . 38 13,421 773 12,345 303
39 Travel . .+ . .+ + & & 4 4 4 .. 39 16,281 11,975 3,814 492
40 Conferences, conventions, and meetings . . 40 78,804 51,169 2,614 25,021
41 Interest . . . . .+ .+ . . . . . 41
42 Depreciation, depletion, etc (attach schedule) E 42 12,241 12,241
43 Other expenses not covered above (itemize)
a See Additional Data Table 43a
b 43b
c 43c
d 43d
e 43e
f 43f
g 43g
44 Total functional expenses. Add lines 22a through 43g
(Organizations completing columns (B)-(D), carry these totals
to lnes 13—15) .+ .« . 44 8,598,198 7,742,232 655,860 200,106

Joint Costs. Check = [ ifyou are following SOP 98-2
Are any joint costs from a combined educational campaign and fundraising solicitation reported in (B) Program services? [ Yes [ No

If "Yes," enter (i) the aggregate amount of these joint costs $ , (i) the amount allocated to Program services $ ,
(iii) the amount allocated to Management and general $ , and (iv) the amount allocated to Fundraising $

Form 990 (2007)



Form 990 (2007) Page 3

m Statement of Program Service Accomplishments (See the instructions.)

Form 990 1s available for public inspection and, for some people, serves as the primary or sole source of information about a particular
organization How the public perceives an organization in such cases may be determined by the information presented on its return
Therefore, please make sure the returnis complete and accurate and fully describes, in Part III, the organization’s programs and
accomplishments

What 1s the organization's primary exempt purpose? B The academy for urban school leadership (ausl) will
improve student achievement in chicago's high- Program Service
poverty, chronically failing schools through its Expenses
disciplined transformation process, built on a (Required for 501(c)(3) and

foundation of specially trained AUSL teachers (4) orgs , and 4947(a)(1)
trusts, but optional for

others )

All organizations must describe their exempt purpose achievements in a clear and concise manner State the number of clients served,
publications Issued, etc Discuss achievements that are not measurable (Section 501(c)(3) and (4) organizations and 4947(a)(1) nonexempt
chantable trusts must also enter the amount of grants and allocations to others )

a Teaching Academies-AUSL trains new teachers through an innovative urban teacher's residency program at one
of our six teacher training academies Residents take most of their masters' degree coursework in the summer
When school starts, they are paired with a master teacher who guides them through an entire school year of
"student teaching” Residents committo 4 yrs in an underperforming Chicago public school in return for a
$32,000 stipend during their training yr They also receive Iintense induction coaching during during their first
two years as a new teacher AUSL trained teachers are placed in turnaround schools to create a team of "turn-
around ready" teachers prepared to change the culture of a once failing school Over 240 residents have been
trained

(Grants and allocations $ ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here & - 5,332,323

b Turnaround Schools- AUSL turns around failing Chicago public schools through a disciplined transformation
process built on a foundation of specially trained AUSL teachers Under our turnaround model, the adults in the
building are asked to leave and the children stay AUSL hires a new principal and works with the principal to hire
the new team of teachers, leaders and staff for the school The principal also manages the complete renovation of
the school as well as the implementaion of a new curriculum When students return from summer break, they are
met by a new staff, faculty, curriculum, after school program, and a renovated building This total school
transformation is beginning to show results in some of the lowest performing schools in Chicago Over 6,000
students served in 11 schools, 10% improvement in state testing standards in 2007-2008 school year

(Grants and allocations $ ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here & [~ 465,287

¢ Central Program - As part of its mission, AUSL uses Central Program staff to provide support to both Turnaround
Schools & Teacher Training Academies This includes principal recruitment, curriculum development &
assessment, summer professional development, coaching assistance, community initiatives, administration of
curricular enhancement programs, & recruitment, admission & management of residents

(Grants and allocations $ ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here & ~ 1,944,622

(Grants and allocations $ ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here & ~

e Other program services (attach schedule)
(Grants and allocations $ ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here & -

f Total of Program Service Expenses (should equal line 44, column (B), Program services) . . . . - 7,742,232
Form 990 (2007)




Form 990 (2007) Page 4
IEXYiE1 Balance Sheets (See the instructions.)
Note: Where required, attached schedules and amounts within the description (A) (B)
column should be for end-of-year amounts only. Beginning of year End of year
45 Cash—non-interest-bearing 599,779 45 1,155,366
46 Savings and temporary cash investments 46
47a Accounts receivable . . . . . 47a
b Less allowance for doubtful accounts 47b 57,973( 47c
48a Pledges receivable . . . . . . 48a 11,218,075
b Less allowance for doubtful accounts 48b 2,282,370| 48c 11,218,075
49 Grants receivable 49
50a Receivables from current and former officers, directors, trustees, and
key employees (attach schedule) 50a
b Recelvables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section
4958(c)(3)(B) (attach schedule) 50b
51a  (ther notes and loans receivable (attach
schedule) . . . . .+ . . . 51a
g b Less allowance for doubtful accounts 51b 51c
ﬂ 52 Inventories for sale or use 52
= 53 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 59,712| 53 141,411
54a Investments—publicly-traded securities . + [ Cost [T FMV 54a
b Investments—other securities (attach schedule) » [ Cost [~ FMV 54b
55a Investments—Iland, buildings, and
equipment basis . . . . . . 55a
b Less accumulated depreciation (attach
schedule) . . . . . . . . 55b 55c¢
56 Investments—other (attach schedule) 56
57a Land, buildings, and equipment basis 57a 418,279
b Less accumulated depreciation (attach
schedule) . .+ . . .+ .« . . 57b 247,456 47,104 57¢ 170,823
58 Other assets, including program-related investments
(describe m
) 0| 58 4,015
59 Total assets (must equal line 74) Add lines 45 through 58 3,046,938 59 12,689,690
60 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 190,574 60 222,883
61 Grants payable 61
62 Deferred revenue 62 100,000
. |63 Loans from officers, directors, trustees, and key employees (attach
I schedule) 63
L | 64a Tax-exempt bond habilities (attach schedule) 64a
b Mortgages and other notes payable (attach schedule) 64b
65 Other liablilities (describe & ) 198,690 65 190,153
66 Total liabilities Add lines 60 through 65 389,264 66 513,036
Organizations that follow SFAS 117, check here & 2 and complete lines
67 through 69 and lines 73 and 74
i | 67  Unrestricted 666,726 67 529,429
FE'J 68 Temporarily restricted 1,990,948 68 11,647,225
E 69 Permanently restricted 69
E Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117, check here » ~ and
u-_: complete lines 70 through 74
s |70 Capital stock, trust principal, or current funds 70
g 71 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, and equipment fund 71
ﬂ 72 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 72
f 73 Total net assets or fund balances Add lines 67 through 69 orlines 70
; through 72 (Column (A) must equal line 19 and column (B) must equal
line 21) 2,657,674 73 12,176,654
74 Total liabilities and net assets / fund balances Add lines 66 and 73 3,046,938 74 12,689,690

Form 990 (2007)



Form 990 (2007) Page 5
m Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return (See
the instructions.)
Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements a 18,184,572
Amounts Included on line a but not on Part I, line 12
1 Net unrealized gains on Investments b1l
2 Donated services and use of facilities b2 44,000
3 Recoveries of prior year grants b3
4 Other (specify)
b4 23,394
Add lines bl through b4 b 67,394
[ Subtract line bfrom line a [ 18,117,178
d Amounts Iincluded on Part I, line 12, but not on line a
1 Investment expenses not included on PartI, line
6b d1
2 Other (specify)
d2
Add lines d1 and d2 d 67,394
e Total revenue (PartI, line 12) Add lines cand 18,117,178
d. . . . . .+ . 0 000w e e e
1 EATRY -l Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return
a Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements a 8,665,592
b Amounts Iincluded on line a but not on Part I, line 17
Donated services and use of facilities b1l 44,000
Prior year adjustments reported on Part I, line
20 b2
3 Losses reported on PartI, line
20 b3
4 Other (specify)
b4 23,394
Add lines bl through b4 b 67,394
[ Subtract line bfrom line a [ 8,598,198
d Amounts Included on Part I, line 17, but not on line a:
1 Investment expenses not included on PartI, line
6b d1
2 Other (specify)
d2
Add lines d1 and d2 d
e Total expenses (PartI, line 17) Add lines cand 8,598,198
d [ 3 e

m Current Officers, Directors, Trustee

s, and Key Employees (List each person who was an officer,

director, trustee, or key employee at any time during the year even If they were not compensated.) (See the

instructions.)

(A) Name and address

(B) Title and average hours
per week devoted to position

(D) Contnbutions to
(C) Compensation

(If not paid, enter -0-.)

plans

employee benefit plans &
deferred compensation

(E) Expense
account and other
allowances

See Additional Data Table

Form 990 (2007)



Form 990 (2007) Page 6
m Current Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees (continued) Yes No

75a Enter the total number of officers, directors, and trustees permitted to vote on organization business at board

meetings = +« -+ & 4 e e e e e e e e e e e .. w20

b Are any officers, directors, trustees, or key employees listed in Form 990, Part V-A, or highest compensated
employees listed in Schedule A, Part I, or highest compensated professional and other independent
contractors listed in Schedule A, Part II-A or II-B, related to each other through family or business

relationships? If “Yes,” attach a statement that identifies the individuals and explains the relationship(s) . 75b No

¢ Do any officers, directors, trustees, or key employees listed in Form 990, Part V-A, or highest compensated
employees listed in Schedule A, Part I, or highest compensated professional and other independent
contractors listed in Schedule A, Part II-A or II-B, receive compensation from any other organizations, whether

tax exempt or taxable, that are related to the organization? See the instructions for the definition of "related 75c No
organization™ . . . . . . 4 0w h a e e e e e e e e e e e e e e

If “Yes,” attach a statement that includes the information described in the instructions

d Does the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? . . 75d No
Former Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees That Recelved Compensatlon or Other

Benefits (If any former officer, director, trustee, or key employee received compensation or other benefits
(described below) during the year, list that person below and enter the amount of compensation or other
benefits in the appropriate column. See the instructions.)

(D) Contnbutions to
(C) Compensation employee benefit plans (E) Expense account and
(A) Name and address (B) Loans and Advances (If not paid enter -0- ) |and deferred compensation other allowances
plans

m Other Information (See the instructions.) Yes No
76 Did the organization make a change In its activities or methods of conducting activities? If "Yes," attach a

detailled statement of each change . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 76 No

77 Were any changes made in the organizing or governing documents but not reported to the IRS? . . . 77 No

If "Yes," attach a conformed copy of the changes

78a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more dunng the year covered by this retum? - . . 78a No
b If"Yes," has it filed a tax return on Form 990-T for this year> . . . . . . .. . .. . . 78b

79  Was there a liquidation, dissolution, termination, or substantial contraction duning the year? If "Yes," attach

a statement | . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 79 No

80a s the organization related (other than by association with a statewide or nationwide organization) through common membership,

goveming bodies, trustees, officers, etc, to any other exempt or nonexempt organization? . . . . . . 80a No

b If"Yes," enter the name of the organization e

and check whetheritis [ exemptor [ nonexempt

8l1la Enter direct orindirect political expenditures (See line 81 instructions) . . . | 81a |
b Did the organization file Form 1120-POL forthis year? . . . . . .+ .+ « « « &« &« & a a . 81b No
Form 990 (2007)




Form 990 (2007) Page 7
m Other Information (continued) Yes No
82a Did the organization receive donated services or the use of materials, equipment, or facilities at no charge or
at substantially less than fair rental value? 82a | Yes
b If "Yes," you may indicate the value of these items here Do not include this amount as revenue
in Part I or as an expense In Part II (See instructions in Part IIT) . . . . . . | 82b |
83a Did the organization comply with the public inspection requirements for returns and exemption applications? 83a | Yes
b Did the organization comply with the disclosure requirements relating to quid pro quo contributions? 83b
84a Did the organization solicit any contributions or gifts that were not tax deductible? 84a No
b If"Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or
gifts were not tax deductible? 84b
85 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) organizations. a Were substantially all dues nondeductible by members? 85a
b Did the organization make only in-house lobbying expenditures of $2,000 or less? 85b
If "Yes," was answered to either 85a or 85b, do not complete 85c¢ through 85h below unless the organization
recelved a waiver for proxy tax owed the prior year
¢ Dues assessments, and similar amounts from members . . . . . . . 85c¢
d Section 162(e) lobbying and political expenditures . . . . . . . . 85d
e Aggregate nondeductible amount of section 6033 (e)(1)(A) dues notices . . 85e
f Taxable amount of lobbying and political expenditures (line 85d less 85e) . . 85f
g Does the organization elect to pay the section 6033(e) tax on the amount on line 85f? 85¢g
h If section 6033(e)(1)(A) dues notices were sent, does the organization agree to add the amount on line 85f to Its
reasonable estimate of dues allocable to nondeductible lobbying and political expenditures for the following tax
year?
85h
86 501(c)(7)orgs. Enter alnitiation fees and capital contributions included online 12 | 86a
b Gross receipts, included on line 12, for public use of club facilities . . . . 86b
87 501(c)(12) orgs. Enter a Gross income from members or shareholders . . . 87a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other
sources against amounts due or received from them ) 87b
88a At any time during the year, did the organization own a 50% or greater interest in a taxable corporation or
partnership, or an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations sections 301 7701-2
and 301 7701-37? If"Yes," complete Part IX
88a No
b At any time during the year, did the organization directly or indirectly own a controlled entity within the meaning
of section 512(b)(13)? If yes complete Part XI
88b No
89a 501(c)(3) organizations Enter A mount of tax imposed on the organization during the year under
section 4911 0, section 4912 k= 0, section 4955 b 0
b 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) orgs. Did the organization engage in any section 4958 excess benefit transaction during
the year or did it become aware of an excess benefit transaction from a prior year? If "Yes," attach a statement
explaining each transaction 89b No
¢ Enter Amount of tax imposed on the organization managers or disqualified persons
during the year under sections 4912,4955,and 4958 . . . . . . . . m® 0
d Enter Amount oftax on line 89c, above, reimbursed by the organization . . . »
e All organizations. At any time during the tax year was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter
transaction?
89e No
f All organizations. Did the organization acquire direct or indirect interest in any applicable insurance contract?
89f No
g For supporting organizations and sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Di1d the supporting
organization, or a fund maintained by a sponsoring organization, have excess business holdings at any time
during the year?
89g No
90a List the states with which a copy of this return s filed = IL
b Number of employees employed In the pay period that includes March 12,2007 (See | 90b | 72
instructions ) . . . . . . . . . . .
91a 16 hooks are in care of - Clare Sullivan Telephone no w (773)534-0136
3400 N AUSTIN AVENUE
Located at »_CHICAGO, IL ZIP +4 w_50634
b At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in or a signature or other authority
over a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial Yes No
account)? 91b No

If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country m

See the Instructions for exceptions and filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22.1, Report of Foreign Bank and
Financial Accounts

Form 990 (2007)



Form 990 (2007)

m Other Information (continued)

¢ At any time during the calendar year, did the organization maintain an office outside of the United States?

If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country m

Page 8

Yes No

| 91c

No

92 Section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trusts filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041—Check here

and enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the tax year

» 2]

[EXIX%:] Analysis of Income-Producing Activities (See the instructions.)

Unrelated business income

Note: Enter gross amounts unless otherwise indicated.

93

o o

Q = 0 a n

94
95
96
97

98
99
100
101
102
103

104

Program service revenue

Excluded by section 512, 513, or 514

(R)
Business
code

(B)
Amount

(©)
Exclusion
code

(D)
Amount

(E)
Related or
exempt function
Income

Medicare/Medicald payments

Fees and contracts from government agencies
Membership dues and assessments

Interest on savings and temporary cash investments
Dividends and interest from securities

Net rental Income or (loss) from real estate
debt-financed property

non debt-financed property

Net rental iIncome or (loss) from personal property
Other investment income

Gain or (loss) from sales of assets other than inventory
Net income or (loss) from special events
Gross profit or (loss) from sales of inventory

Otherrevenue a Other income

14

19,901

01

-23,394

01

2,280

Subtotal (add columns (B), (D), and (E))

105 Total (add line 104, columns (B), (D), and (E))

Note: Line 105 plus Iine 1e, Part I, should equal the amount on line 12, Part I.

-1,213

-

-1,213

m Relationship of Activities to the Accomplishment of Exempt Purposes (See the instructions.)

Line No.

¥

Explain how each activity for which income Is reported in column (E) of Part VII contributed importantly to the accomplishment
of the organization's exempt purposes (other than by providing funds for such purposes)

m Information Regarding Taxable Subsidiaries and Disregarded Entities (See the instructions.)

(A) (B) © ) (E)
Name, address, and EIN of corporation, Percentage of Nature of activities Total Income End-of-year
partnership, or disregarded entity ownership interest assets
%
%
%
%
Information Regarding Transfers Associated with Personal Benefit Contracts (See the
instructions.)
(a) Dd the organization, duning the year, receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? l_ Yes |7 No
(b) Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? [~ Yes ¥ No

NOTE:

If "Yes" to (b)), file Form 8870 and Form 4720 (see instructions ).

Form 990 (2007)



Form 990 (2007)
Information Regarding Transfers To and From Controlled Entities Complete only if the organization is

Page 9

a controlling organization as defined in section 512(b)(13)
Yes No
106 Did the reporting organization make any transfers to a controlled entity as defined in section 512 (b)(13) of
the Code? If "Yes," complete the schedule below for each controlled entity
(A) (B) (©) (D)
Name and address of each Employer Identification Description of
. A mount of transfer
controlled entity Number transfer
a
b
c
Yes No
107 Did the reporting organization receive any transfers from a controlled entity as defined in section 512 (b)(13) of
the Code? If "Yes," complete the schedule below for each controlled entity
(A) (B) (©) (D)
Name and address of each Employer Identification Description of
. A mount of transfer
controlled entity Number transfer
a
b
c
Yes No
108 Did the organization have a binding written contract in effect on August 17,2006 covering the interests, rents,
royalties and annuities described in question 107 above?
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge
and belief, 1t I1s true, correct, and complete Declaration of preparer (other than officer) I1s based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge
Please 2008-11-13
S|gn Signature of officer Date
Here
donald feinstein executive director
Type or print name and title
Date Preparer’s SSN or PTIN (See Gen Inst W
Preparer’s ’ MARCY STEINDLER Ch“?d( " i ( !
i signature selr-
Paid 9 empolyed k I_
Preparer’s
Firm’s name (or yours
Use If self-employed), } EIN *
Only address, and ZIP + 4 \NN WEITZ & ASSOCIATES LLC

111 DEER LAKE ROAD SUITE 125

DEERFIELD, IL 60015

Phone no F (847) 267-3400




lefile GRAPHIC print - DO NOT PROCESS | As Filed Data - |

DLN: 93490318017668]|

SCHEDULE A
(Form 990 or
990EZ)

Department of the

Organization Exempt Under Section 501(c)(3) OMB No 1545-0047

(Except Private Foundation) and Section 501(e), 501(f), 501(k),

501(n), or 4947(a)(1) Nonexempt Charitable Trust

Supplementary Information—(See separate instructions.) 2 0 0 7

= MUST be completed by the above organizations and attached to their Form 990 or 990-EZ

Treasury
Internal Revenue
Service

Name of the organization

ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP

Employer identification number

36-4447457

m Compensation of the Five Highest Paid Employees Other Than Officers, Directors, and Trustees
(See page 1 of the instructions. List each one. If there are none, enter "None.")

(d) Contributions
(a) Name and address of each employee (b) Title and average hours (¢) Compensation to employee benefit acc(:L)mEtXapnednz:her
paid more than $50,000 per week devoted to position P plans & deferred allowances
compensation

B S

f1an >'mse Mng Dir - HS
3400 N AUSTIN AVE 40 00 147,115 0 0
CHICAGO,IL 60634
Michael Whitmore Dir of Res Pro
3400 N AUSTIN AVE 40 00 9 124,323 0 0
CHICAGO,IL 60634
Madeline Maraldi Dir of Spec Pro
3400 N AUSTIN AVE 40 00 " ) 109,731 0 0
CHICAGO,IL 60634
Diane Deckert Dir Curr & Assess
3400 N AUSTIN AVE 40 00 84,654 27 0
CHICAGO,IL 60634
Colleen Fulkerson DIr Curr & Assess
3400 N AUSTIN AVE 40 00 81,731 8,044 0
CHICAGO,IL 60634

Total number of other employees paid over

$50,000

> 15

m Compensation of the Five Highest Paid Independent Contractors for Professional Services
(See page 2 of the instructions. List each one (whether individual or firms). If there are none, enter

"None.")
(a) Name and address of each independent contractor paid more than $50,000 (b) Type of service (c) Compensation
LIFELONG LEARNING ASSOCIATION
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 181,021

PO BOX 2804
BLUE JAY,CA 92317

Total number of others receiving over $50,000 for

professional services

>

Part II-B Compensation of the Five Highest Paid Independent Contractors for Other Services
(List each contractor who performed services other than professional services, whether individual or
firms. If there are none, enter "None". See page 2 for instructions.)

(a) Name and address of each independent contractor paid more than $50,000

(b) Type of service (c) Compensation

None

Total number of other contractors receiving over
$50,000 for other services |

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 andCat No 11285F

Form 990-EZ.

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ)
2007



Schedule A (Form 990 or990-EZ) 2007 Page 2

LXXE¥if] Statements About Activities (See page 2 of the instructions.) Yes| No

1 During the year, has the organization attempted to influence national, state, or local legislation, include any attempt

to influence public opinion on a legislative matter or referendum? If "Yes," enter the total expenses paid or incurred In
connection with the lobbying activities ¢ 42,000 (Must equal amounts on line 38, Part VI-A, or line

1of Part VI-B) 1 Yes

Organizations that made an election under section 501 (h) by filing Form 5768 must complete Part VI-A Other
organizations checking "Yes" must complete Part VI-B AND attach a statement giving a detailed description of the
lobbying activities

2 During the year, has the organization, either directly or indirectly, engaged I1n any of the following acts with any
substantial contributors, trustees, directors, officers, creators, key employees, or members of their families, or with
any taxable organization with which any such person i1s affiliated as an officer, director, trustee, majority owner, or
principal beneficiary? (If the answer to any question is "Yes,” attach a detailed statement explaining the transactions.)

a Sale, exchange, or leasing property? 2a No
b Lending of money or other extension of credit? 2b No
¢ Furnishing of goods, services, or facilities? 2c No
d Payment of compensation (or payment or reimbursement of expenses If more than $1,000)? A 2d | Yes

e Transfer of any part of its Income or assets? 2e No

3a Did the organization make grants for scholarships, fellowships, student loans, etc ? (If “Yes,” attach an explanation

of how the organization determines that recipients qualify to receive payments ) 3a No
b Did the organization have a section 403(b) annuity plan for its employees? 3b | Yes

Did the organization receive or hold an easement for conservation purposes, including easements to preserve open

space, the environment , historic land areas or structures? If "Yes" attach a detailed statement 3c No
d Did the organization provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services? 3d No

da Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds? If *Yes,” complete lines 4b through 4g If*No,” complete lines

4fand 4g 4a No
b Did the organization make any taxable distributions under section 49667 4b

Did the organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 4c

Enter the total number of donor advised funds owned at the end of the tax year [
e Enterthe aggregate value of assets held in all donor advised funds owned at the end of the tax year [

f Enter the total number of separate funds or accounts owned at the end of the tax year (excluding donor
advised funds included on line 4d) where donors have the right to provide advice on the distribution or 0
investment of amounts in such funds or accounts »

g Enter the aggregate value of assets held in all funds or accounts included on line 4f at the end of the tax
0
year I~

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2007



Schedule A (Form 990 or990-EZ) 2007 Page 3

XS Reason for Non-Private Foundation Status (See pages 4 through 7 of the instructions.)

I certify that the organization is not a private foundation because itis (Please check only ONE applicable box )

5 [T A church, convention of churches, or association of churches Section 170(b)(1)(A)(1)
6 [T A school Section 170(b)(1)(A)(11) (Also complete PartV )
7 [T A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization Section 170(b)(1)(A)(111)
8 [T A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit Section 170 (b)(1)(A)(v)
9 [T A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital Section 170(b)(1)(A)(11) Enter the hospital's name, city,
and state
10 [T  Anorganization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit
Section 170(b)(1)(A)v) (Also complete the Support Schedule in Part IV-A)
11a [v Anorganization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
Section 170(b)(1)(A)(v1) (Also complete the Support Schedule in Part IV-A)
11b [ A community trust Section 170(b)(1)(A)(v1) (Also complete the Support Schedule in Part IV-A)
12 [T Anorganization that normally receives (1) more than 331/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its charitable, etc , functions —subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 331 /3% of
Its support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30,1975 See section 509(a)(2) (Also complete the Support Schedule in Part IV-A )
13 [T Anorganization that 1s not controlled by any disqualified persons (other than foundation managers) and otherwise meets the
requirements of section 509(a)(3) Check the box that describes the type of supporting organization
[ Typel [ Typell [T TypeIIl - Functionally Integrated [T TypeIlI - Other
Provide the following information about the supported organizations. (see page 7 of the instructions.)
(€) (d)
(b) Typ_e °f_ Is the supported
(a) Employer °(;9a“'_z:t‘;°_“ organization listed in the A (e)t ;
Name(s) of supported organization(s) identification .( escrived In supporting organization's moun g
number lines 5 through governing documents? support?
12 above or
IRC section) Yes No
Total |
14 [T Anorganization organized and operated to test for public safety Section 509(a)(4) (See page 7 of the instructions )

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2007



Schedule A (Form 990 or990-EZ) 2007

m Support Schedule (Complete only If you checked a box online 10,11, 0r 12 ) Use cash method of accounting.
Note: You may use the worksheet in the instructions for converting from the accrual to the cash method of accounting.

Page 4

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » (a) 2006 (b) 2005 (c) 2004 (d) 2003 (e) Total
15 Gifts, grants, and contributions received (Do not 4,403,814 4,505,443 4,655,726 4,231,628 17,796,611
include unusual grants See line 28 )
16 Membership fees received 0
17 Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or furnishing of
facilities 1n any activity that 1s related to the 3,840 17,468 10,280 11,676 45,264
organization's charitable, etc , purpose
18 Gross income from interest, dividends, amounts
recelved from payments on securities loans
(section 512(a)(5)), rents, royalties, and 0
unrelated business taxable iIncome (less section
511 taxes) from businesses acquired by the
organization after June 30, 1975
19 Netincome from unrelated business activities
0
not included in line 18
20 Tax revenues levied for the organization's benefit
and either paid to it or expended on its 0
behalf
21 The value of services or facilities furnished to
the organization by a governmental unit without
charge Do not include the value of services or 0
facilities generally furnished to the public without
charge
22 Otherincome Attach a schedule Do notinclude 0
gain or (loss) from sale of capital assets
23 Total of lines 15 through 22 4,409,654 4,522,911 4,666,006 4,243,304 17,841,875
24 Line 23 minus line 17 4,403,814 4,505,443 4,655,726 4,231,628 17,796,611
25 Enter 1% of line 23 44,097 45,229 46,660 42,433
26 Organizations described on lines 10 or11: a Enter 2% of amount in column (e), line 24 | 26a 355,932

b Prepare a list for your records to show the name of and amount contributed by each person (other
than a governmental unit or publicly supported organization) whose total gifts for 2002 through
2005 exceeded the amount shown in line 26a Do not file this list with your return. Enter the total
of all these excess amounts | 26b 1,485,340

c Total support for section 509(a)(1) test Enter line 24, column (e) | 26¢c 17,796,611

d Add Amounts from column (e) for lines 18 0 19 0

22 26b 1,485,340 | 26d 1,485,340

e Public support (line 26c minus line 26d total) | 26e 16,311,271

f Public support percentage (line 26e (numerator) divided by line 26c (denominator)) | 26f 9165 38 %

27 Organizations described online 12: a For amounts included inlines 15,16, and 17 that were received from a "disqualified person,”
prepare a list for your records to show the name of, and total amounts received in each year from, each "disqualified person "
Do not file this list with your return. Enter the sum of such amounts for each year
(2006) (2005) (2004) (2003)

b For any amount included in line 17 that was received from each person (other than "disqualified persons"), prepare a list for your
records to show the name of, and amount received for each year, that was more than the larger of (1) the amount on line 25 for the year
or (2) $5,000 (Include inthe list organizations described in lines 5 through 11b, as well as individuals ) Do not file this list with your
return. A fter computing the difference between the amount received and the larger amount described in (1) or (2), enter the sum of
these differences (the excess amounts) for each year
(2006) (2005) (2004) (2003)

c Add Amounts from column (e) for lines 15 16

17 20 21 | 27c

d Add Line 27a total and line 27b total | 27d

e Public support (line 27 ¢ total minus line 27d total) | 27e

f Total support for section 509(a)(2) test Enter amount from line 23, column (e) I | 27fF |

g Public support percentage (line 27e (numerator) divided by line 27f (denominator)) | 279

h Investment income percentage (line 18, column (e) (numerator) divided by line 27f (denominator)) 27h

28 Unusual Grants: For an organization described inline 10, 11, or 12 that received any unusual grants during 2002 through 2005,

prepare a list for your records to show, for each year, the name of the contributor, the date and amount of the grant, and a brief
description of the nature of the grant Do not file this list with your return. Do not include these grants in line 15

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2007



Schedule A (Form 990 or990-EZ) 2007 Page 5

m Private School Questionnaire (See page 7 of the instructions.)
(To be completed ONLY by schools that checked the box on line 6 in Part IV)

29 Does the organization have a racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students by statement in its charter, bylaws, Yes [ No

other governing instrument, or in a resolution of its governing body? 29

30 Does the organization include a statement of its racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students In all its
brochures, catalogues, and other written communications with the public dealing with student admissions,
programs, and scholarships? 30

31 Has the organization publicized its racially nondiscriminatory policy through newspaper or broadcast media during
the period of solicitation for students, or during the registration period If it has no solicitation program, In a way
that makes the policy known to all parts of the general community 1t serves? 31

If "Yes," please describe, If "No," please explain (If you need more space, attach a separate statement)

32 Does the organization maintain the following
a Records indicating the racial composition of the student body, faculty, and administrative staff? 32a

b Records documenting that scholarships and other financial assistance are awarded on racially nondiscriminatory
basis? 32b

c Copies of all catalogues, brochures, announcements, and other written communications to the public dealing

with student admissions, programs, and scholarships? 32c

d Copies of all material used by the organization or on its behalfto solicit contributions? 32d

If you answered "No" to any of the above, please explain (If you need more space, attach a separate statement)

33 Does the organization discriminate by race in any way with respect to

a Students' rights or privileges? 33a
b Admissions policies? 33b
¢ Employment of faculty or administrative staff? 33c
d Scholarships or other financial assistance? 33d
e Educational policies? 33e
f Use of facilities? 33f
g Athletic programs? 33g
h Other extracurricular activities? 33h

If you answered "Yes" to any of the above, please explain (If you need more space, attach a separate statement)

34a Does the organization receive any financial aid or assistance from a governmental agency? 34a

b Has the organization's right to such aid ever been revoked or suspended? 34b

If you answered "Yes" to either 34a or b, please explain using an attached statement

35 Does the organization certify that it has complied with the applicable requirements of sections 4 01 through 4 05

of Rev Proc 75-50,1975-2 C B 587, covering racial nondiscrimination? If "No," attach an explanation 35

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2007



Schedule A (Form 990 or990-EZ) 2007

m Lobbying Expenditures by Electing Public Charities (See page 9 of the instructions.)
(To be completed ONLY by an ehgible organization that filed Form 5768)

Page 6

Check ™ a [ ifthe organization belongs to an affilated group

Check ™ b [ ifyouchecked "a" and "limited control” provisions apply

Limits on Lobbying Expenditures

(a)

Affiliated group

(b)
To be completed
for all electing

36
37
38
39
40
41

42
43
44

(The term "expenditures"” means amounts paid or incurred ) totals organizations
Total lobbying expenditures to influence public opinion (grassroots lobbying) 36
Total lobbying expenditures to influence a legislative body (direct lobbying) 37
Total lobbying expenditures (add lines 36 and 37) 38
Other exempt purpose expenditures 39
Total exempt purpose expenditures (add lines 38 and 39) 40
Lobbying nontaxable amount Enter the amount from the following table—
If the amount on line 40 is— The lobbying nontaxable amount is—
Not over $500,000 20% of the amount on line 40
Over $500,000 but not over $1,000,000 $100,000 plus 15% of the excess over $500,000
Over $1,000,000 but not over $1,500,000 $175,000 plus 10% of the excess over $1,000,000 41
Over $1,500,000 but not over $17,000,000 $225,000 plus 5% of the excess over $1,500,000
Over $17,000,000 $1,000,000
Grassroots nontaxable amount (enter 25% of line 41) 42
Subtract line 42 from line 36 Enter -0- if ine 42 1s more than line 36 43
Subtract line 41 from line 38 Enter -0- ifine 41 1s more than line 38 44

Caution: If there 1s an amount on either line 43 or line 44, you must file Form 4720.

4-Year Averaging Period Under Section 501(h)
(Some organizations that made a section 501 (h) election do not have to complete all of the five columns below
See the Instructions for lines 45 through 50 on page 11 of the instructions )

Lobbying Expendit ures During 4-Year Averaging Period

Calendar year (or (a) (b) (c) (d) (e)
fiscal year beginning in) I+ 2007 2006 2005 2004 Total

45 Lobbying nontaxable amount

46 Lobbying ceiling amount (150% of line 45(e))

47 Total lobbying expenditures

48 Grassroots nontaxable amount

49 Grassroots ceiling amount (150% of line 48(e))

50 Grassroots lobbying expenditures

1aA78:] Lobbying Activity by Nonelecting Public Charities
(For reporting only by organizations that did not complete Part VI-A) (See page 11 of the instructions.) %

During the year, did the organization attempt to influence national, state or local legislation, including any

attempt to influence public opinion on a legislative matter or referendum, through the use of

TQ 0 a0 T

Volunteers

Paid staff or management (Include compensation in expenses reported on lines c through h.)

Media advertisements

Mailings to members, legislators, or the public

Publications, or published or broadcast statements

Grants to other organizations for lobbying purposes

Direct contact with legislators, their staffs, government officials, or a legislative body
Rallies, demonstrations, seminars, conventions, speeches, lectures, or any other means
Total lobbying expenditures (Add lines c through h.)

Yes | No A mount
No
No
No 0
No 0
No 0
No 0
Yes 42,000
No 0
42,000

If "Yes" to any of the above, also attach a statement giving a detailed description of the lobbying activities

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2007



Schedule A (Form 990 or990-EZ) 2007
m Information Regarding Transfers To and Transactions and Relationships With Noncharitable

Page 7

Exempt Organizations (See page 12 of the instructions.)

51 Did the reporting organization directly or indirectly engage in any of the following with any other organization described in section
501(c) of the Code (other than section 501(c)(3) organizations) or in section 527, relating to political organizations?

a Transfers from the reporting organization to a noncharitable exempt organization of

(i)
(i)

Cash
Other assets

b Other transactions

(i)

(i)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

c Sharing of facilities, equipment, mailing lists, other assets, or paid employees

Sales or exchanges of assets with a noncharitable exempt organization
Purchases of assets from a noncharitable exempt organization

Rental of facilities, equipment, or other assets

Reimbursement arrangements

Loans or loan guarantees

Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations

Yes | No

51a(i) No
a(ii) No
b(i) No

b(ii) No
b(iii) No
b(iv) No
b(v) No
b(vi) No
c No

d Ifthe answer to any of the above 1s "Yes," complete the following schedule Column (b) should always show the fair market value of the

goods, other assets, or services given by the reporting organization If the organization received less than fair market value in any
transaction or sharing arrangement, show in column (d) the value of the goods, other assets, or services received

(d)
(a) (b) (€) Description of transfers, transactions, and sharing
Line no Amount involved Name of noncharitable exempt organization
arrangements

52a Is the organization directly or indirectly affiiated with, or related to, one or more tax-exempt organizations
described in section 501(c) of the Code (other than section 501(c)(3)) orin section 527°? | [ Yes [ No
b If"Yes," complete the following schedule

(a)

Name of organization

(b)

Type of organization

(c)

Description of relationship

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2007



Additional Data

Software ID:

Software Version:

EIN:
Name:

36-4447457

ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP

Form 990, Part II, Line 43 - Other expenses not covered above (itemize):

Do not include amounts reported on line

(B) Program

(C) Management

6b, 8b, 9b, 10b, or 16 of Part1I. (A) Total services and general (D) Fundraising

a teaching academy expenses - CPS 43a 3,167,000 3,167,000
b computer equipment & software 43b 35,301 28,510 5,200 1,591
c resident recruitment 43c 8,421 8,421
d curricular enhancements 43d 235,986 235,986
e payroll fees 43e 11,646 11,646
f Insurance 43f 6,046 6,046
g professional development 43g 236,128 234,180 100 1,848

professional services 43h 322,655 260,463 62,192
i lobbyist 43i 42,000 42,000
j miscellaneous 43j 558 185 310 63
k capital improvements 43k 38,118 38,118
I website development 431 10,758 10,758
m engagement & recognition 43m 56,239 56,239
n marketing and public relations 43n 33,992 2,538 31,454
o bad debt loss 430 19,117 19,117
p temp & recruiting fees 43p 106,180 11,485 94,695




Form 990, Part V-A - Current Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees:

(A) Name and address

(B) Title and average
hours per week devoted
to position

(C) Compensation
(If not paid, enter -0-
2

(D) Contributions to
employee benefit
plans & deferred

compensation plans

(E) Expense

account and other

allowances

DONALD FEINSTEIN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chicago,IL 60634

3400 N AUSTIN AVE 40 00 136,981 27
chicago,IL 60634

MERRICK AXEL

3400 N AUSTIN AVE gIOROECTOR 0 0
Chicago,IL 60634

DOMINIC BELMONTE

3400 N AUSTIN AVE gIOROECTOR 0 0
Chicago,IL 60634

SUSAN M BENTON

3400 N AUSTIN AVE gIOROECTOR 0 0
Chicago,IL 60634

MARSHALL M BOUTON

3400 N AUSTIN AVE gIOROECTOR 0 0
Chicago,IL 60634

MARY ELLEN CARON

3400 N AUSTIN AVE gIOROECTOR 0 0
Chicago,IL 60634

MICHAEL KEISER

3400 N AUSTIN AVE gIOROECTOR 0 0
Chicago,IL 60634

ROBERT E KING TREASURECHAIR OF

3400 N AUSTIN AVE FINANCE COMMITTEE 0 0
Chicago,IL 60634 300

MARTIN KOLDYKE

3400 N AUSTIN AVE E%SIRMAN EMERITUS 0 0
Chicago,IL 60634

REV DR WALTER W

MATTHEWSSRBST DIRECTOR 0 0
3400 N AUSTIN AVE 300




Form 990, Part V-A - Current Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees:

(A) Name and address

(B) Title and average
hours per week devoted
to position

(C) Compensation
(If not paid, enter -0-
2

(D) Contributions to
employee benefit
plans & deferred

compensation plans

(E) Expense
account and other
allowances

JORDAN MERANUS

Chicago,IL 60634

3400 N AUSTIN AVE gIOROECTOR 0
Chicago,IL 60634
CORDELIA C DEA MEYER
3400 N AUSTIN AVE gIOROECTOR 0
Chicago,IL 60634
KENNETH W MILLER
3400 N AUSTIN AVE gIOROECTOR 0
Chicago,IL 60634
DR RICHARD PAPPAS
3400 N AUSTIN AVE gIOROECTOR 0
Chicago,IL 60634
JULIAN POSADA CHAIR-GOVERNANCE
3400 N AUSTIN AVE COMMITTEE 0
Chicago,IL 60634 300
KIMBERLY QUERREY CHAIR-SCHOOL

OPERATIONS
3400 N AUSTIN AVE COMMITTEE 0
Chicago,IL 60634 300
RALPH RYDHOLM
3400 N AUSTIN AVE gIOROECTOR 0
Chicago,IL 60634
GREG SIMONCINI
3400 N AUSTIN AVE gIOROECTOR 0
Chicago,IL 60634
DR LOUIS W STERN CHAIR-
3400 N AUSTIN AVE COMMUNICATIONS 0
Chicago,IL 60634 300
DAVID VITALE
3400 N AUSTIN AVE SSSBRMAN 0




lefile GRAPHIC print - DO NOT PROCESS | As Filed Data - | DLN: 93490318017668]|

TY 2007 Depreciation and Depletion Schedule

Name: ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP
EIN: 36-4447457

Asset Amount
equipment 532
leashold improvements 2,111
leashold improvements 3,720
laptops 1,538
Equipment-Brady gadget machine 1,159
Equipment-Blackbaud 3,181




lefile GRAPHIC print - DO NOT PROCESS | As Filed Data - | DLN: 93490318017668]|

TY 2007 Land etc. Schedule

Name: ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP
EIN: 36-4447457

Category/Item Cost/Other Basis Accumulated Depreciation Book Value
equipment 25,109 23,720 1,389
leashold improvements 204,219 198,220 5,999
leashold improvements 20,423 14,880 5,543
laptops 7,690 5,716 1,974
Equipment-Brady gadget machine 5,795 1,739 4,056
Equipment-Blackbaud 19,083 3,181 15,902
Software - Link It System 135,960 135,960




lefile GRAPHIC print - DO NOT PROCESS | As Filed Data - | DLN: 93490318017668]|

TY 2007 Other Assets Schedule

Name: ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP
EIN: 36-4447457

Description Beginning of Year Amount End of Year Amount
MISCELLANEOUS RECEIVABLES 0 4,015




lefile GRAPHIC print - DO NOT PROCESS | As Filed Data - | DLN: 93490318017668]|

TY 2007 Other Expenses Included Schedule

Name: ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP
EIN: 36-4447457

Description Amount

cost related to fundraising event 23,394




lefile GRAPHIC print - DO NOT PROCESS | As Filed Data - | DLN: 93490318017668]|

TY 2007 Other Liabilities Schedule

Name: ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP
EIN: 36-4447457

Description Beginning of Year Amount End of Year Amount
funds held for chicago academy high school 198,690 190,153




lefile GRAPHIC print - DO NOT PROCESS | As Filed Data - | DLN: 93490318017668]|

TY 2007 Other Revenues Included Schedule

Name: ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP
EIN: 36-4447457

Description Amount

fundraising expenses netted against contributions 23,394




lefile GRAPHIC print - DO NOT PROCESS | As Filed Data - | DLN: 93490318017668]|

TY 2007 Non Electing Public Charities Statement

Name: ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP
EIN: 36-4447457

Statement: lobbyist strived to secure state funding for the continuation of a
teachertraining program.
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Linder pehaltios of petjuty, | tealars ihat | om an altiper of tho above namad orpanizeion and Inet | Five axemined a copy of the croanizalion’s 2007 Aleatan® rdtun) &1 Acrempanying schaduiee and
statomants anet 1 tha Bast af my Hnawhidge and bedlaf, thay pro tug, comoet, ond oompleme, | fdridr catigne 1t the amaunt In Part Fabove (s e amaount 6hown on tha opy of the ormanlzatkn’a
ulactranka rstuty, | coneent ty Allew my muvmsdiale mrvica provider, smesiiton, 4t sisctronls rrum criginater (EROD) ve aana tha erganization’s ravrh o (e 1A% &AH 10 FAE8IvA from tha RS {o)
assnowiadgemon| of reol(pt oF Fedesn far rajaetian of the tranemizsion, ) an indioadlieer of amy refuns offzer, {c} tia reason far eny dolny iy procaseing (e ratum e i, g9 (d) 1ha Sae of any rafund,

Sign I /// 5/ W) EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Hera Signature of offighr Ddte / " THia

Declaration of Elattronic Return Originator {ERO) and Paid Preparar (sea instructiong)

| declara that | have reviewsd tha abiova srganization's return and that tha antri¢a an Ferm 8453-EC are complete and corract to the best of my
krowladge. If | arm only 4 aollaster, | am not responsible for reviewing the return and only dantare that thils form aceurately reflects tha data on the
return. The omanizatian offcar will have signed this form bafora | sulimit the return, | wili give the officar a copy of all forme and |nformation ta ha
filed withy the IRS, and have followsd all other raquirements in Pub. 4168, Modemitation @-fe (MeF) Information for Authorlzed IRS e~fle Providers.
If | am alzn the Paid Paparer, under panaitles of perjury { deciare that | have gxaminad the ahove erganization's return and asgompanying
scheduias and statemants, and to tha hast of my knowladge and keliaf, they wre tnee, corract, and complate. This Paxt Praparar dsciaration s
based on sl inforvaton of which & hava any knowladge.

‘ Drip snm allru gﬂlﬁ ' GRO'M 83N or PTIN
W 4 WP, 13008 | B8 o B Pups 7o)
Use  mmanomegr MANN NE Z_ & ASSOCTATES T Li.C. ' g 36-3 963131

All-AMES
OHW mms?anﬂFm

Y, x 38 . b Phoma no.
DERERFIELD, TT. 60015 _  _ {(B47)287-3400
Wridar paniities of perjuy, | Geciare thar | Rave sxanined the Accva retur snd acdémpanying sehedulon and otalamenta, aned Lo the toat of my Knowlnge and Bsiled, they as bup, comoet, and gomprale.
Dioalaration of grepiiar (8 bassd an Al infsmation of whicn ma propanar has any Knowledgs,

ﬁh&erk Fraparara BBN of PTIN
&ell-
. e
s8 Onl iy 2201 an
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Rl v 1 eld, Tl L00IS
LHA Far Privaay Att and Paparwaik Redustion Axt Notice, see thé instructions. Farm B48S-EO roon
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* V] .

OMB No 1545-0047

o 990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax 2006

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except black lung

Department of m; Treasury benefit trust or private foundation) Open to Public
internal Revenue Service P> The organization may have to use a copy of this return to satisfy state reporting requirements. Inspection
A For the 2006 calendar year, or tax year beginning JUL 1, 2006 andending JUN 30, 2007
B Check it Please C Name of organization D Employer identification number
applicable use IRS
trance” |t ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP 36-4447457
Z'r?faﬂze 'g‘;: Number and street (or P.0. box if mail 1s not delwvered to street address) Room/suite | E Telephone number
rotin  |specicl3400 N. AUSTIN AVENUE 773-534-0129
Funal 'r:i,t:,ic Crty or town, state or country, and ZIP + 4 F Accountng method |__| Cash | X ] Accruat
fotun CHICAGO, IL 60634 [ EEmp
Dgggg;f;‘w" ® Section 501(c)(3) organizations and 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trusts H and | are not applicable to section 527 organizations

must attach a completed Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ). H(a) Is this a group return for affiates? |:|Yes m No
G_Website: pWWW . AUSL-CHICAGO.ORG H(b) If"Yes,” enter number of affiliates> __ N /A
J

Organization type (heckonyone) > [ X 1 501(c) ( 3 ) ansertno) [ ] 4947(a)(1) or [ ] 527| H(c) ﬁ;e '\;}n ah‘lllatﬁs |rllclu)ded’? N/A [ Jves [_INo
“No,” attach a list.
H(d) Is this a separate return filed by an or-

K Check here > |:| if the organization 1s not a 509(a)(3) supporting organization and its gross

receipts are normally not more than $25,000. A return i1s not required, but if the organization ganization covered by a group ruiing? |:|Yes II] No
chooses to file a return, be sure to file a complete return. | Group Exemption Number p» N/A
M Checkp> D if the organization is not required to attach
Gross receipts: Add lines 6b, 8b, 8b, and 10b to line 12 5,584,309, Sch. B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF).
LPart IJ Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets or Fund Balances
1 Contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts received:
cctg a Contributions to donor advised funds 1a
S b Direct public support (not included on line 1a) b 3,252,053.
< ¢ Indirect public support (notincluded on line 1a) ic
& d Government contributions (grants) (not included on hne 1a) 1d 2,326,416.
= e Total (add ines 1a through 1d) (cash $ 5,578,469. noncash$ ) 1e 5,578,469.
i[ 2 Program service revenue including government fees and contracts (from Part VI, line 93) 2 5.840.
3 Membership dues and assessments 3
8 4 Interest on savings and temporary cash investments 4
= 5  Dwidends and interest from securittes 5
= 6 a Gross rents 6a
6 b Less: rental expenses 6b
@?‘m ¢ Net rental income or (loss). Subtract line 6b from line 6a 6¢
g Other investment income (describe > ) 7
o | 8 a Gross amount from sales of assets other (A) Securities (B) Other
« than inventory 8a
b Less: cost or other basis and sales expenses 8b
Gain or (loss) (attach schedule) 8c
Net gam or (loss). Combine line 8¢, columns (A) and (B) 8d
R’E m vities (attach schedule). If any amount is from gaming, check here P> (]
0SS revenue (notin of contnbubons reported on ine 1b) 9a
b Less: direct expenseppther than fundraising expenses 9b
5 R hﬁt ﬁcﬁ@@]?r (lo sﬁr m special events. Subtract hne 9b from line 9a 9c
a  Gross sales of inv , less returns and allowances 10a
;s 10b
L__ m sales of inventory (attach schedule). Subtract ine 10b from line 10a 10¢
11 Other revenue (from Part VI, line 103) 11
12 Total revenue. Add lines 1e, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6¢, 7, 8d, 9¢, 10c, and 11 12 5,584,309,
o | 13 Programservices (from line 44, column (B)) 13 4,491,331,
@1 14  Management and general {from line 44, column (C)) 14 563,474.
§_ 15  Fundraising (from line 44, column (D)) 15 221,496,
& | 16  Payments to affiliates (attach schedule) 16
17___ Total expenses. Add lines 16 and 44, column (A) 17 5,276 ,301.
o 18  Excess or (deficit) for the year. Subtract ine 17 from line 12 18 308,008.
g§ 19  Netassets or fund balances at beginning of year (from hine 73, column (A})) 19 2,349,666.
22 20  Other changes In net assets or fund balances (attach explanation) 20 0. \
21 Netassets or fund balances at end of year. Combing lines 18, 19, and 20 21 2,657,674. (i/ )
8%3333 o7 LHA  For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Form 990 (2006)Q
1
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Form 990 (2006) ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOQOL LEADERSHIP 36-4447457 Page2
| Part Il | Statement of All organizations must complete column (A). Columns (B), (C), and (D) are required for section 501(c)(3)
Functional Expenses  and (4) organizations and section 4947(a)( 1) nonexempt charitable trusts but optional for others.

Do not nclude amounts eported on e o o @ pogan [ (@ Veragemert | o) funasng
22a Grants paid from donor advised funds
(attach schedule)
{cash § 0 «_noncash $ 0 .
If this amount includes foreign grants, check here P I:] 22a
22b Other grants and allocations (attach schedule
(cash $ 0 o _noncash $ 0 .
If this amount includes foreign grants, check here P> D 22b
23 Specific assistance to individuals (attach
schedule) 23
24 Benefits paid to or for members (attach
schedule) 24
25a Compensation of current officers, directors, key
employees, etc. listed in Part V-A 25a 96,115. 0. 96,115. 0.
b Compensation of former officers, directors, key
employees, etc. listed in Part V-B 25b 0. 0. 0. 0.
¢ Compensation and other distributions, not included
above, to disqualified persons (as defined under
section 4958(f)(1)) and persons described in
section 4958(c)(3)(B) . X 25¢
26 Salaries and wages of employees not
included on lines 25a, b, and ¢ 26| 2,198,454, 1,916,437. 165,437. 116,580.
27 Pension plan contributions not included on
ines 25a, b, and ¢ 27
28 Employee benefits not included on lines
25a- 27 28 95,407. 77,351, 12,488. 5,568.
29 Payroll taxes 29 204,948. 173,252. 21,924. 9,772.
30 Professional fundraising fees . 30
31 Accounting fees ~ |31 42 ,827. 42,827.
32 Legal fees 32
33 Supplies . 33
34 Telephone Lo 34
35 Postage and shipping . 35
36 Occupancy 36
37 Equipment rental and maintenance 37
38 Prninting and publications . 38
39 Travel . 39 13,333. 3,820. 9,363. 150.
40 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 40
41 Interest 41
42 Depreciation, depletion, etc (attach schedule) |42 9,760. 9,760.
43 Other expenses not covered above (itemize)
a 43a
b 43b
¢ 43c
d 43d
e 43e
f 431
g_SEE STATEMENT 1 43 2,615,457.; 2,310,711. 215,320. 89,426.
44 Total functional expenses. Add lines 22a through
43g. (Orgamizations completing columns (8)-(D),
carry these totals to lines 13-15) _l44| 5,276,301, 4,491,331. 563,474. 221,4096.
Joint Costs. Check P> I:] if you are following SOP 98-2
Are any joint costs from a combined educational campaign and fundraising solcitation reported in (B) Program services? | 2 |:| Yes IX] No
If "Yes," enter (i) the aggregate amount of these joint costs $ N/A ; (ii) the amount allocated to Program services $ N/A ;
(i) the amount ailocated to Management and general $ N/A - and (iv) the amount allocated to Fundraising $ N/A
b Form 990 (2006)

2
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Form 990 (2006) ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOIL LEADERSHIP 36-4447457  Page3
| Part lll | Statement of Program Service Accomplishments (See the instructions.)

Form 990 1s available for public inspection and, for some people, serves as the pnmary or sole source of information about a particular organization
How trle public perceives an organization in such cases may be determined by the information presented on its retum Therefore, please make sure the
return 1s complete and accurate and fully descnbes, in Part lll, the organization's programs and accomplishments

What is the organization's pnimary exempt purpose? p  SEE STATEMENT 2 Program Service
Expenses
(Required for 501(c)(3)
All organizations must describe their exempt purpose achievements in a clear and concise manner. State the number of and (4) orgs., and
clients served, publications issued, etc Discuss achievements that are not measurable (Section 501(c)(3) and (4) 4947(a)(1) trusts; but
organizations and 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trusts must also enter the amount of grants and allocations to others.) optional for others.)

a RESIDENT PROGRAM-SEE ATTACHED

(Grants and allocations $ ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here B> [ 3,125,258.
b NEW SCHOOLS-SEE ATTACHED

(Grants and allocations $ ) _If this amount includes foreign grants, checkhere B [ ] 942,760.
¢ CURRICULAR ENHANCEMENTS-SEE ATTACHED

(Grants and allocations $ ) _If this amount includes foreign grants, check here P> l:] 152 ’ 4009.
d PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT-WORKSHOPS, CLASSES AND RESOURCES
FOR STAFF TO ENHANCE AND UPDATE THEIR PROFESSIONAL SKILLS.

(Grants and allocations $ ) If this amount includes foreign grants, checkhere B ] 270,904.
e Other program services (attach schedule)
(Grants and allocations $ ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here P D
f Total of Program Service Expenses (should equal line 44, column (B), Program services) » 4,491 ,331.
Form 990 (2006)
623021
01-18-07
3
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Form 990 (2006) ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP 36-4447457 Page4d
[Part v TBaIance Sheets (See the instructions.)

Note: Where required, attached schedules and amounts within the descnption column (A) (B)
should be for end-of-year amounts only Beginning of year End of year
45  Cash - non-interest-bearing 1,162,212, 45 599,779.
46  Savings and temporary cash investments B . 46
47 a Accounts receivable 47a 92,973.
b Less- allowance for doubtfut accounts 47b 35,000. 35,950.] 47¢ 57,973.
48 a Pledges receivable 48a 2,282,370,
b Less- allowance for doubtful accounts 48b 1,129,738.| 48¢c 2,282,370,
49  Grants recetvable ] 49
50 a Receivables from current and former officers, directors, trustees, and
key employees 50a
b Recewvables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section
o 4958(f)(1)) and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)}(B) 50b
§ 51 a Other notes and loans receivable 51a
< b Less: allowance for doubtful accounts 51b 51c
52 Inventories for sale or use 52
53 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 140,856.[ 53 59,712.
54 a Investments - publicly-traded securities > E| Cost l:] FMV 54a
b Investments - other securities . > E| Cost l:] FMV 54b
55 a Investments - land, buildings, and
equipment: basis . 55a
b Less. accumulated depreciation 55b 55¢
56  Investments - other L. . 56
57 a Land, buildings, and equipment basis 57a 282,319.
b Less accumulated depreciationSTMT 3 57b 235,215. 31,986.] 57¢ 47,104.
58  Other assets, including program-related investments
(describe p ) 31,030.] 58
59 Total assets {(must equal line 74) Add lines 45 through 58 2,531,772, 59 3,046,938.
60  Accounts payable and accrued expenses 173,561.] 60 190,574.
61 Grants payable X 61
° 62  Deferred revenue . . 62
2 |63 Loans from officers, directors, trustees, and key employees 63
£ |64 a Tax-exempt bond hiabilities 64a
E b Mortgages and other notes payable 64b
65  Other liabilities (describe P> SEE STATEMENT 4 ) 8,545.] 65 198,690.
66 Total liabilities. Add lines 60 through 65 182,106.] 66 389,264.

Organizations that follow SFAS 117, check here P> l)_d and complete lines
67 through 69 and lines 73 and 74.

67  Unrestricted 1,163,966.] 67 666,726.
68  Temporanly restncted . 1,185,700.| 68 1,990,948.
69  Permanently restncted 69

Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117, check here P [ Jand
complete lines 70 through 74.

Net Assets or Fund Balances

70  Capntal stock, trust principal, or current funds 70
71 Paid-in or caprtal surplus, or land, building, and equipment fund 71
72  Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 72
73  Total net assets or fund balances. Add lines 67 through 69 or ines 70 through 72.
(Column (A) must equal hne 19 and column (B) must equal line 21) 2,349,666.| 73 2,657,674.
74 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances. Add lines 66 and 73 2.531,772.| 74 3,046,938.
Form 990 (2006)
623031
01-20-07
4
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10561211 787606 04519

Form 990 (2006) ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOIL LEADERSHIP 36-4447457  Pageb
Part IV-A | Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return (Sce the
« instructions )
a Total revenue, gains, and other support per audrted financial statements a 5,606 . 309.
b Amounts included on fine a but not on Part |, iine 12:
1 Net unrealized gains on investments b1
2 Donated services and use of facilities b2 22,000.
3 Recoveres of prior year grants b3
4 Other (specify): b4
Add lines b1 through b4 b 22,000.
¢ Subtract line b from line a . ¢c| 5,584,309,
Amounts included on Part {, kne 12, but not on line a:
Investment expenses not included on Part |, ine 6b d1
2 Other (specify) d2
Add lines d1and d2 d 0.
Total revenue (Part |, line 12) Add lines c and d | 4 5,584,309.
LPart IV-B | Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return
a Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements a| 5,298,301.
b Amounts included on line a but not on Part |, ine 17:
1 Donated services and use of facilities b1 22,000.
2 Pror year adjustments reported on Part |, line 20 b2
3 Losses reported on Part |, ine 20 b3
4 Other (specify) b4
Add lines b1 through b4 b 22,000.
¢ Subtract ine b from line a . L c| 5,276,301.
Amounts included on Part {, line 17, but not on line a:
Investment expenses not included on Part |, ine 6b d1
2 Other (specify) d2
Add Iines d1 and d2 d 0.
Total expenses (Part |, line 17) Add lines c and d plei{ 5,276,301.

I Part V-A| Current Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees (Lst each person who was an officer, director, trustee,

or key employee at any time during the year even If they were not compensated ) (See the instructions.)

(B) Title and average hours | (C) Compensation (D)nContnbuhons tof  (E)Expense
(A) Name and address per week devoted to (If not paid, enter p,ag'ggeggggg account and
position -0-.) compensation plans| Other allowances
DR. DONALD FEINSTEIN EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
3400 N. AUSTIN AVE, _CHICAGO, IL____
40.00 96.115. 0. 0.
SEE ATTACHED FOR BOARD AND HOURS_ _ __
0.00 0. 0. 0.
Form 990 (2006)
623041 01-18-07
5
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Form 990 (2006) ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP 36-4447457 Page 6
| Part V-A| Current Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees (continued) Yes| No

75 a Enter the total number of officers, directors, and trustees permitted to vote on orgamization business at board
meetings . . » 18

b Are any officers, directors, trustees, or key employees listed in Form 990, Part V-A, or highest compensated employees
listed in Schedule A, Part |, or highest compensated professional and other independent contractors isted in Schedule A,
Part II-A or 1I-B, related to each other through family or business relationships? If "Yes," attach a statement that identifies
the individuals and explains the relationship(s) 75b X

¢ Do any officers, directors, trustees, or key employees histed in Form 990, Part V-A, or highest compensated employees
listed in Schedule A, Part |, or highest compensated professional and other independent contractors listed in Schedule A,
Part II-A or 1I-B, receive compensation from any other organizations, whether tax exempt or taxable, that are related to the
organization? See the instructions for the definition of "related organization " 75¢ X

If "Yes," attach a statement that includes the information described in the instructions.
d_Does the organization have a wntten conflict of interest policy? 75d X
[ Part V-B| Former Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees That Received Compensation or Other
Benefits (if any former officer, director, trustee, or key employee received compensation or other benefits (descnbed below) dunng
the year, list that person below and enter the amount of compensation or other benefits in the appropnate column See the instructions )

(C) Compensation ((D) Contributions to| ~ (E) Expense
(A) Name and address (B) Loans and Advances (if not pard, employee benefit | 3000yt and
NONE enter -0-) | campensation pians| other allowances
[ Part VI | Other Information (See the instructions ) Yes| No
76  Did the organization make a change in its activities or methods of conducting activities? If "Yes," attach a detailed
statement of each change 76 X
77  Were any changes made in the organizing or governing documents but not reported to the IRS? 77 X
If “Yes," attach a conformed copy of the changes.
78 a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year covered by this return? 78a X
b If "Yes," has 1t filed a tax return on Form 990-T for this year? ) ) N/A |[78b
79 Was there a hquidation, dissolution, termination, or substantial contraction durning the year? If "Yes," attach a statement 79 X
80 a Is the organization related (other than by association with a statewide or nationwide organization) through common
membership, governing bodies, trustees, officers, etc., to any other exempt or nonexempt organization? 80a X
b If "Yes," enter the name of the organizationp> N/A
and check whether it 1s [:] exempt or |:| nonexempt
81 a Enter direct or indirect political expenditures (See line 81 instructions ) | 81a | 0.
b_ Did the organization file Form 1120-POL for this year? 81b X

Form 990 (2006)

623161/01-18-07
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Form 990 (2006) ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOQL LEADERSHIP 36-4447457 Page?
[ Part VI | Other Information (continued) Yes| No
82 a Did thé organization receive donated services or the use of materials, equipment, or facilities at no charge or at substantially
less than farr rental value? 82a | X
b I"Yes," you may indicate the value of these items here. Do not |nclude this
amount as revenue in Part | or as an expense n Part Il
{See instructions in Part IIl.) E 22,000.
83 a Dud the organization comply with the public inspection requirements for returns and exemption applications? 83a | X
b Did the organization comply with the disclosure requirements relating to quid pro quo contnbutions? N/A 83b
84 a Did the organization solicit any contnbutions or gifts that were not tax deductible? 84a X
b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts were not
tax deductible? . .. N/A 84b
85 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) organizations. a Were substantially all dues nondeductible by members? Lo N/A 85a
b Did the organization make only in-house lobbying expenditures of $2,000 or less? | N/A 85b
If “Yes" was answered to erther 85a or 85b, do not complete 85¢ through 85h below unless the organization received a
wauver for proxy tax owed for the prior year
¢ Dues, assessments, and similar amounts from members . 85¢ N/A
d Section 162(e) lobbying and political expenditures 85d N/A
e Aggregate nondeductible amount of section 6033(e)(1)(A) dues notices 85e N/A
f Taxable amount of lobbying and political expenditures (line 85d less 85€) 85¢f N/A
g Does the organization elect to pay the section 6033(e) tax on the amount on line 85f? N/A 85¢
h If section 6033(e)(1)(A) dues notices were sent, does the organization agree to add the amount on line 85f
to its reasonable estimate of dues allocable to nondeductible lobbying and political expenditures for the
following tax year? .. N/A 85h
86 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter a Initiation fees and capital contnbutions mcluded on
ine 12 . 86a N/A
b Gross receipts, included on line 12, for public use of club facilities 86b N/A
87  501(c)(12) organizations. Enter: a Gross income from members or shareholders 87a N/A
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due or receved from them.) 87b N/A
88 a At any time during the year, did the organization own a 50% or greater interest in a taxable corporation or partnership,
or an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations sections 301 7701-2 and 301 7701-3?
If "Yes," complete Part IX 88a X
b At any time duning the year, did the organization, directly or mdlrectly, own a controlled entity W|th|n the meaning of
section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes," complete Part XI | 88b X
89 a 5017(c)(3) organizations Enter- Amount of tax imposed on the organlzatlon duning the year under-
section 4911p> 0 . ;section 4912 p 0 . ; section 4955 p 0.
b 507(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations. Did the organization engage in any section 4958 excess benefit
transaction dunng the year or did it become aware of an excess benefit transaction from a prior year?
If "Yes," attach a statement explaining each transaction 89b X
¢ Enter. Amount of tax imposed on the organization managers or disqualified persons during the year under
sections 4912, 4955, and 4958 > 0.
d Enter Amount of tax on line 89c, above, relmbursed by the organization » 0.
e All organizations At any time dunng the tax year, was the organization a party to a prohibrted tax shelter transaction? 89e X
f All organizations Did the organization acquire a direct or indirect interest in any applicable insurance contract? 89f X
g For supporting organizations and sponsonng organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did the supporting organization,
or a fund maintained by a sponsoring organization, have excess business holdings at any time dunng the year? 899 X
90 a UList the states with which a copy of this return is filed > L1
b Number of employees employed in the pay pernod that includes March 12, 2006 | 90b I 55
91a Thebooksare ncare of » KATHY HORNING Telephone no.p> 773-534-0136
Locatedat > 3400 N. AUSTIN AVENUE, CHICAGO, IL ZP+4p 60634
b At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in or a signature or other authonty over Yes| No
a financiat account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? 91b X
If “Yes," enter the name of the foreign country P> N/A
See the instructions for exceptions and filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22.1, Report of Foreign Bank
and Financial Accounts.
Form 990 (2006)
623162 / 01-18-07
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Form 990 {2006) ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP 36-4447457 Page8

LPart VI | Other Information (continued) Yes| No
¢ At anytime during the calendar year, did the organization maintain an office outside of the United States? l 91c X
If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country » N/A
92  Section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt chantable trusts filng Form 990 m heu of Form 1041- Check here » [:l
and enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the tax year > I 92 I N/A
| Part VIl | Analysis of Income-Producing Activities (See the mstructions )
Note: Enter gross amounts unless otherwise Unrelated business income Excluded by section 512, 513, or 514 ()
indicated Bug;)es s Ang?){mt Eé%,)‘,’ An(1[(’))unt Related or exempt
93 Program service revenue- code code function income
a APPLICATION FEES ) 5,840.
b
c
d
e

f Medicare/Medicaid payments
g Fees and contracts from government agencies
94 Membership dues and assessments
95 Interest on savings and temporary cash investments
96 Dividends and interest from securnties
97 Net rental income or (loss) from real estate-
a debt-financed property
b not debt-financed property
98 Net rental income or (loss) from personal property
99 Other investment income
100 Gain or (loss) from sales of assets
other than inventory
101 Net income or (foss) from special events
102 Gross profit or (loss) from sales of inventory
103 Other revenue:

a

b

c

d

e
104 Subtotal (add columns (B), (D), and (E)) 0. 0. 5,.840.
105 Total (add line 104, columns (B), (D), and (E)) | 5,840.

Note: Line 105 plus ne 1e, Part |, should equal the amount on line 12, Part |.
rPart VIII| Relationship of Activities to the Accomplishment of Exempt Purposes (See the mstructions.)
Line No. | Explain how each activity for which income 1s reported in column (E) of Part VIl contributed importantly to the accomplishment of the organization’s
v exempt purposes (other than by providing funds for such purposes).
93A APPLICATION FEES ARE PAID BY RESIDENTS WHICH HELP SUPPORT THE TRAINING
PROGRAM AND FURTHER THE PURPOSE OF THE ORGANIZATION.

[ Part IX | Information Regarding Taxable Subsidiaries and Disregarded Entities (See the nstructions )

(A) (B) (C) (D) (E)
Name, address, and EIN of corporation, Percentage of Nature of activities Total income End-of-year
partnership, or disregarded entity ownership interest assets
%
N/A %
%
%

[Part X | Information Regarding Transfers Associated with Personal Benefit Contracts (See the instructions.)

(a) Did the organization, during the year, receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? [:l Yes [Zl No
(b) Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? [:l Yes m No
Note: /f "Yes" to (b), file Form 8870 and Form 4720 (see instructions)
Form 990 (2006)
823163
01-18-07
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Form 990 (2006 ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP 36-4447457 Page9
Part XI Information Regarding Transfers To and From Controlled Entities. Complete only if the organization 1s a

controlling organization as defined in section 512(b)(13) N/A
Yes| No
106 Drd the reporting organization make any transfers to a controlled entity as defined in section 512(b)(13) of the Code? If "Yes,"
complete the schedule below for each controlled entity.
(A) (B) ©) (D)
Name, address, of each | dEthfl.Wf,' Description of Amount of
controlled entity e,:,‘u'"',%aer'on transfer transfer

al_ _

b |

cl|_ _ _

Totals
Yes| No
107 Dud the reporting organization receive any transfers from a controlled entity as defined in section 512(b)(13) of the Code? If "Yes,"
complete the schedule below for each controlled entity.
(A) (B) (C) (D)
Name, address, of each | dEthfl.Wf.' Description of Amount of
controlled entity e,:,‘u'"',%ae,wn transfer transfer

al__ _ _

b|\___

cl|l__ ___ ___

Totals

Yes| No

108 Did the organization have a binding written contract in effect on August 17, 2006, covenng the interest, rents, royalties, and

annurties descrbed in question 107 above?
Under penalties of at | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it 1s true, correct,

and complete D based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge
Please
o | |/ "/J’/’y
gn Signatdre of officer Da}e’ Y
Here

} Type or print name and title

. Preparer's ate Check if Preparer's SSN or PTIN (See Gen Inst X)
Paid signature } 7/ /‘) employed > [ ]

P ! ;
U;‘;";:;s Frmsrame MANN. WEITZ & ASSOCIATES L.L.C. EIN D>

self-employed), 108 WILMOT ROAD, SUITE 110

address, and

Z2P+a DEERFIELD, IL 60015-5109 Phoneno. > (847)267-3400
Form 990 (2006)

623164/01-26-07
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10561211 787606 04519

SCHEDULE A
(Form 990 or 990-EZ)
) 501(n), or 4947(a)(1) Nonexempt Charitable Tru

Department of the Treasury
internal Revenue Service

Organization Exempt Under Section 501(c)(3)

(Except Private Foundation) and Section 501(e), 501(f), 501(k),

st

Supplementary Information-(See separate instructions.)
p MUST be completed by the above organizations and attached to their Form 990 or 990-EZ

OMB No 1545-0047

2006

Name of the organization
ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP

Employer identification number

36 4447457

Part | |

(See page 2 of the instructions. List each one. If there are none, enter "None.")

Compensation of the Five Highest Paid Employees Other Than Officers, Directors, and Trustees

d) Contnbutions to
fa tame e ny " P st imaboto | o compensaton | SEETEEE st nd S

M. MARALDT DIR SPEC. PRJ|
3400 N. AUSTIN AVE, CHICAGO, IL 40.00 96.,000.
N. RICHARD _ ___ _ _ _ DIR OF RES PROG
3400 N. AUSTIN AVE, CHICAGO, TIL 40.00 79.808.
XK. HORNING _ MANAGING DIR
3400 N. AUSTIN AVE, CHICAGO, TIL 40.00 96.,000.
A. LISTAK DIR DEV.
3400 N. AUSTIN AVE, CHICAGO, IL 40.00 80,856.
R._HENDRICKSON /| ASSOC DIR, GRAD SPT
3400 N. AUSTIN AVE, CHICAGO, IL 40.00 69,808.
Total number of other employees paid
over $50,000 > 6
] Part lI-A | Compensation of the Five Highest Paid Independent Contractors for Professional Services

(See page 2 of the instructions. List each one (whether individuals or firms). If there are none, enter “None.")

(a) Name and address of each independent contractor pard more than $50,000 (b) Type of service (c) Compensation

LIFE_LONG LEARNING ASSOCIATION ________________ PROFESSIONAL
P.O. BOX 2804, BLUE JAY, CA 92317 DEVELOPMENT 226,442,
Total number of others receing over
$50,000 for professional services » 0
| Part lI-B | Compensation of the Five Highest Paid Independent Contractors for Other Services

(List each contractor who performed services other than professtonal services, whether individuals or

firms. If there are none, enter "None.” See page 2 of the instructions.)

(a) Name and address of each independent contractor paid more than $50,000 (b} Type of service (c) Compensation

Total number of other contractors receving over

$50,000 for other services | 2 0

623101/01-18-07

10

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 and Form 990-EZ.

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2006

2006.06010 ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LE 04519_ 1




Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2006 ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP 36-4447457 Page?

Statements About Activities (See page 2 of the mstructions.) Yes| No
1 During the year, has the organization attempted to influence national, state, or local legislation, including any attempt to influence
public opinion on a legislative matter or referendum? 1f “Yes," enter the total expenses paid or incurred in connection with the
lobbying activities P> $ $ 42,000, (Mustequal amounts on line 38, Part VI-A, or
line i of Part VI-B.) VI-B, LINE I 1 [ X
Organizations that made an election under section 501(h) by filtng Form 5768 must complete Part VI-A. Other organizations
checking “Yes" must complete Part VI-B AND attach a statement giving a detailed description of the lobbying activities.
2 During the year, has the organization, either directly or indirectly, engaged in any of the following acts with any substantiat contributors,
trustees, directors, officers, creators, key employees, or members of their families, or with any taxable organization with which any such
person Is affiliated as an officer, director, trustee, majority owner, or principal beneficiary? (/f the answer to any question 1s "Yes,”
attach a detailed statement explaining the transactions.)
a Sale, exchange, or leasing of property? 2a X
b Lending of money or other extension of credit? 2b X
¢ Furmishing of goods, services, or facilities? 2¢c X
d Payment of compensation (or payment or reimbursement of expenses if more than $1,000)? SEE PART V-A, FORM 990 |24 [ X
e Transfer of any part of its Income or assets? 2e X
3 a Did the organization make grants for scholarships, fellowships, student loans, etc.? (If “Yes,” attach an explanation of how
the organization determines that recipients qualify to receive payments.) 3a X
b Dd the organization have a section 403(b) annuity plan for its employees? 3 [ X
¢ Did the organization recetve or hold an easement for conservation purposes, Including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas or historic structures? If “Yes," attach a detailed statement 3c X
d Did the organization provide credit counseling, debt management, credit reparr, or debt negotiation services? 3d X
4 a Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds? If “Yes," complete lines 4b through 4g. If *No,” complete lines 4f
and 4g ) ] 4a X
b Did the organizatton make any taxable distributions under section 4966? N/A
¢ Did the organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? N/A

d Enter the total number of donor advised funds owned at the end of the tax year

e Enter the aggregate value of assets held in all donor advised funds owned at the end of the tax year

f Enter the total number of separate funds or accounts owned at the end of the year (excluding donor advised funds included on
line 4d) where donors have the rnight to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts

o Enter the aggregate value of assets in all funds or accounts included on line 4f at the end of the tax year

vy VY

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2006

623111
01-18-07
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2006 ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP 36-4447457 Pages
Part IV | Reason for Non-Private Foundation Status (See pages 4 through 7 of the instructions.)

I certify that the organization 1s not a private foundation because it 1s; (Please check only ONE applicable box.)

5 D A church, convention of churches, or association of churches. Section 170(b)(1)(A)(1).
6 E] A school. Section 170(b){1)(A)(u). (Also complete Part V.)
7 E] A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization. Section 170(b)(1)(A)(m).
8 E] A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit. Section 170(b)(1)(A)(v)-
9 E] A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital. Section 170(b)(1)(A)(in). Enter the hospital's name, city,
and state P>
10 E] An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental urit. Section 170(b){ 1)(A)(wv).
(Also complete the Support Schedule in Part IV-A)
11a L—i] An organization that normally recewves a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public.
Section 170(b)(1)(A)(v1). (Also complete the Support Schedule in Part IV-A)
11b E] A community trust. Section 170(b)(1)(A)(v1). (Also complete the Support Schedule in Part iV-A.)
12 ':| An organization that normally recesves: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its charitable, etc., functions - subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of
its support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired
by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Also complete the Support Schedute in Part IV-A.)
13 ':| An organization that is not controlled by any disqualified persons (other than foundation managers) and otherwise meets the requirements of section
509(a)(3). Check the box that describes the type of supporting organization;
E] Type | E] Type Hl E] Type llI-Functionally Integrated ':| Type I-Other
Provide the following information about the supported organizations (See page 7 of the instructions.)
(2) (b) (c) (d) (e)
Name(s) of supported organization(s) Employer Type of organization Is the supported Amount of
identification (described in lines | organization listed in support
number (EIN) 5 through 12 above the supporting
or IRC section) organization’s
governing documents?
Yes No
Total |

14 E] An organization organized and operated to test for public safety. Section 509(a)(4). (See page 7 of the instructions.)
Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2006

623121
01-18-07
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-£7) 2006 ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOIL, LEADERSHIP 36-4447457 Page4

art IV-A | Support Schedule (Complete only if you checked a box on line 10, 11, or 12) Use cash method of accounting.

[PartIV-A|

Note: You may use the worksheet in the instructions for converting from the accrual to the cash method of accounting.

Calendar year (or fiscal year

beginning in) > (a) 2005 (b) 2004 (c) 2003 (d) 2002 () Total

15

€ifts, grants, and contributions
received. (Do not include unusual

grants. See line 28.) 4,505,443.| 4,655,726.| 4,231,628.] 1,570,172.] 14,962,969.

16

Membership fees received

17

Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services
performed, or furnishing of
facilities i any activity that 1s
related to the organization's

charitable, etc., purpose 17,468. 10,280. 11,676. 39.,424.

18

Gross income from interest,
dividends, amounts received from
payments on securities loans (sec-
tion 512(a)(5)), rents, royalties, and
unrelated business taxable income
(less section 511 taxes) from
businesses acquired by the
organization after June 30, 1975

19

Net income from unrelated business
activities not included in line 18

20

Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either
paid to it or expended on its behalf

21

The value of services or facilities
furmished to the organization by a
governmental unit without charge.
Do not include the value of services
or facilities generally furnished to
the public without charge

22

Other income. Attach a schedule.
Do not include gain or (loss) from
sale of capital assets

23

Total of lines 15 through 22 4,522,911.] 4,666,006. 4,243,304./ 1,570,172.| 15,002,393.

24

Line 23 minus line 17 4,505,443.) 4,655,726.| 4,231,628.] 1,570,172.| 14,962,969.

25

Enter 1% of line 23 45,229. 46,660. 42,433. 15,702.

26

Organizations described on lines 10 or 11: a Enter 2% of amount in column (e), line 24 > | 26a 299,259,
Prepare a list for your records to show the name of and amount contributed by each person (other than a governmental
umit or publcly supported organization) whose total gifts for 2002 through 2005 exceeded the amount shown in line 26a.

Do not file this list with your return. Enter the total of all these excess amounts > | 26b 933,705.
Total support for section 509(a)(1) test: Enter line 24, column (&) »loeec | 14,962,969,
Add: Amounts from column (e) for ines: 18 19
22 26b 933,705. » | 26d 933,705.
e Public support (e 26¢ minus line 26d total) >|26e | 14,029,264.
f _Public support percentage (line 26e (numerator) divided by line 26¢ (denominator)) P | 26t 93.7599%
27  Organizations described on line 12; a For amounts included in lines 15, 16, and 17 that were received from a "disqualified person,” prepare a list for your
records to show the name of, and total amounts received in each year from, each "disqualified person.” Do not file this list with your return. Enter the sum of
such amounts for each year: N/A
(2005) (2004) (2003) (2002)
For any amount included in Iine 17 that was recerved from each person (other than "disqualified persons”), prepare a list for your records to show the name of,
and amount recewved for each year, that was more than the larger of (1) the amount on line 25 for the year or {2) $5,000. (Include in the list organizations
described in lines 5 through 11b, as well as individuals.) Do not file this list with your return. After computing the difference between the amount received and
the larger amount described n (1) or (2), enter the sum of these differences (the excess amounts) for eachyear: N/A
(2005) (2004) (2003) (2002)
Add: Amounts from column (e) for fines: 15 16
17 20 21 > | 27¢ N/A
d Add: Line 27a total and fine 27b total » | 27d N/A
e Public support (Iine 27¢ total minus line 27d total) > | 27e N/A
f Total support for section 509(a)(2) test: Enter amount on line 23, column (e) > I 271 | N/A
g Public support percentage (line 27e (numerator) divided by line 27f (denominator)) > (279 N/A %
h _Investment income percentage (line 18, column (e) (numerator) divided by line 27f (denominator)) » | 27h N/A %
28 Unusual Grants: For an organization described in line 10, 11, or 12 that received any unusual grants during 2002 through 2005, prepare a list for your records to
show, for each year, the name of the contributor, the date and amount of the grant, and a brief description of the nature of the grant. Do not file this list with your
return. Do not include these grants in hine 15.
623131 01-18-07 NONE Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2006
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2006 ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHTIP 36-4447457 Pages
PartV | Private School Questionnaire (See page 9 of the instructions.) N/A

- (To be completed ONLY by schools that checked the box on line 6 in Part IV)

29  Does the organization have a racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students by statement i its charter, bylaws, other governing Yes| No
nstrument, or 1n a resolution of its governing body? 29

30 Does the organization include a statement of its racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students in all its brochures, catalogues,
and other written communications with the public dealing with student admissions, programs, and scholarships? 30

31  Has the organization publicized its racially nondiscniminatory policy through newspaper or broadcast media during the period of
solicitation for students, or during the registration period if it has no solicitation program, in a way that makes the policy known
to all parts of the general community it serves®? 31

If*Yes," please describe; if *No," please explamn. (If you need more space, attach a separate statement.)

32  Does the organization maintan the following:

a Records indicating the racial composition of the student body, faculty, and administrative staff? 32a
Records documenting that scholarships and other financial assistance are awarded on a racially nondiscriminatory basis? 32b
¢ Copies of all catalogues, brochures, announcements, and other written communications to the public dealing with student
admissions, programs, and scholarships? 32¢
d Copies of all material used by the organization or on its behalf to solicit contributions? 32d

If you answered “No" to any of the above, please explain. (If you need more space, attach a separate statement.)

33  Does the organization discriminate by race in any way with respect to:

a Students' rights or privileges? 33a
b Admissions policies? 33b
¢ Employment of faculty or administrative staff? 33¢c
d Scholarships or other financial assistance? 33d
e Educational policies? 33e
f Use of facilitres? 33f
g Athletic programs? 33g
h Other extracurricular activities? 33h

If you answered “Yes" to any of the above, please explain. (If you need more space, attach a separate statement.)

) 34 a Does the organization receive any financiat aid or assistance from a governmental agency? 34a

b Has the organization's right to such aid ever been revoked or suspended? 34b

If you answered “Yes" to either 34a or b, please explain using an attached statement.
35  Does the organization certify that it has complied with the applicable requirements of sections 4.01 through 4.05 of Rev. Proc. 75-50,
1975-2 C.B. 587, covering racial nondiscrimination®? If "No,” attach an explanation 35

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2006

623141
01-18-07
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-£7) 2006 ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP

36-4447457 _ Pages

| Part VI-A | Lobbying Expenditures by Electing Public Charities (See page 10 of the nstructions.) N/A
(To be completed ONLY by an eligible organization that filed Form 5768)
Check P> a [:] if the organization belongs to an affilated group. Check » b I:] if you checked "a” and "imited control” provisions apply.
Limits on Lobbying Expenditures Aﬁlllatéz)group To be com(:IZ:ted for all
(The term "expenditures* means amounts paid or incurred.) totals electing organizations
N/A
36 Total lobbying expenditures to influence public opinion (grassroots lobbying) 36
37 Total lobbying expenditures to influence a legislative body (direct lobbying) 37
38 Total lobbying expenditures (add lines 36 and 37) 38
39 Other exempt purpose expenditures 39
40 Total exempt purpose expenditures (add hines 38 and 39) 40
41 Lobbying nontaxable amount. Enter the amount from the following table -
If the amount on line 40 is - The lobbying nontaxable amount is -
Not over $500,000 20% of the amount on line 40
Over $500,000 but not over $1,000,000 $100,000 plus 15% of the excess over $500,000
Over $1,000,000 but not over $1,500,000 $175,000 plus 10% of the excess over $1,000,000 41
Over $1,500,000 but not over $17,000,000 $225,000 plus 5% of the excess over $1,500,000
Over $17,000,000 $1,000,000
42 Grassroots nontaxable amount (enter 25% of line 41) 42
43 Subtract hine 42 from hine 36. Enter -0- 1f line 42 1S more than ine 36 43
44 Subtract hne 41 from line 38. Enter -0- if line 41 1S more than hine 38 44
Caution: If there 1s an amount on either line 43 or line 44, you must file Form 4720.

4-Year Averaging Period Under Section 501(h)

(Some organizations that made a section 501(h) election do not have to complete all of the five columns

below. See the mstructions for lines 45 through 50 on page 13 of the instructions.)

Lobbying Expenditures During 4-Year Averaging Period

N/A
Calendar year (or (a) (b) (c) (d) (e)
fiscal year beginning in) » 2006 2005 2004 2003 Total
45 Lobbying nontaxable
amount 0.
46 Lobbying ceilling amount
(150% of ling 45(e)) 0.
47 Total lobbying
expenditures 0.
48 Grassroots nontaxable
amount 0.
49 Grassroots celling amount
{150% of line 48(e})) 0.
50 Grassroots lobbying
expenditures 0.
Part VI-B | Lobbying Activity by Nonelecting Public Charities
(For reporting only by organizations that did not complete Part VI-A) (See page 13 of the instructions.)
During the year, did the organization attempt to influence national, state or local legislation, including any attempt to
Yes | No Amount
influence public opinion on a legislative matter or referendum, through the use of:
a Volunteers X
b Paid staff or management (Include compensation in expenses reported on lines ¢ through h.) X
¢ Media advertisements X
d Mailings to members, legislators, or the public X
e Pubhications, or published or broadcast statements X
f Grants to other organizations for lobbying purposes X
g Direct contact with legsslators, therr staffs, government officials, or a legislative body X 42,000.
h Rallies, demonstrations, seminars, conventions, speeches, lectures, or any other means X
i Total lobbying expenditures (Add lines ¢ through h.) 42,000.

If "Yes" to any of the above, also attach a statement giving a detailed description of the lobbying activities.

SEE_STATEMENT 5

831607 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2006
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2006 ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP 36-4447457 Page7?
Part VI | Information Regarding Transfers To and Transactions and Relationships With Noncharitable
‘Exempt Organizations (See page 13 of the instructions.)
51  Did the reporting organization directly or indirectly engage in any of the following with any other organization described in section
501(c) of the Code (other than section 501(c)(3) organizations) or in section 527, relating to political organizations?

a Transfers from the reporting organization to a noncharitable exempt organization of: Yes | No
(i) Cash 51a(i) X
(ii) Other assets afii) X
b Other transactions:
(i) Sales or exchanges of assets with a noncharitable exempt organization b(i) X
(i) Purchases of assets from a noncharitable exempt organization b(ii} X
(iii) Rental of facilities, equipment, or other assets biii) X
(iv) Reimbursement arrangements b(iv) X
{v) Loans or loan guarantees b{v) X
(vi) Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations b(vi) X
¢ Sharing of facilities, equipment, mailing lists, other assets, or paid employees ¢ X
d If the answer to any of the above Is "Yes,” complete the following schedule. Column (b) should always show the fair market value of the
goods, other assets, or services given by the reporting organization. If the organization received less than fair market value in any
transaction or sharing arrangement, show in column (d) the value of the goods, other assets, or services received:
(a) (b) () (d)
Line no. Amount involved Name of noncharitable exempt organization Description of transfers, transactions, and sharing arrangements
51C 22,000.CHICAGO PUBLIC SCHOOLS SEE STATEMENT 6
52 a s the organization directly or indirectly affiliated with, or related to, one or more tax-exempt organizations described in sectton 501(c) of the
Code (other than section 501(c)(3)) or in section 527? » |:| Yes IE No
b H "Yes," complete the following schedule: N/A
(a) {b) (c)
Name of organization Type of organization Description of refationship
s Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2006
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ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP ' 36-4447457

FORM 990 - OTHER EXPENSES STATEMENT 1
(A) (B) (C) (D)
PROGRAM MANAGEMENT
DESCRIPTION TOTAL SERVICES AND GENERAL FUNDRAISING
TRAINING ACADEMY
EXPENSES 1,503,558. 1,503,558.
RESIDENT BOOKS 22,652. 22,652.
RESIDENT RECRUITMENT 9,525. 9,525.
OTHER RESIDENT
EXPENSES 3,757. 3,757.
GRADUATE SUPPORT 43,900. 43,900. 0.
ENRICHMENT PROGRAMS 149,045. 149,045.
PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT 261,266. 260,446. 820.
PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES 97,441. 28. 92,350. 5,063.
LOBBYIST 42,000. 42,000.
MISCELLANEOUS 131,565. 65,321. 48,712. 17,532.
ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSE 52,744. <12,232.> 70,538. <5,562.>
DEVELOPMENT 30,393. 30,393.
BUILDING
IMPROVEMENTS 0.
WEBSITE DEVELOPMENT 2,900. 2,900.
INCENTIVES 75,000. 75,000.
OTHER COACHES COSTS 12,386. 12,386.
YEAR 1 PROF
DEVELOPMENT 177,325. 177,325.
TOTAL TO FM 990, LN 43 2,615,457. 2,310,711. 215,320. 89,426.
FORM 990 STATEMENT OF ORGANIZATION'S PRIMARY EXEMPT PURPOSE STATEMENT 2
PART III
EXPLANATION

THE ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP (AUSL) IMPROVES STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT
IN CHICAGO'S PUBLIC SCHOOLS BY ATTRACTING, TRAINING, AND RETAINING
CHICAGO'S NEXT GENERATION OF EXCEPTIONAL TEACHERS AND SCHOOL LEADERS.

21 STATEMENT(S) 1, 2
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ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP

36-4447457

FORM 990 - DEPRECIATION OF ASSETS NOT HELD FOR INVESTMENT STATEMENT 3
COST OR ACCUMULATED
DESCRIPTION OTHER BASIS DEPRECIATION BOOK VALUE
EQUIPMENT 25,1009. 23,188. 1,921.
LEASHOLD IMPROVEMENTS 204,219. 196,109. 8,110.
LEASHOLD IMPROVEMENTS 20,423. 11,160. 9,263.
LEASHOLD IMPROVEMENTS AND
EQUIPMENT 7,690. 4,178. 3,512.
EQUIPMENT-BRADY GADGET MACHINE 5,795. 580. 5,215.
EQUIPMENT-BLACKBAUD 19,083. 0. 19,083.
TOTAL TO FORM 990, PART IV, LN 57 282;319. 235, 215. 47,104.
FORM 990 OTHER LIABILITIES STATEMENT 4
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
FUNDS HELD FOR CHICAGO ACADEMY HIGH SCHOOL 198,690.
TOTAL TO FORM 990, PART IV, LINE 65, COLUMN B 198,690.
SCHEDULE A STATEMENT OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES - PART VI-B STATEMENT 5

LOBBYIST STRIVED TO SECURE STATE FUNDING FOR THE CONTINUATION OF A TEACHER

TRAINING PROGRAM.

10561211 787606 04519

22

STATEMENT(S) 3, 4, 5
2006.06010 ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LE 04519__1




ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP ' 36-4447457

SCHEDULE A INVOLVEMENT WITH NONCHARITABLE ORGANIZATIONS STATEMENT 6
PART VII, LINE 51, COLUMN (D)

NAME OF NONCHARITABLE EXEMPT ORGANIZATION

CHICAGO PUBLIC SCHOOLS

DESCRIPTION OF TRANSFERS, TRANSACTIONS, AND SHARING ARRANGEMENTS

SHARING OF FACILITIES

23 STATEMENT(S) 6
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Accchavund e AQe

Aca&emy for Urban School Leadership EIN#: 36-4447457
Form 990, Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax
June 30, 2007

Part III, Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Exempt Purpose Achievements

Thirty-seven aspiring teachers graduated from AUSL’s 12-month tramning program in June 2007. AUSL
“Residents” are engaged 1n a leadership development and an urban teacher preparation program that includes
master’s degree coursework provided n partnership with National-Louis University, and a ten-month Teaching
Residency. Residents are matched with an accomplished Mentor Teacher with whom they collaborate, plan, and
engage n reflective dialogue daily. Residents are experiencing a real school year in its entirety for the most
solid base of “student teaching.” They are building a repertoire of core teaching practices with a strong focus on
critical thinking, problem-solving and decision making. Residents also participate m weekly grade-level and
vertical grade-level team meetings, student study team meetings, and teacher learning teams. The Director of
Resident Program works closely with both Mentor Teachers and Residents to ensure that each Resident 1s
developing the proficiencies of an effective urban teacher.

Upon graduation, the Residents commut to a compulsory five-year placement in high-poverty, low-performance
CPS schools. AUSL provides professional development and field coaching support and induction including on-
site classroom observation and feedback, continuous training, and career-progression support. AUSL graduates
not only have the skills, experience, and support needed to make an 1mpact on the educational lives of children,
but they will also be entering a community of like-minded educators who are commuitted to teaching where
excellence is needed most.

AUSL also provided for the management of The Chicago Academy, Dodge Academy, and The Tarkington
School of Excellence, which have a combined total enroliment of about 2,150 pre-K through eighth-grade
students, and Chicago Academy High School which has about 500 9. 12" grade students. The academes serve
a dual mission as neighborhood schools and CPS’s first school-based teacher preparation program for aspiring
teachers. In lieu of a Local School Council, AUSL serves as the governing board. The goal of the CPS-AUSL
collaboration 1s to improve student achievement in Chicago Public Schools by attracting, training and retaining
Chicago’s next generation of exceptional teachers and school leaders. The students will be expected to meet
objective test standards under the Pupil Accountability Plan developed by the Chicago Public School system.

In addition to the above, AUSL opened Chicago’s first NCLB Turnaround School, The Sherman School of
Excellence with enrollment of about 650 pre-K thru 8" grade students. A chronically underperforming school,
Sherman was one of the two lowest performing elementary schools within CPS. Under the Turnaround model,
all teachers were removed, AUSL hired a new principal approved by CPS, and then worked with the principal to
hire the complete team of teachers, leaders, and bullding staff. The intensely trained graduates of our urban
Residency program are part of the pipeline of exceptional teachers needed to accomplish the Turnaround model
with enduring success.




Foom 8868 Application for Extension of Time To File an

(Rev. April 2007) Exempt Organization Return OMB No. 1545-1709
Department of.the Treasury

Intemnal Revenue Service » File a separate appiication for each retum.

¥ |f you are filing for an Automatic 3-Month Extension, complete only Part | and check this box »

® if you are fiing for an Additional (not automatic) 3-Month Extension, complete only Part |l (on page 2 of this form).
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Type or Name of Exempt Organization Employer identification number
print
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File by the

duedate for | Number, street, and room or suite no. If a P.O. box, see Instructions.

:'&gnvf’s"; 3400 N. AUSTIN AVENUE

mstructions | City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code. For a foreign address, see instructions

CHICAGO, IL 60634

Check type of return to be filed (file a separate application for each return):
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MANN . WEITZ & ASSOCIATES L.1.C.

Certified Public Accountants & Consultarnls

111 Deer Lake Road, Suite 125 Deerfield, IL 60015-9578
PHONE B847,267.3400 TFAX 847.267.3401

Email: info@mannweitz.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

August 24, 2009

Board of Directors
Academy for Urban School Leadership
Chicago, Iliinois

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of the Academy for Urban School Leadership
(AUSL) as of June 30, 2009, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the
year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of AUSL’s management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require”
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
‘We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Academy for Urban School Leadership as of June 30, 2009, and the changes in its net assets and
its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.




ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2009
ASSETS
Cash
Pledges receivable - Note 3
Other receivables

Prepaid expenses
Leasehold improvements, equipment and software, net - Note 4

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Funds held for others

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted - Note 5

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

3

$ 1,003,137
8,778,361
78,703

121,210
110,614

$ 10,092,025

$ 71,195
482,115
81,670

634,980

1,290,862
8,166,183

9,457,045

$ 10,092,025




REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Contributions

CPS funding - Note 2

State and Federal funding
Capital project - Note 7
Dividend and interest income

Total Revenues

Net assets released from restrictions - Note 6

Total Revenues and Other Support

EXPENSES
School Management
Teaching Academies
Turnaround Schools
Capitfal project - Note 7

Total School Management
Central Program

Curriculum assessment
Leadership

Residency coaching and administration

Coaches

Curricular enhancements adminisiration

Recruiting and admissions
Total Central Program

Administration
Leadership
Development/Communications
Support

Total Administration
Total Expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS
Beginning of year

End of year

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Unrestricted

ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP

Temporarily

Restricted Total

¥ 589,339
2,701,454

16,466

1,932,083 $ 2,521,422
3,376,500 6,077,954
790,085 790,085
2,600,000 2,600,000
16,466

3,307,259

12,179,710

8,698,668 12,005,927

(12,179,710)

15,486,969

(3,481,042) 12,005,927

5,979,600
2,536,287
2,600,000

5,979,600
2,536,287
2,600,000

11,115,887

11,115,887 .

589,281
779,866
316,172
253,125
182,548
141,015

589,281
779,866
316,172
253,125
182,548
141,015

2,262,007

2,262,007

603,067
292,157
452,418

603,067
292,157
452,418

1,347,642

1,347,642

14,725,536

14,725,536

761,433

529,429

(3,481,042) (2,719,609)

11,647,225 12,176,654

$ 1,290,862

3

8,166,183 3 9,457,045

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2009

CASH FLLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets $ (2,719,609)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash used for operating activities

Depreciation 60,209
Net (increase) decrease in assets
Pledges receivable 2,439,714
Other reveivables (74,688)
Prepaid expenses 20,201
Net increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable 27,808
Accrued expenses 302,619
Deferred revenue (100,000)
Funds held for others (108,483)
NET DECREASE IN CASH (152,229)
CASH
Beginning of year $ 1,155,366
End of year b 1,003,137

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

6
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ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOI, L.EADERSHIP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND ORGANIZATION

The Academy for Urban School Leadership (AUSL) is an Illinois non-stock, not-for-profit
corporation established on January 17, 2001. AUSL provides school management services
partnering with the Chicago Public Schools (CPS). AUSL’s mission is to improve student
achievement in Chicago’s high-poverty, chronically failing schools through a disciplined
transformation process, built on a foundation of specially trained AUSL teachers.

In carrying out its mission, AUSIL has partnered with National-Louis University and the
University of Illinois, Chicago, to develop a graduate-level Urban Teacher Residency training
program. AUSL admitted the first class of participants (residents) to the program in July 2002.
As of June 30, 2009, AUSL has graduated 311 teachers.

AUSL currently manages four elementary and two high school Teaching Academies for AUSL’s
Residency Program as described further in Note 2. As part of its mission, AUSL also manages
four elementary school Turnarounds and one high school Turnaround as described in Note 2.
Three additional elementary school Turnarounds were opened by AUSL in the fall of 2009,

AUSL’s operations are funded primarily through its partnership with CPS and donations from
foundations and corporations in the Chicago area and nationally.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.
Using this method, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when
incurred.

NET ASSET ACCOUNTING

Restricted net assets, the use of which has been limited by the donor or grantor, are used to
differentiate resources from unrestricted net assets, on which the donor or grantor places no
restriction or which arise as a result of the operations of AUSL. All contributions and grants are
considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor.
Amounts restricted by the donor for specific purposes or designated for future periods are
reported as increases in temporarily restricted support. When a donor restriction expires, that is,
when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported as net assets released
from restrictions in the statement of activities.
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ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP

NOTES TO FINANCJAL STATEMENTS

NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- Continued

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

AUSL maintains cash balances in one financial institution that at certain times may be in excess
of the insurable limits provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation {(FDIC).

PLEDGES RECEIVABLE

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to AUSL are reported at fair value at the
date the promise is received. Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected
within one year are recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional promises to give that are
expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present value of their estimated future
cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-free interest rates
applicable to the years in which the promises are received.

Conditional promises to give are not included as support until the conditions are substantially
met.

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL PLEDGES

The allowance for doubtful pledges is determined by management based on AUSL’s historical
losses, specific circumstances, and general economic conditions. Periodically, management
reviews pledges receivable and records an allowance for specific pledges based on current
circumstances and charges off the receivable against the allowance when all attempts to collect
the pledge have failed. At June 30, 2009, management has estimated that no ailowance is
necessary.

LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS, EQUIPMENT AND SOFTWARE

Assets are recorded at cost, or if donated to AUSL, at fair market value on the date of donation.
Expenditures for maintenance are charged to operations as incurred and renewals or betterments
in excess of $5,000 are capitalized. Equipment purchased over $1,500 is capitalized.
Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful asset lives. The
useful lives used to compute depreciation for equipment are 5 to 10 years. Leaschold
improvements are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful lives of the
improvements which is currently estimated to be 10 years.

CONTRIBUTED GOODS AND SERVICES

If significant, AUSL recognizes the estimated fair value of contributed goods and services as
contributed support and related assets or expenses.
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ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOCL LEADERSHIP

NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NATURE QF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- Continued

FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES

The costs of providing the program and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of functional expenses. Expenses of AUSL are easily associated with the
program or supporting services and are reflected in that functional category.

USE OF ESTIMATES IN THE PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, gains and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

INCOME TAXES

AUSL is a nonprofit organization which has been granted a tax-exempt status under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. AUSL is required to pay Federal and State income taxes
only on its net unrelated business income. During the year ended June 30, 2009, there was no
unrelated business income and, accordingly, no income tax liability. In addition, AUSL received
a determination that it is not a “private foundation” under Section 509(a) of the Internal Revenue
Code.

AUSL AND THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE CITY OF CHICAGO RELATIONSHIP

TEACHING ACADEMIES

AUSL and the Board of Education of the City of Chicago (the Board of Education) have an
agreement (the Agreement) to establish and operate public schools within the CPS system which
will serve as Teaching Academies and provide high quality education for CPS students. The
elementary school Teaching Academies managed by AUSL on behalf of CPS include:

The Chicago Academy; opened fall 2001; located in Portage Park

Dodge Renaissance Academy; opened fall 2003; located in East Garfield Park
Tarkington School of Excellence; opened fall 2005; located in Marquette Park
National Teachers Academy; opened fall 2007; located in the South Loop

The high school Teaching Academies managed by AUSL on behalf of CPS include:
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ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AUSL AND THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE CITY OF CHICAGO RELATIONSHIP

- Continued

TEACHING ACADEMIES - Continued

Chicago Academy High School; opened fall 2004; located in Portage Park
Collins Academy; opened fall 2007; located in North Lawndale

Under the terms of the Agreement, AUSL is responsible for providing day-to-day management of
the above-named elementary and high school Teaching Academies. This includes hiring and
oversight of the principal, curriculum development and assessment, enrollment monitoring,
budget preparation, and related activities. Additionally, AUSL is responsible for its Residency
program that combines graduate-level coursework, classroom experience, and ongoing
professional development.

The Board of Education is responsible for providing and paying for all financial, physical,
administrative, and educational resources for the previously named elementary and high school
Teaching Academies on a basis consistent with that provided to other CPS schools. These
resources include: classroom and office facilities; faculty, administrative, security and support
personnel; instructional media and materials; furniture, fixtures, and equipment; food and
security services; and all other programs and services available to other CPS schools,

CPS committed an additional $3.3 million in professional development funds to AUSL to
support its mission during the 2008-2009 school year. This funding went directly to the
Teaching Academies to support the extended day for teachers, extra administrative and teaching
positions. The $3.3 million has been recorded in revenue as CPS Funding and has also been
recorded as Teaching Academy expense to reflect the incremental cost associated with having
schools participate as AUSL Teaching Academies.

For fiscal year 2009, AUSL has recorded $99,000 in temporarily restricted contributed services,
consisting of donated administrative office space from The Chicago Academy and the Morton
School of Excellence. AUSL has recognized rent expense of $99,000 for the year ended June 30,
2009, and thus released those amounts from restriction.

TURNAROUND SCHOOLS

AUSL has received approval from, and entered into an agreement with, the Board of Education to
manage and operate the following elementary school Tumnarounds:

Sherman School of Excelience; opened fall 2006; located in the Englewood neighborhood
Harvard School of Excellence; opened fall 2007; located in the Auburn-Gresham neighborhood
Howe School of Excellence; opened fall 2008; located in the Austin neighborhood
Morton School of Excellence; opened fall 2008; located in the Austin neighborhood

Orr Academy High School; opened fall 2008; located in the Austin neighborhood

10
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AUSL AND THE BOARD QF EDUCATION OF THE CITY OF CHICAGO RELATIONSHIP
- Continued

TURNAROQUND SCHOQLS - Continued

AUSL provides school turnaround services at the above Turnaround schools which include
curriculum development and assessment, support of after-school and extracurricular
enhancements, assistance with parental involvement and community initiatives, coaching
assistance, and professional development. In 2008-2009, AUSL received $1.6 million for such
services which are included in revenue as CPS funding.

In the first year of a Turnaround School, AUSL provides additional services related to principal
recruitment, planning positions for the principals and key staff, and summer professional
development, etc, In 2008-2009, AUSL received $1.1 million for these services provided to the
three new Turnarounds which is included in revenue as CPS funding.

The Board of Education is responsible for providing and paying for all financial, physical,
administrative, and educational resources for the elementary school Tumarounds described above.
These resources include: classroom and office facilities, faculty, administrative, security and
support personnel, instructional media and materials, furniture, fixtures and equipment, food and
security services and all other programs and services available to other CPS schools.

PLEDGES RECEIVABLE

At June 30, 2009, pledges receivable include unconditional promises to give that have been restricted by
donors to use for expenses incurred in the AUSL 2009-2010 program, 2010-2011 program, 2011-2012
program, designated activities of the AUSL program, acquisition of instructional equipment and
materials and various other activitics. All pledges are considered fully collectible.

The pledges receivable at June 30, 2009 arc expected to be collected as follows:

Less than one year $ 6,228,821

One to four years 2,721,110

Less: Discount to present value (171,570)
Net Pledges Receivable $ 8,778,361

AUSL used a rate of 6.5% to calculate the present value of pledges receivable.

Although AUSL has many donors, $6,806,249 of the gross pledges receivable are from two supporters of
the organization.
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ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS, EQUIPMENT AND SOFTWARE

Leasehold improvements and equipment consist of the following at June 30, 2009:

Leasehold improvements $ 228,190
Equipment . 54,127
Cuwrriculum software 135,960

418,277
Less: Accumulated depreciation 307,663

Net Leasehold Improvements
and Equipment $ 110,614

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2009 was $60,209.

5. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

AUSL reports gifts of cash, grants, and other assets as temporarily restricted if they are received with
donor stipulations limiting the use of the donated assets or designated for future periods. When a
restriction is satisfied, temporarily restricted net assets are transferred to unrestricted net assets and are
reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Temporarily restricted net assets of $8,166,183 at June 30, 2009 are restricted for the following purposes:

Amount
Strategic planning and capacity building $ 4,526,249
Residency program 3,097,682
Curricular enhancements 262,822
Coaching program development 143,000
Expiration of time 283,000
Other : 25,000
Discount to present value of
pledge receivable (171,570)
Net Temporarily Restricted
Net Assets $ 8,166,183
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ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the following restricted
purposes or expiration of time restrictions:

Amount
Capital project $ 2,600,000
Strategic planning and capacity building 2,905,290
Coaching program development 195,000
Curricular enhancements 331,064
Residency program 5,288,569
Tumaround school support ' 630,787
Expiration of time 130,000
Office rent 99,000
Total Net Assets Released
from Restrictions $ 12,179,710

CAPITAL PROJECTS AT TURNAROUND SCHOOLS

AUSL raised $2.6 million of private and public funding for the construction of a new synthetic turf field
and track at Orr Academy High School. This property is located adjacent to the school and is owned by
CPS. AUSL will not retain ownership interest in or future liability for the field. The field was
completed in August 2009.

CONTINGENT FEDERAL AWARD

AUSL received a $190,000 award from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
for facilities improvement. Management of AUSL is investigating how the award could best be utilized
on behalf of one of its Turnaround Schools. The amount may be insufficient without obtaining matching
funds which would have to be raised in the future. Until such time that it is determined that the award
can be used, the grant is considered to be contingent and is therefore not recorded as cither a pledge
receivable or in revenue as a contribution.

VOLUNTEER SERVICES

A significant amount of donated services is contributed to AUSL to support its program and supporting
services. These volunteer activities include participating on the Board of Directors and numerous other
committees. The value of these services has not been included in the financial statements.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Chicago Public Schools, subsequent to year end, commitied approximately $6 million to support AUSL
during the 2009-2010 school year. AUSL expects that ail of these funds will be used on behalf of the
Teaching Academies and Turnaround Schools to provide the same support as described previously for

the 2008-2009 school year.
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2209 West 18th St.

DAVIN LESLIE AUBLE

(312) 315-5466

Chicago, IL 60608

August 2001
June 1991

August 1988

2007-present

2006-2007
2001-2006

1999-2001
1996-1999

1996-1999
Spring 1995

1988-1990

EDUCATION

Concordia University, Teaching MA
University of Chicago, Divinity (Religion and MA
the Human Sciences)

Northwestern University, Speech BS
(Interdepartmental Studies)

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Academy for Urban School Leadership, Chicago IL, Elementary Coach Team
Leader

Academy for Urban School Leadership, Chicago IL, Field Coach

Chicago Public Schools, Francisco I. Madero Middle School, Chicago IL,
Classroom Teacher

Chicago Public Schools, Walter Reed Elementary School, Chicago, IL,
Classroom Teacher

Cooney and Conway, Attorneys at Law, Chicago IL, New Case Department
Manager

Cooney and Conway, Attorneys at Law, Chicago IL, Project Manager
Cooney and Conway, Attorneys at Law, Chicago IL, Personal Assistant to
Senior (Founding) Partner

C.G. Jung Institute for Analytical Psychology, Evanston IL, Educational
Audiotape Coordinator and Librarian

WORKSHOPS AND PRESENTATIONS

Auble, D. L. (January, 2004) Teaching Big Idea Projects. Presented at GEARUP Teacher
Leadership Conference.

Auble, D.L. (2006 and 2007) Taking Care of Yourself: Avoiding teacher burnout. Presented at
AUSL Summer Academy.

Auble, D.L. (March, 2007) Utilizing Popular Song Lyrics Intelligently in your Classroom.
Presented for for AUSL graduates.




Auble, D.L. (2007) Getting Ready for the First Day of School. Presented at AUSL Spring
Academy.

Auble, D.L. (August, 2007) Introduction to Cognitive Coaching. Presented for new AUSL
mentor teachers and coaches.

Auble, D.L. (June, 2009) Signature Strategies: Strong Voice and Positive Framing. Presented
for AUSL network lead and mentor teachers.

Auble, D.L. (2009) An Overview of Engaging and Personalized Instruction for the 2009-10
School Year. Presented at AUSL Leadership Summit.




700 Blackthorn Rd.

TIMOTHY J. CAWLEY

(T) 847-501-5226

Winnetka, IL 60093

1977
1994

2008-present

2006-2007
2005-2006

2003-2004
2001-2002
1998-2001
1995-1997
1993-1995
1991-1993

1990-1991
1988-1989

1987

2003-present

1996-present

2006-2007

2003-2007
1998-2001
1998-2001

EDUCATION

University of Notre Dame, Notre Dame, IN BBA
University of Michigan, Global Leadership Cert.
Program, Ann Arbor, MI

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Managing Director, Finance & Administration, The Academy for Urban
School Leadership, Chicago, IL

Senior Vice President, Global Logistics, Motorola, Inc., Schaumburg, IL
Senior Vice President, Mobile Devices Supply Chain, Motorola, Inc.,
Schaumburg, IL

Senior Vice President and General Manager CDMA Product Line, Personal
Communication Sector, Motorola, Inc., Schaumburg, IL

Corporate Vice President and General Manager North America, Personal
Communications Sector, Motorola, Inc., Schaumburg, IL

President, Ameritech International

President, Ameritech Small Business Services

Vice President, Marketing, Small Business Services, Ameritech International
Chief Executive Officer, Board of Directors, Revell-Mongram, Inc., Morton
Grove, IL

Senior Vice President, Marketing, Revell-Mongram, Inc., Morton Grove, IL
Vice President, Sales & Marketing, TEKNA, Redwood City, CA

ADDITIONAL EXPERIENCE

Co-Manager, San Francisco Mayoral Campaign for Roger Boas

COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS

Board of Advisors, University of Notre Dame, Nanovic Institute for European
Studies

Board of Directors, Northwestern University Settlement Association

Board of Advisors, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Leaders for
Manufacturing Program

Board of Directors, The Wireless Foundation

Board of Trustees, International School of Brussels

Board of Directors, United Fund for Belgium



1996-1998 Co-Chairman of Small Business Council, Chicagoland Chamber of Commerce



LAURA D. COUCHMAN

1245 W. Wellington Ave. (T) 773-534-0146
Chicago, IL 60657 (F) 773-283-0903
EDUCATION

1983 Harvard Graduate School of Business MBA

1979

2008-present

1983-2008

1999-present

Administration, Cambridge, MA
Yale University, Economics, New Haven, CT BA

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Director of Recruiting and Human Services, The Academy for Urban School
Leadership, Chicago, IL

McKinsey & Company, Inc., Chicago, IL

Director of Administration and Client Service Support, Midwest Office
Director of Professional Development, Midwest Office

Administrative Principal

Senior Engagement Manager

Associate

SERVICE TO THE PROFESSION

Member, Board of Trustees, Finance Committee, Frances Xavier Warde
School, Chicago, IL



DONALD FEINSTEIN

245 Lockwood Avenue 847-910-9399
Northfield, IL 60093

EDUCATION
1982 Loyola University, Foundations in Education PhD
1973 Northeastern University, Special Education MA
1968 University of Illinois, Business Administration BS

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2004 —present  Executive Director, Academy for Urban School Leadership
2001 — 2006 Principal, The Chicago Academy (PK — 8)
The first Teacher Training Academy at Chicago Public Schools
1984 — 2001 Principal, R. Nathaniel Dett Elementary School
1979 — 1984 Central Office Administrator, Program for ED/BD, Chicago Public Schools
1976 — 1979 District Supervisor in Special Education, Chicago Public Schools
1968 — 1976 Teacher, Chicago Public Schools

SERVICE TO THE PROFESSION

2001 - present  Helped support the opening of 14 CPS/AUSL schools

2000 - 2001 Probation Manager for West Park Academy

1996 — 2001 Mentored new CPS principals

1979 -1984 Administered development of 2 CPS schools for special education students
Formulated first CPS programs for autistic children
Established citywide BD/ED school programs

AWARDS
2009 New Schools Venture Fund — Entrepreneur of the Year Award
2005 CPS Outstanding School Partnership Award
2001 Phi Delta Kappa (Northeastern Illinois University) Principal Award

1992 CPS Principal Excellence Award



JARVIS T. SANFORD

14500 Harper Ave. (708) 841-7669
Dolton, Illinois 60419

2002

1993
1991

2003-present

2002-present

1994-present
2001-2002
2000-2001
1998-2000
1996-2002
1993-1996
1995-1996

1993-1995

EDUCATION

Northern Illinois University, Curriculum and ~ EdD

Instruction
Northern Illinois University MBA
Morehouse College BS

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Chicago Public Schools, Wendell Smith Elementary School, Chicago, IL,
Principal

Chicago Public Schools, Burnham Anthony Mathematics and Science
Inclusive Academy, Chicago, IL, Principal Intern — New Leaders for New
Schools

Anti-Defamation League, Chicago, IL, Cultural Diversity Consultant
Chicago Public Schools, Chicago, IL, Fifth Grade Teacher

District 148, Dolton Public Schools, Dolton, IL, Eighth Grade Teacher
Chicago Public Schools, Chicago, IL, Middle School Teacher

Elgin Community College, Elgin, Illinois, Part-Time Instructor

Concordia University, Mequon, Wisconsin, Instructor

University of Wisconsin—Milwaukee, Milwaukee, WI, Equal Opportunity
Specialist

University of Wisconsin—Milwaukee, Milwaukee, W1, Coordinator of Student
Development

PRESENTATIONS

Sanford, J.T. (Fall, 2002) Testing, Data and Student Achievement. Presented at Burnham
Anthony Academy Faculty In-service, Chicago Public Schools, Chicago, IL.

Sandford, J.T. (Summer, 2002) No Child Left Behind. Presented at Burnham Anthony
Inclusive Academy Faculty In-service, Chicago Public Schools, Chicago, IL.

Sanford, J.T. (June, 2002) The Power of Pray. Presented at Christian Education Department,
Progressive Baptist Church, Chicago, IL.




Sanford, J.T. (September, 2001) Serving Jesus Is da’ Bomb. Presented at Christian Education
Department, Progressive Baptist Church, Chicago, IL.

Sanford, J.T. (June, 1994) Mary’s Maya’s, Martin’s, and Malcolm’s are still being Made: Catch
the Vision. Presented at Annual ACUHO-I Conference, San Antonio, TX.

Sanford, J.T. (1994) Keynote Address. Presented at Grant Towers South 1994 Leadership and
Academic excellence Awards Program; Northern Illinois University, DeKalb, IL.

Sanford, J.T. (February, 1993) Strategic Business Plans and There Impact on Small Business
Development. Presented at Northern Illinois University Business Symposium, DeKalb, IL.

Sanford, J.T. (1993) Ethnocentrism. Presented at Spring Training Conference, Northern Illinois
University, DeKalb, IL.

Sanford, J.T. (Fall, 1991) The Challenge of Entering Graduate School. Presented at request of
faculty, served as co-presenter on African American males entering graduate school.




BRIAN D. SIMS

3400 N. Austin Ave. (T) 773-534-0146
Chicago, IL 60634

2003

1999

1993

2004-present
2003-present
2001-2003
1999-2001

1998-1999
1994-1997

2003-present

EDUCATION

National-Louis University - New Leaders for  Cert.
New Schools

Stanford University, Palo Alto, CA, MA
American History and Social Sciences in

Education

Dartmouth College, Hanover, NH, History BA

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Principal, Chicago Academy High School, Chicago Public Schools, Chicago,
IL

Director of High School Programs, The Academy for Urban School
Leadership, Chicago, IL

Dean of Studies, Dean of Students, Teacher, Project Week Director, Gateway
Charter High School, San Francisco, CA

Teacher, Summer Semester Director, Scheduler, Advisor, The Link
Community School, Newark, NJ

Consultant, Bill Traylor Foundation, Evanston, IL

Teacher, Assistant College Counselor, Coach, The Episcopal School of
Acadiana, Lafayette, LA

SERVICE TO THE PROFESSION

Director of High School Programs, The Academy for Urban School
Leadership: Part of leadership team of this nonprofit organization that trains
new teachers and runs six Chicago public schools. In 2003, led AUSL’s effort
to launch Chicago Academy High School (CAHS), the high school model for
its unique teacher-training program. Wrote successful school design proposal
that was awarded start-up funds from the Gates Foundation and the Chicago
High School Redesign Initiative. Worked with Executive Committee to
develop three-year strategic plan for overall organization, including budget,
recruitment, training, and placement. Currently oversee secondary education
operations for AUSL, including replication of CAHS and operations of
teacher-training program. Partner with National-Louis University to refine and
implement residency-based teacher training program at CAHS. Also currently
co-leader of an extensive assessment project involving thirteen high schools in
the city using data to inform instruction.



OTHER

Endorsed by the Illinois State Board of Education with a Type 75 General
Administrative Certificate

Invited presenter at major conferences organized by the Gates Foundation,
New Leaders for New Schools, New Schools Venture Fund

1998-1999 School assessment consultant at San Francisco’s Leadership High School
1998-1999 College and SAT prep counselor at Achieva College Prep Centers
1997-1999 Tutor and communications consultant for African-American youth

development program (R.I.S.E.) at Menlo Atherton (CA) High School
1998 Consultant to Vice President at Score(@Kaplan, San Francisco



MICHAEL WHITMORE

2310 N. Monticello Avenue 773-384-7464
Chicago, IL 60647

2006 - present

1993 — 2006

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Academy for Urban School Leadership

Director, Urban Teacher Residency Program

District 201, J. Sterling Morton East High School

(Four Small Schools - Business and Finance, Science and Technology, Health
and Human Services, and Arts and Communications) — approximately 800
students, 40 teachers, and one assistant principal per school.

Assistant Principal/Director of Health and Human Services Small School
(2004 — 2006)

Served as Small schools restructuring coordinator, SIP committee chairman,
and Dean’s Office Director. Roles included Operations, Teacher evaluation
and professional development, Special Education IEP, and
Parent/community coordinator

Director of English, History, and Fine Arts Departments for all four
schools (2004—present)

Roles included Department Coordination, Master Schedule creation, Staff
Development, Budget Creation, and grant writing

English Department Coordinator (2002-2004)

Developed curriculum and technology (Including Textbooks, E-Technology,
and Literacy). Roles included test-prep development and programming, Post-
secondary planning, Professional Development, and literacy training and
development

English Teacher (1993-2004)
Taught Senior AP English and Humanities to all grade and ability levels

Senior Trip Advisor (1999-2002)
Successfully completed four student tours: England, Greece and Rome, Spain,
and Mexico

Club Advisor and Athletic Sponsor (1999-2001)

Served as advisor and sponsor for Morton East Gay and Straight Alliance and
Intramural basketball

SERVICE TO THE PROFESSION



2002 —-2004
1999 —2002

1999 —2003

1991 — 1993

2009
2003

1996
1990

1998

Organized The Chicago Area Reading and Writing Workshop

Golden Apple Scholars Committee, Academy Committee

Evaluated, interviewed, and selected aspiring teachers

Helped determine the philosophical direction of the Golden Apple Foundation
Golden Apple Foundation Summer Scholars Program, DePaul University
and Elmhurst College

Designed and taught Reflective Seminar in teaching to future teachers
Observed and evaluated Golden scholars at local Chicago Schools

Provided advanced instructional training to graduating Scholars

University of Illinois at Chicago, Teaching Assistantship

Taught two sections of Research writing and the American Mythos

Taught Introduction to Composition

EDUCATION

National-Louis University EdD Candidate
University of Illinois at Chicago, Education (Leadership and MA
Administration)

University of Illinois at Chicago, English Literature MA
Wheaton College, History and Secondary Education BA
AWARDS

Golden Apple award for excellence in teaching



Catonya Withers, mother of four children at Harvard, chairperson of the Local Advisory
School Council:

I opposed the turnaround. I’d made friends with the teachers and had a bond with them. Then we
had a meeting with the AUSL people and they said, “If we don’t do this right, you let us know.”
They gave me their business cards, and said to contact them directly. | emailed Dr. Feinstein and
he got back to me. By July of the turnaround year, | was sold because of the interaction, and how
they said “Hold us accountable.” Before the school opened the staff walked through the
neighborhood and the first stop was my house. Our children only have one chance at education.

Before the turnaround, every day there was a police paddy wagon, a fire truck or an ambulance
at the school. Kids would throw books out the third story window. Seventh and eighth graders
ran the school. On a daily basis you’d see blood.

The change, it seemed like overnight. It was amazing.

My daughter on a daily basis used to get put out of the classroom. The first week after the
turnaround she got detention, but since then | haven’t had any problems and she’s more of a
leader now. She couldn’t make up her mind, there’s so much stuff to do here now. Basketball,
reading after school, girl scouts, college-bound clubs, science club. Before she was only in pee
wee cheerleading. That was all there was.

When my eighth grader was in fourth grade, she was struggling, but was passed into the next
grade. | asked the school, “Why not hold her back?”” and they said, “She’s too nice.” After the
school turned around, and she was in seventh grade, she got extra help after school. The teachers
worked with her and she went up 20 percent on her scores.



Wanda Wilburn, mother of three children at Harvard

I thought they might as well tear Harvard down and make it a parking lot. It was a war zone. |
was afraid to bring my babies here. | actually put it an application for them to go to another
school, and they had been accepted.

(The new principal) Mr. Cowling did it for me. It just seemed a more caring atmosphere. The
administrators and teachers said, “We care, let’s join together and come up with the solution.”

In just two short months, a miracle was performed here. When | walked in the first day of school
I was like a little child on Christmas. | was “Oh, wow, look what they did!” It was so beautiful.
And the kids, said “Oh man we got new everything!” They had new desks, new chairs,
computers, they had a science lab, computer lab, they had art, music, basketball. Our kids were
like “Yeah yeah yeah! We’re Harvard Cougars!”

My baby was in first grade and couldn’t read. In second grade, she was embarrassed because she
wasn’t where the other children were. | explained this to the teacher and she guaranteed me,
“Don’t worry, we know where she’s at, and she’ll get there. She’s going to be fine.” For the first
time this year, my baby sat down beside me and said, “Momma, can | sit down and read to you?”
She blew me away. And | said, “Of course you can!” | was cleaning, but | put down the rag and |
sat down and she read to me.



Andre Cowling, principal, Harvard School of Excellence

I was here a few times before Harvard turned around and it was disturbing. The building was in
total chaos. It was OK for the kids to get up and walk out of class when they felt like it, to talk
back to the teacher. It was troubling to witness. | don’t like chaos or noise. The only thing I want
to hear is the chatter of minds. | wanted to restore order. There was no order. | let students know
if there’s a problem, I’ll walk you home to your front door. I’ll show up at 8 at night to see your
parents. I’m going to see someone who cares for you. We hold students accountable. We hold
their parents accountable. Our parents know that we are in their corner. We are not around the
corner.

The parents tell me the police used to be at the school almost every single day. After the
turnaround, the beat officer said he thought that they had closed the building because the police
never received calls. The police never have to come to this school anymore.

We’re seeing the academic gap lessen every year. Before the turnaround, 28 percent of students
were meeting the state standard. In the first year of the turnaround, 40 percent met the standard.
Our goal was just to get order in the school, and we found that we were able to start teaching.

We visited a lot of suburban and successful out-of-state schools. | wanted to see what were the
differences in our schools. We sweat the small stuff — kids wearing uniforms, no trash on the
floor or outside, no kids chewing gum, no cell phones in school. We sweat the small stuff to get
to the big stuff.

What makes Harvard special is the staff. They really care about the kids sitting in front of them
every day. We have staff members who, if | would let them, would work seven days a week.



~ AUSL “Signature” Instructional Strategies ~

Think-Pair-Share
A collaborative learning structure to increase engagement, student-to-student
interaction and accountability in every classroom.
Teacher pairs students intentionally and provides a question prompt
Students are given individual thinking time
Students share thinking with designated partner
Teacher cold-calls students to share their own and their partners’ ideas with the class

Chunk-Chew-Check for Understanding
A model for planning and delivering instruction to improve student engagement,
comprehension and retention of new material.

e Teacher inputs ideas, skills or other information for students in “chunks” of no more than 8-10
minutes

e After every chunk, students are given opportunities to “chew” on, work with, and process new
information

e Chewing activities may be designed for individuals, partners or small groups of students
e Teacher checks for understanding before moving on to new chunks
e Broad variety of techniques employed at all three stages

Socratic Questioning
An approach to structuring classroom discussion and interaction to build student

accountability, active listening, and higher order thinking skills.

e Teacher begins discussion with a rich, open-ended question which requires rigorous thinking
from students

e Teacher allows wait time and maintains neutrality while multiple students answer question and
extend thinking

e Probing and follow-up questions are utilized

e Teacher or students regularly summarize one another’s contributions

e May be formally utilized in the structured activity “Socratic Seminar”

Talking to the Text
A literacy strategy which supports students in developing deep, interactive thinking

about text, and metacognitive “conversation” with the materials they read.
e Teacher introduces concept of “making thinking visible” and helps students analyze their own
reading processes
e Students annotate or code text in a variety of ways, often using journals or post-it notes
¢ Ascaffolded approach that may be utilized in any subject/content area

List-Group-Label
A categorization activity for pairs or small groups of students to build reasoning skills
at the levels of application, analysis, and synthesis of ideas.
e Teacher prepares an assortment of words or phrases on note cards or post-its for each group
e Students discuss then make decisions about how to group the terms into categories, moving
cards and post-its to experiment with different possibilities

e Students select a label for each category then create a chart or other artifact to share
thinking with the class




~ Essentials of AUSL “Signature” Management Strategies ~
Adapted with permission from the network of Uhcommon Schools

“100%” — The only acceptable percentage of
students in compliance with a teacher’s
classroom communications

e Proceeding with less than 100%
engagement sends the message that
compliance is optional

e Continuum of interventions

¢ Non-confrontational, calm finesse

What to Do - Giving directions to students in a
way that provides clear and useful guidance

e Give students SOCS: sequential,
observable, concrete, specific directions

e Non-compliance is usually the result of
confusion or incompetence, not defiance

e If necessary, repeat directions with even
more specificity

e Don’t tell students what not to do

Strong Voice - Confidence and poise to
establish who is in control of the classroom

Economy of language: less is more

Do not talk over

Do not engage

Square up/ stand still: nonverbal messages
Quiet power: slow down, drop volume

Do it Again - Setting the expectation for
excellence, practicing every detail until
perfect; do it again, better!

e Provides immediate feedback

e Group accountability: class must work
together to meet expectations

e Ends with success: we are finished when
we get it right

e Logical consequences

Positive Framing — Don’t ignore misbehavior;
always correct consistently and positively

e Live in the now: don’t dwell on negatives

e Assume the best

o Allow plausible anonymity: recognize
good-faith efforts

e Build momentum/narrate the positive

¢ Challenge students to always do better

o Talk expectations and aspirations

Call and Response — An energizing,
motivational tool for classroom interactions

¢ Academic review and reinforcement

e High energy fun

e Behavioral reinforcement: great practice
for 100%

¢ Not simplistic echoing: students can
repeat, report, reinforce, review, or solve

e Teacher uses consistent cues and signals

Cold Call - Students know that teacher may
call on anyone to answer any question at any
time

e Increases engagement and accountability
while checking for understanding

¢ Quickens the pace of instruction

e Systematic, not punitive

e All students know their input is valued

No Opt Out- Not participating is not an
option! Teacher finds ways to allow every
student to contribute

e Every student’s participation is important

e Scaffolded support including follow-up
questions, think time then try again,
building on peer comments and questions
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Cover Sheet Printable Version

Page 1 of 4

Design Team Information

Primary Contact Name:
Mailing Address:

Phone (day):
(Cell/Evening):
E-Mail Address:

Fax:

Secondary Contact Name:

Mailing Address:

Phone (day):
{Cell/Evening}:
E-Mail Address:

Fax:

Laura Couchiman

3400 North Austin Avenue - AUSL office, Room 120
Chicago IL 60634

773-534-0123
773-706-8623
lcouchman@cps.k12.il.us
773-283-0903

Laura Smith

3400 North Austin Avenue,- AUSL office, Room 120
Chicago IL 60634

773-534-0121
773-230-0193
Ismith@ausk-chicage.org

773-283-0903

Legal Name of Design Team or Entity Applying {the name of Design Team should be the
same as the name submitted for filing a 501 (c) 3 Status and for application for

incorporation in Iflinois):

Academy for Urban Schoo! Leadership (AUSL)

CMO(s) or EMO(s) that your team is planning to partner with for the propesed schools(s):

None

Does applying entity operate any other schoois? Yes

School Portfolio: List the total number
of schools that your organization
currently operates in and outside of

Chicago School Portfolio: List the total
number of schools that your
organization currently operates in

Chicago. Chicago.

Total schools: 14 Total schools: 14
High schools: 3 High schools: 3
Middle schools: 0 Middie schools: 0
Elementary schools: 11 Elementary schools: 11
Total students served: 7,529 Total students served: 7,529
New start schools planned to open in 2010: 6

New start schools planned to open in 2011: 7

https://secure.cps.k12.il.us/Ren2010/PrintP5.aspx 7id=246

7/14/2009



Cover Sheet Printable Version

Proposed School Information
Name of Proposed School:

Type of School Proposed:

Model or Focus of the Proposed School:

Grades Served:

This proposal seeks:
For Charter and Contract Schools:

Incorporation:

501-c-3 Status:

AUSL Elementary Turnaround School #1 for
2010

Elementary School
Turmaround
preK or Kto 8

Perfarmance School

Indicate the proposed school's desired oversight structure (See RFP for school oversight

options/requirements):
Appointed Local School Council

https://secure.cps.k12.il.us/Ren2010/PrintP5.aspx 7id=246

Page 2 of 4

7/14/2009



Cover Sheet Printable Version

Proposed Schooi Information
Name of Proposed School:

Type of School Praposed:

Maode! or Focus of the Proposed Schoot:

Grades Served:

This proposal seeks:
For Charter and Contract Schools:

Incorporation:

5Q1-c-3 Status:

AUSL Turnaround Elementary School #2 for
2010

Elementary School
Turnaround
preK or K to 8

Performance School

Indicate the proposed school's desired oversight structure (See RFP for school oversight

options/requirements}:
Appointed Lacal School Council

https://secure.cps.k12.il.us/Ren2010/PrintP5.aspx 7id=247

Page 2 of 4

7/14/2009



Cover Sheet Printable Version Page 2 of 4

Proposed Schoo! Information

Name of Proposed School: AUSL Turnaround Elementary School #3 for

2010
Type of School Proposed: Elementary School
Mode! or Focus of the Proposed Schoal: Turnaround
Grades Served: preK or Kto 8
This proposal seeks: Performance School

For Charter and Contract Schools:

Incorporation:

501-c-3 Status:

Indicate the proposed school's desired oversight structure (See RFP for school oversight
options/requirements):
Appointed Local School Council

https://secure.cps.k12.il.us/Ren2010/PrintP5 aspx7id=248 7/14/2009



Cover Sheet Printable Version . Page2of4

Prop_osed School Information

Name of Proposed School: AUSL Turnaround Elementary Schoot #4 for

2010
Type of School Proposed: Elementary School
Model or Focus of the Proposed School: Turnaround
Grades Served: preKorKto 8
This proposal seeks: Performance School

For Charter and Contract Schools:

Incorporation:

501-c-3 Status:

Indicate the proposed school's desired oversight structure (See RFP for school oversight
options/requirements):
Appointed Local School Council

https://secure.cps.k12.il.us/Ren2010/PrintP5 .aspx7id=249 7/1412009



Cover Sheet Printable Version Page 3 of 4

School Facility & Location Information
CPS Facility
School Type(s): For Elementary Schooi Applicants Only
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https://secure.cps.k12.il.us/Ren2010/PrintP5.aspx 7id=246 7/14/2009



Cover Sheet Printable Version

School Enroliment Projection

Academic Pianned Number of Maximum Number of Grade

Year Students Students Levels
2010-2011 500 500 PKorKto8
2011-2012 500 500 PKorKto8
2012-2013 500 500 PKorKto 8
2013-2014 500 500 PKorKto8
2014-2015 500 500 PKor Kto 8
At Capacity 500 500 PKorKto 8

Tmotck 3 SO0 per sohoo(‘) chau)mﬁm %S
Lor Ho Lewer tuoa 200 par Sclaoo (.

https://secure.cps.k12.il.us/Ren2010/PrintP5.aspx ?id=246

Page 4 of 4
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Cover Sheet Printable Version

Page 1 of 4

Design Team Information

Primary Contact Name:
Mailing Address:

Phone (day):
- (Celi/Evening):
E-~-Mail Address:

Fax:

Secondary Contact Name:

Mailing Address:

Phone (day):
(Cell/Evening):
E-Mail Address:

Fax:

Laura Couchman

3400 North Austin Avenue - AUSL office
Chicago IL 60634

773-534-0123
773-706-8623
jcouchman@cps.k12.il.us
773-283-0503

Laura Smith

3400 North Austin Avenue,- AUSL office
Chicago IL 60634

773-534-0121
773-230-0193
ismith@ausli-chicago.org

773-283-0903

Legal Name of Design Team or Entity Applying (the name of Design Team should be the
same as the name submitted for filing a 501 (c) 3 Status and for application for

incorporation in Iilinois):

Academy for Urban Schoot Leadership (AUSL)

CMO(s) or EMO(s) that your team is planning to partner with for the proposed schools(s):

None

Does applying entity operate any other schools? Yes

School Portfolio: List the total number
of schools that your organization
currenitiy operates in and outside of
Chicago.

Total schools: 14
High schoois: 3
Middle schools: 0
Elementary schoois: 11

Total students served: 7,529

New start schools planned to open in 2010:

New start schools planned to open in 2011;

https://secure.cps.k12.il.us/Ren2010/PrintP5.aspx 7id=250

Chicago School Portfolio: List the total
number of schools that your
organization currently operates in

Chicago.

Total schoois: 14
High schools: 3
Middle schools: 0
Elementary schools: 11

Total students served: 7,529

7/14/2009



Cover Sheet Printable Version

Proposed School Information
Name of Proposed School:

Type of School Proposed:

Model or Focus of the Proposed School:

Grades Served:

This proposal seeks:
For Charter and Contract Schools:

Incorporation:

501-c-3 Status:

AUSL Turnaround High School #1 for 2010
High School -

Turnaround

9to12

Performance Schooi

Indicate the proposed school's desired oversight structure {See RFP for school oversight

options/requirements}:
Appointed Local School Councif

https://secure.cps.k12.iLus/Ren2010/PrintP5.aspx 7id=250

Page 2 of 4

7/14/2009



Cover Sheet Printable Version

Praposed School Information
Name of Proposed School:

Type of School Proposed:

Model or Focus of the Proposed School:

Grades Served:

This proposal seeks:
For Charter and Contract Schools:

Incorporation:

501-c-3 Status:

AUSL Turnaround High School #2 for 2010
High School

Turnaround

9to 12

Performance School

Indicate the proposed school's desired oversight structure (See RFP for schoot oversight

options/requirements):
Appointed Local Schooi Council

https://secure.cps.k12.il.us/Ren2010/PrintP5.aspxhd=251

Page 2 of 4

771472009
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School Facility & Location Information
CPS Facility
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Cover Sheet Printable Version Page 4 of 4

School Enroliment Projection

Academic Pianned Number of Maximum Number of Grade

Year Students Students lLevels
2010-2011 1000 1000 G to12
2011-2012 1000 1000 9tol2
2012-2013 1000 1000 9te 12
2013-2014 1000 1000 gto1l2
2014-2015 1000 1000 gto 12
At Capacity 1000 1000 9to 12

Torqet > 900 per sotwol expeckatinn B for
ne {fower Atean S 00 pes Salwol.
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ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP (AUSL)
Campus/School Level Summary — Elementary schools
July 2009

1. Summary: Provide a high-level overview of the campus/school, including the
proposed grade structure, community, and any new themes or design components.

AUSL is applying to operate four elementary (PK-8) schools for CPS as 2010
Turnaround schools. The schools would be CPS Performance schools, using the same
model as has been used for previous AUSL Turnaround schools.

We are prepared to accept the schools selected by CPS for reconstitution on the basis
of their prior poor performance. However, in light of the significant per-school costs and
effort for both AUSL and CPS, AUSL would expect that each elementary school
designated for turnaround by AUSL have enrollment of at least 300 students.

2. Education Program: Provide a brief summary of the planned education program for
the proposed campus/school. If the plan will be the same as other schools within your
portfolio (i.e., curriculum, assessments, PD, etc.), include a statement that confirms this.

AUSL'’s education plan will be the same for new Turnaround schools as it is for the other
turnaround elementary schools in the AUSL network:

Sherman School of Excellence (2006)
Harvard School of Excellence (2007)
Howe School of Excellence (2008)
Morton School of Excellence (2008)
Bethune School of Excellence (2009)
Dulles School of Excellence (2009)
Johnson School of Excellence (2009)

3. Performance Goals: Include a table that details the campus/school’'s achievement
goals, including targeted ISAT/PSAE scores, attendance levels, operational goals and
additional metrics for each of the school’s first five years of operation.

During the first two years of our elementary Turnaround schools, as a result of all of the
strategies described elsewhere in this proposal, we expect to perform better on the ISAT
than comparable schools, with the specific targets delineated in the table below. In
Years 3 through 5, we expect to exceed the district average on the ISAT. We plan for
continued growth beyond year five as we look to become a leader in the state.

Five-Year ISAT Performance Goals for AUSL Turnaround Schools
Percent of students meeting or exceeding standards

Year 1l Year 2 Years 3-4 | Year5
ISAT scores at meet or exceed in 40% 50% 70% 80%
reading, math, and science
ISAT composite scores at exceed for | 5% 5% 15% 25%
reading, math, and science
ISAT composite scores at exceed for | 5% 5% 15% 25%
the highest grade level
Academy for Urban School Leadership — July 2009 1




AUSL expects significant and sustained improvement in performance on all key
academic and operational metrics from all new turnaround schools. The specific gains
to be expected from any particular school would depend on the school’s baseline and
historical pre-turnaround performance. AUSL also expects all of our network schools,
including AUSL Training academies, to continue to improve their performance year over
year.

See Exhibit 1 for a summary of the preliminary ISAT composite results for AUSL
elementary schools through the 2008-09 school year, and Exhibit 2 for more detailed
results.

4. Community Involvement: Provide a brief rationale for the community you seek to
serve. Describe your outreach strategy to engage parents and community partners in
the development and ongoing success of the proposed campus/school.

AUSL seeks to serve the community by giving the students in persistently failing CPS
neighborhood schools an opportunity for a substantially better school experience without
having to change to a different school. However, reconstituting a school is bold and
controversial. Our experience suggests that it is likely that some families, members of
the community, and even students will not appreciate how poorly the failed school has
been serving its students, and will object to CPS’s decision to reconstitute and turn
around their school. In the most recent season, these objections were organized,
supported by displaced teachers, and resulted in reversals of some decisions to
reconstitute schools.

In all of our experiences, however, parent and community objections to the turnaround of
their school do not persist long after the new school opens. As in the past, we will use
the following strategies in each community to help each community come to terms with
the transformation of their school.

e Prompt visibility for AUSL and new school leaders. As soon as possible after
AUSL is approved to operate a Turnaround school, we announce and host public
events on “neutral territory” in the community (i.e., not at the school, but at a
facility in the community like a church or other public space). The Turnaround
school’s new principal, AUSL leadership, and parents from previously turned
around AUSL schools attend to introduce ourselves, and describe our vision and
plans. We also bring parents from previous Turnaround schools, who give
testimonials to our effectiveness with their children. Importantly, we also listen to
the community and invite their ideas and participation in our planning for the
school.

e References and testimonials. A growing number of parents, community
leaders, and even older students with experience at prior AUSL Turnaround
schools have been willing to speak out with testimonials about their positive
experiences in previously turned-around schools. Our Community Engagement
Coordinator helps organize these individuals and enlarge their ranks. Parent
testimonials are especially effective with prospective parents.

e Outreach. During the summer before school begins, the new Turnaround
schools’ teachers and school leaders call on families personally, going door-to-
door to introduce themselves. A community picnic shortly before school opens
allows us to show off renovations to the facility.

Academy for Urban School Leadership — July 2009 2



e Mediarelations. The Turnaround model has received a lot of press, both locally
and even nationally. AUSL has engaged professional public relations advisors to
assist us with communications.

e Government relations. In early 2009, with support from an organized group of
displaced teachers, the Soto bill (HB 303) was put before the lllinois legislature.
This bill proposed a moratorium on Turnaround schools. AUSL enlisted parents
and other supporters to mount a challenge, resulting in the passage of a bill with
much less adverse impact on the prospects for our model than the one originally
proposed.

We also look forward to benefiting from continuing efforts by CPS to help communities
experience a smoother transition when their failing schools need to be reconstituted and
turned around.

5. School Level Committees: Describe any advisory councils or committees you plan
to have at the new campus/school. Explain the role, planned membership, and reporting
structure of these councils or committees as they relate to the Governing Board and
school leadership.

Each Turnaround school will have a traditional Local School Council, advisory in nature.

6. Partnerships. Discuss any unique partnerships (community, philanthropic, etc.) or
resources that will be secured for the new campus/school. Provide context for how such
partnerships and resources will effectively support the school’s mission, vision and long-
term sustainability.

AUSL’s partnership with CPS brings significant resources to the CPS schools operated
by AUSL, through AUSL'’s experienced staff and financial support from foundations, non-
CPS government funds, and individuals.

In addition, individual AUSL Turnaround schools have benefited from targeted
community and philanthropic support. Examples of community partnerships include
UCAN, City Year, YMCA, and After School Matters. We will continue to seek
opportunities to develop similar sources of support for new Turnaround schools, once
they are identified. We require that all such programs or facilities improvements are fully
funded by donor pledges before they are started.

7. School Leadership. ldentify the Principal candidate(s), if known, and explain why
this individual is well qualified to lead the new school. If selected, attach and label the
Principal candidate’s resume in the appendix. If the candidate is unknown at this time,
describe the strategy and timeline for recruiting, hiring and developing the proposed
Principal(s). If school leadership characteristics/qualifications are different than prior
campuses/schools, please describe; if not please indicate that there are no changes.

New principals for AUSL 2010 Turnaround elementary schools will be recruited to begin
full-time work by February 1, 2010. The qualifications/characteristics for principal
candidates are the same as for principals previously selected for AUSL Turnaround
school leaders.

See the business plan, page 19 for more on AUSL'’s principal recruitment process.
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8. Student Enrollment: Describe any enrollment preferences that will be granted at the
new campus/school. Indicate whether you propose an Overlay or Citywide boundary,
and include a description of the proposed boundary. If you are proposing an Overlay
boundary, identify the other CPS schools within that boundary with a similar grade
structure. Please see page 15 of the Round VI RFP for definitions of Overlay and
Citywide boundaries.

AUSL Turnaround schools are neighborhood schools, open to all in their attendance
boundaries.

9. Facility. (question language omitted to save space).

AUSL-operated Turnaround schools are located in CPS facilities. As in the past, CPS
and AUSL will collaborate to develop plans for renovations and investments at each
school, which will be funded and implemented by CPS.

10. Fiscal Management: Complete the 5-year Financial Forms for the proposed 2010-
11 campus/school (Appendix C). Include a budget narrative detailing how revenues and
expenditures will be distributed at the new school. ONS will also accept site-level multi-
year financial forms in the organization’s existing format to the extent it addresses the
same criteria found in sample forms.

See selected pages from AUSL'’s 5-year plan, Exhibit 3, and AUSL'’s 2009-10 budget,
Exhibit 4.
11. Additional Addendum Items: Please include the following in your appendix.

a. Audited Financial Statements. See Exhibit 5.

b. RSF Funding. Not applicable
c. Bylaws, Articles of Incorporation and 501(c)3 status. See Exhibit 6.
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ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP (AUSL)
Campus/School Level Summary — High schools
July 2009

1. Summary: Provide a high-level overview of the campus/school, including the
proposed grade structure, community, and any new themes or design components.

AUSL is applying to operate two secondary (9-12) schools for CPS as 2010 Turnaround
schools. The schools would be CPS Performance schools, using the same model as
has been used for previous AUSL Turnaround schools.

AUSL would consider adapting the grade level structure of a Turnaround high school to
grades 7 through 12, if that is suitable for the situation of the particular school chosen for
reconstitution. This is not a requirement, however.

We are prepared to accept the schools selected by CPS for reconstitution on the basis
of their prior poor performance. However, in light of the significant per-school costs and
effort for both AUSL and CPS, AUSL would expect that each high school designated for
turnaround by AUSL have enrollment of at least 800 students. Also, if possible we
would welcome the opportunity to add a South Side high school (or two) to enable
Sherman, Harvard, Dulles, and other potential South Side elementary schools to be part
of a K-12 cluster of AUSL schools.

2. Education Program: Provide a brief summary of the planned education program for
the proposed campus/school. If the plan will be the same as other schools within your
portfolio (i.e., curriculum, assessments, PD, etc.), include a statement that confirms this.

AUSL’s education plan will be the same for new Turnaround schools as it is for the other
high schools in the AUSL network:

Chicago Academy High School (new start, 2006)
Collins Academy High School (new start, 2007)
Orr Academy High School (Turnaround, 2008)

The program will also build on AUSL'’s experience with seven elementary Turnaround
schools previously undertaken by AUSL.:

Sherman School of Excellence (2006)
Harvard School of Excellence (2007)
Howe School of Excellence (2008)
Morton School of Excellence (2008)
Bethune School of Excellence (2009)
Dulles School of Excellence (2009)
Johnson School of Excellence (2009)

3. Performance Goals: Include a table that details the campus/school’s achievement
goals, including targeted ISAT/PSAE scores, attendance levels, operational goals and
additional metrics for each of the school’s first five years of operation.

AUSL expects significant and sustained improvement in performance on all key
academic and operational metrics from all new turnaround schools. The specific gains
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to be expected from any particular school would depend on the school’s baseline and
historical pre-turnaround performance.

AUSL also expects all of our schools, including Turnaround schools from earlier years
and AUSL Training academies, to continue to improve their performance year over year.

The academic performance goals for Orr Academy High school are attached as Exhibit
7. Academic achievement results are not available yet; but attendance and other
measures show improvement relative to prior years and relative to comparable CPS
neighborhood high schools (Exhibit 8).

Also see Exhibit 1 for a summary of the preliminary ISAT composite results for AUSL
elementary schools, and Exhibit 2 for more detailed results.

4. Community Involvement: Provide a brief rationale for the community you seek to
serve. Describe your outreach strategy to engage parents and community partners in
the development and ongoing success of the proposed campus/school.

AUSL seeks to serve the community by giving the students in persistently failing CPS
neighborhood schools an opportunity for a substantially better school experience without
having to change to a different school. However, reconstituting a school is bold and
controversial. Our experience suggests that it is likely that some families, members of
the community, and even students will not appreciate how poorly the failed school has
been serving its students, and will object to CPS’s decision to reconstitute and turn
around their school. In the most recent season, these objections were organized,
supported by displaced teachers, and resulted in reversals of some decisions to
reconstitute schools.

In all of our experiences, however, parent and community objections to the turnaround of
their school do not persist long after the new school opens. As in the past, we will use
the following strategies in each community to help each community come to terms with
the transformation of their school.

e Prompt visibility for AUSL and new school leaders. As soon as possible after
AUSL is approved to operate a Turnaround school, we announce and host public
events on “neutral territory” in the community (i.e., not at the school, but at a
facility in the community like a church or other public space). The Turnaround
school’s new principal, AUSL leadership, and parents from previously turned
around AUSL schools attend to introduce ourselves, and describe our vision and
plans. We also bring parents from previous Turnaround schools, who give
testimonials to our effectiveness with their children. Importantly, we also listen to
the community and invite their ideas and participation in our planning for the
school.

e References and testimonials. A growing number of parents, community
leaders, and even older students with experience at prior AUSL Turnaround
schools have been willing to speak out with testimonials about their positive
experiences in previously turned-around schools. Our Community Engagement
Coordinator helps organize these individuals and enlarge their ranks — for
example, by energizing parent volunteer opportunities like Orr’s Parent Patrol.
Parent testimonials are especially effective with prospective parents.
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e OQutreach. During the summer before school begins, the new Turnaround
schools’ teachers and school leaders call on families personally, going door-to-
door to introduce themselves. A community picnic shortly before school opens
allows us to show off renovations to the facility.

e Mediarelations. The Turnaround model has received a lot of press, both locally
and even nationally. AUSL has engaged professional public relations advisors to
assist us with communications.

e Government relations. In early 2009, with support from an organized group of
displaced teachers, the Soto bill (HB 303) was put before the lllinois legislature.
This bill proposed a moratorium on Turnaround schools. AUSL enlisted parents
and other supporters to mount a challenge, resulting in the passage of a bill with
much less adverse impact on the prospects for our model than the one originally
proposed.

We also look forward to benefiting from continuing efforts by CPS to help communities
experience a smoother transition when their failing schools need to be reconstituted and
turned around.

5. School Level Committees: Describe any advisory councils or committees you plan
to have at the new campus/school. Explain the role, planned membership, and reporting
structure of these councils or committees as they relate to the Governing Board and
school leadership.

Each Turnaround school will have a traditional Local School Council, advisory in nature.

6. Partnerships. Discuss any unique partnerships (community, philanthropic, etc.) or
resources that will be secured for the new campus/school. Provide context for how such
partnerships and resources will effectively support the school’s mission, vision and long-
term sustainability.

AUSL’s partnership with CPS brings significant resources to the CPS schools operated
by AUSL, through AUSL'’s experienced staff and financial support from foundations, non-
CPS government funds, and individuals.

In addition, individual AUSL Turnaround schools have benefited from targeted
community and philanthropic support. Examples of community partnerships include
UCAN, Youth Guidance, UMOJA, and Near North Development, plus additional
partnerships supporting fine and performing arts. Also, private philanthropy funded the
$2 million cost of the new field at Orr Academy High School. We will continue to seek
opportunities to develop similar sources of support for new Turnaround schools, once
they are identified. We require that all such programs or facilities improvements are fully
funded by donor pledges before they are started.

7. School Leadership. ldentify the Principal candidate(s), if known, and explain why
this individual is well qualified to lead the new school. If selected, attach and label the
Principal candidate’s resume in the appendix. If the candidate is unknown at this time,
describe the strategy and timeline for recruiting, hiring and developing the proposed
Principal(s). If school leadership characteristics/qualifications are different than prior
campuses/schools, please describe; if not please indicate that there are no changes.
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New principals for AUSL 2010 Turnaround high schools will be recruited to begin full-
time work by January 1, 2010. The qualifications/characteristics for principal candidates
are the same as for principals previously selected for AUSL Turnaround school leaders.

See the business plan, page 19 for more on AUSL'’s principal recruitment process.

8. Student Enrollment: Describe any enroliment preferences that will be granted at the
new campus/school. Indicate whether you propose an Overlay or Citywide boundary,
and include a description of the proposed boundary. If you are proposing an Overlay
boundary, identify the other CPS schools within that boundary with a similar grade
structure. Please see page 15 of the Round VI RFP for definitions of Overlay and
Citywide boundaries.

AUSL Turnaround schools are neighborhood schools, open to all in their attendance
boundaries.

9. Facility. (question language omitted to save space).

AUSL-operated Turnaround schools are located in CPS facilities. As in the past, CPS
and AUSL will collaborate to develop plans for renovations and investments at each
school, which will be funded and implemented by CPS.

10. Fiscal Management: Complete the 5-year Financial Forms for the proposed 2010-
11 campus/school (Appendix C). Include a budget narrative detailing how revenues and
expenditures will be distributed at the new school. ONS will also accept site-level multi-
year financial forms in the organization’s existing format to the extent it addresses the
same criteria found in sample forms.

See selected pages from AUSL'’s 5-year plan, Exhibit 3, and AUSL’s 2009-10 budget,
Exhibit 4.

11. Additional Addendum Items: Please include the following in your appendix.
a. Audited Financial Statements. See Exhibit 5

b. RSF Funding. Not applicable
c. Bylaws, Articles of Incorporation and 501(c)3 status. See Exhibit 6.
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ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP (AUSL)
Invited Operator Proposal for 2010 Turnaround Schools

July 15, 2009

BUSINESS PLAN

1. Executive Summary

In our 2008 proposals for new 2009 Turnaround elementary and high schools, we
emphasized our commitment to CPS, capacity, experience with incubation and school
management, and the unique human capital pipeline for teacher talent associated with
our Urban Teacher Residency training program. See the Executive Summary of our

2008 proposals.

AUSL’s 2009 results are encouraging. A year later, we have more experience and
more results. Preliminary 2009 ISAT data show student achievement gains in seven of
our eight elementary schools and three of our four turnaround schools (Exhibits 1 and 2).

Our model seems to be working.

2009 Preliminary ISAT Performance Results for AUSL Turnaround Schools (July 8)
Table shows percentage for 2009, and change from pre-turnaround percentage

Sherman | Harvard Howe Morton

(Year 3) (Year 2) (Year 1) (Year 1)
ISAT composite scores at meet or 51.0% 56.4% 50.6% 33.2%
exceed (+21.1) (+24.6) (+7.8) (-7.8)
ISAT composite scores at exceed 3.8% 6.2% 3.3% 1.3%

(+2.3) (+4.8) (+1.0) (-1.5)

We have been disappointed by Year 1 results at Morton School of Excellence, and we
are committed to getting the school’s performance on track. For 2009-10, we have
changed the school’s principal and AP, as well as five of the school’s teachers,

2008-09 academic performance results are not yet available for our high schools, but
some important indicators show positive trends. Also see Exhibit 8 for more details on
how performance at these schools compares with comparable schools.
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2008-09 Attendance and Misconducts results for AUSL High Schools

Table shows percentage for 2008-09, and change from 2007-08

Chicago Collins
Academy | Academy
HS HS Orr Academy HS
(Year 5) (Year 2) (Year 1)
Student attendance 93.2% 89.3% 73.7%
(+2.7) (+0.0) (+4.8)
Teacher attendance 96.0% 97.0% 95.9%
(-0.2) (-0.6) (+4.0)
Level 4/5/6 misconducts 54 40 105
(-29) Q) (-55)

Finally, the non-turnaround elementary schools in AUSL'’s network have all shown

improved performance from 2007-08 to 2008-09.

2009 Preliminary ISAT Performance Results for AUSL Turnaround Schools (July 8)
Table shows percentage for 2009, and change from pre-turnaround percentage

Chicago

Academy

Elem. Dodge Tarkington | NTA

(Year 8) (Year 6) (Year 4) (Year 2)
ISAT composite scores at meet or 90.0% 77.2% 72.3% 59.7%
exceed (+1.7) (+4.7) (+2.7) (+3.8)
ISAT composite scores at exceed 35.1% 18.3% 10.7% 5.9%

(-2.1) (+6.4) (+0.5) (+1.2)

In addition to the recently reported student achievement gains, we have experienced
good support for our efforts from parents and in the media throughout the year.

We continue to add capacity and systems. During 2008-09, we have continued to
invest in capacity and systems, and to build and extend our institutional knowledge
through pilots and roll-outs of new network-wide supports and resources for our schools.

Some examples:

o PASSAGE (Exhibit 9). This acronym defines for principals and all in the AUSL
community what the AUSL model for a school requires, establishing a vision for
network-level initiatives and a guide for the exchange of best practice. Its
themes are embedded in our network’s performance management tools and
forums. For the 2009-10 school year planning, our particular focus has been on
“P” (Positive school culture), “G” (Guaranteed and viable curriculum), and “E”
(Engaging and personalized instruction).

o Data-driven instruction. AUSL’s Classroom Diagnostic Assessment System
(CDAS), which was completed for Math and in use in all AUSL elementary
schools in 2008-09, will be developed for Literacy and Science in 2009-10.
Notably, our biggest student achievement gains were in Math (Exhibit 2). The
CDAS approach (with high-school level content) will also be introduced at all

AUSL high schools in 2009-10.
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Network supports for teaching excellence. In 2008-09, AUSL enriched our
Urban Teacher Residency program (UTR) curriculum, introducing Charlotte
Danielson’s Framework for Teaching in combination with AUSL-developed
“Signature Strategies.” These tools and frameworks will be used to support the
development of all teachers in all AUSL schools beginning in 2009-10.

Human capital. AUSL added two full-time positions at the network level to
support recruitment for turnaround schools. While we did not need this much
capacity for just our three elementary turnaround schools in 2009, we have built
a team that is in place to help principals with the bigger recruiting challenge we
expect for 2010, especially for high school teachers and staff. Also, we added
the Erikson Institute as a new university partner for our residency program
beginning in 2008-09.

Development strategy. We continue to broaden our outreach for funding,
especially in light of the weak economy and its pressure on philanthropy. We
have received government funding as a new Americorps program and are
seeking more through the Department of Education.

Our teacher training and Turnaround school missions and programs are
increasingly interdependent and mutually reinforcing. Our Turnaround school
results have convinced us more than ever that our UTR is a critical factor in our ability to
deliver performance gains in our schools.

While we don’t have hard data linking student achievement results with teacher
behavior (yet), we believe that AUSL-trained teachers make Turnaround
schools more effective. For example, all of the 18 AUSL-trained new teachers
hired for Orr in 2008-09 have been renewed. We will be continuing to expand
our financial and mentor capacity to train additional residents, especially for
secondary certification.

The human and intellectual capital we have developed in our staff of UTR
Director, Mentor-resident coaches, and Induction coaches is being tapped to
benefit all of AUSL'’s teachers, not just UTR residents and new teachers.
Without our UTR, we would not have this intellectual capital and professional
development capacity.

CPS leaders are encouraging us to build capacity for more high school
Turnarounds. These involve hiring very large numbers of teachers, so having a
pipeline of specifically trained, committed talent to cover part of the need helps
ensure quality and cohesiveness of the entire new teaching staff.

We thank ONS and CPS for their consideration of our proposal, and we look forward to
continuing to serve the children and youth of Chicago.
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2. Vision and Theory of Change

e What is the vision of your organization?
e Define your organization’s desired impact on the city of Chicago in concrete
terms, i.e.:
0 Additional seats in high performing schools
0 Student achievement
0 % of population served
0 College acceptance & graduation rates, etc.
e If you are adding new school types, models or grades, please explain your
rationale.
o |dentify targeted markets and criteria for choosing selected markets.

Mission and vision. AUSL'’s mission and vision has not changed since our prior
Turnaround school RFP submissions. Our mission statement:

“AUSL will improve student achievement in Chicago’s high-poverty, chronically failing
schools through its disciplined transformation process, built on a foundation of specially
trained AUSL teachers.”

AUSL is focused on improving the performance of the lowest-performing Chicago Public
Schools. When CPS decides to reconstitute failing schools under its NCLB authority,
AUSL seeks to partner with CPS to manage newly reconstituted schools. Specific
schools are selected by CPS; the scale of the potential opportunity for failing-school
transformation is suggested by the facts below.

e 86 elementary schools serving 38,241 students had fewer than 50 percent of
students meeting or exceeding state standards on the 2008 ISAT composite.

e 41 high schools serving 27,183 students had fewer than 10 percent of students
meeting or exceeding state standards on the PSAE. An additional 41 high
schools serving 46,586 students had between 10 and 29 percent of students
meeting or exceeding standards.

e Please describe the organization’s proposed scope of growth over the next 5
years (years, number and type of schools)

5-year growth plan. AUSL’s growth plan is to extend our impact by adding new CPS
Turnaround schools to our network each year, while continuing to operate and improve
the performance of all schools in our network. We plan to add both elementary and high
school Turnaround schools each year, but in response to CPS’s needs we will seek to
add capacity to operate high school Turnaround schools at a faster rate. See Exhibit 3
for our 5-year forecast.

AUSL operates four elementary Training academies to train new teachers for

Turnaround schools. We do not anticipate increasing the number of elementary training
schools. We may, however, seek to make future Turnaround high schools Training
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academies following their first turnaround year, to allow us to increase our capacity to
train high school teachers.

AUSL'’s growth plan is subject to regular review by our Board of Directors. We have
established a “greenlighting timetable” in recognition that AUSL must make decisions
and commitments of resources to support a new Turnaround school beginning 18-24
months before the new school opens. A key cost of our Turnaround school model is the
cost of recruiting and training about 50 percent of the teachers placed in Turnaround
elementary schools and 15 to 30 percent (or more, ideally) of the teachers placed in
Turnaround high schools. See Exhibit 10.

AUSL's growth plan will also be affected by our ability to scale up our development of
funding for the portion of our model’s costs that are funded by non-CPS resources
(individuals, foundations, state and local government grants).

o What are the key non-negotiables of your school model?

AUSL school model. AUSL will use the same school model for new 2010 Turnaround
schools that has been used for the eight previous Turnaround schools launched over the
past four school years. See AUSL’s 2008 proposals to ONS for more detailed
descriptions of our model. The key non-negotiables of our model are:

1. CPS Performance School. All AUSL schools are governed and operated under
the CPS Performance School model. Teachers and staff are CPS employees
subject to collective bargaining agreements; Principals are approved/appointed
by the CPS CEO and accountable to AUSL’s leadership; CPS (not AUSL)
departments support our schools in key areas like facilities, procurement, food
service, etc.

2. Whole-school transformation of failing schools. AUSL specializes in
launching and operating Turnaround schooals, i.e., “re-birthing” schools which
have failed and are being reconstituted by CPS. Other schools in our network
support our teacher training mission, but we anticipate that all new schools
added to our network will be Turnaround schools.

3. AUSL’s Urban Teacher Residency program (UTR) as a pipeline for
Turnaround school teacher talent. We launched our 2008-09 and 2009-10
elementary Turnaround schools with about 50% of the teachers consisting of
graduates of AUSL'’s own teacher preparation program. We are still ramping up
our capacity to provide a similar complement of AUSL-trained teachers for future
Turnaround high schools. We are currently training 28 high school teachers in
the UTR class of 2010 and expect them to fill 15% to 30% of the positions at
2010 Turnaround high schools, depending on the size of the schools selected.

4. AUSL-operated supports for schools, funded with both AUSL and CPS
resources. Turnaround school principals (selected by AUSL) and their teams are
guided and supported by AUSL staff, experience, and resources through many
phases of the re-birth of the school, including:

e School incubation and planning support for new principals (e.g., with school
design guidance, leadership coaching, AUSL resident placement/new teacher
recruitment, community engagement support)

e Summer start-up planning (Summer PD funding, design, and PD delivery)
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e Extra staff and services as the school is operated (e.g., embedded AUSL
coaches; PD for teachers; tutors to support differentiated instruction for
children)

e Curriculum and assessment structures and resources (common network
curriculum and assessments; systems and tools for data-driven instruction;
data analysis and transparency for multi-level performance dialogues;
extended school day)

e Funding and coordination for after-school arts and sports programming;
special donor-funded facilities projects.

5. Performance expectations of principals from AUSL, defined broadly by
AUSL’s PASSAGE planning and accountability framework (See Exhibit 10 and
page 7). Expectations are reinforced by regular data-driven dialogues between
each principal and their AUSL Managing Director, semi-annual principal
evaluations, performance-based principal incentive payments, and AUSL'’s ability
to recommend changes in principals at any time, since they are all Interim
principals appointed by the CPS CEO.
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3. Metrics and Milestones

e Please complete the table in Appendix A outlining the organization’s short- and
long-term academic, financial and operational goals and metrics

e How will the organization track its progress toward goals, and how often will the
organization formally assess this progress?

¢ How will the organization and its Board of Directors leverage these targets to
ensure readiness for replication?

AUSL’s PASSAGE framework for school-level effectiveness. Transforming a failing
school, or continuing to improve a good one, is a complex endeavor. “Improved student
achievement” is a goal and it is measurable, but it is not a framework for action. In 2008,
AUSL’s Managing Directors introduced to our principals an AUSL-developed framework
for what is expected from all AUSL schools. This framework, made more memorable by
the acronym PASSAGE, is in Exhibit 10. Also see pages 26-27 of AUSL’s 2008
elementary proposal for more information about the research, from Mass Insight and
others, upon which this framework was based.

During AUSL'’s three-day Leadership Summit in 2008 and again in 2009, principals and
their APs used the framework to structure their specific action plans. In AUSL high
schools, a “Targeted Outcomes Document” is a planning tool used by AUSL’s Managing
Director and each principal that combines transparency about quantitative goals linked
to several of the PASSAGE with clear guidance on what are the AUSL network “non-
negotiables.” See Exhibit 11 for an example.

Monitoring progress. Monitoring progress towards goals is represented by the first “S”
in PASSAGE (Setting Goals and Getting it Done). This happens all the time in AUSL
schools. At the student and classroom level, coaches and teachers collect and review
(via our assessment reporting system Linkit!) student achievement data from AUSL’s
Class Diagnostic and Assessment System (CDAS) and interim assessments, and hold
data-driven discussions at least monthly to adjust actions and strategies. The data to be
gathered using the Danielson tool will also support individualized feedback, coaching,
and PD patrticipation decisions for teachers. Every administrator is expected to give
constructive coaching and feedback to at least one teacher, every day.

At AUSL’s home office, AUSL’s Knowledge Manager compiles monthly and quarterly
reports for Managing Directors to review and discuss with each of their principals during
monthly data dialogues. On alternate months, “Dashboard” meetings focus on other
school performance metrics including student attendance, teacher attendance, student
misconducts, and student on-track rates. Examples of reports used in these meetings
are in Exhibit 12. Before each of these meetings, principals review the data and work
with their teams to develop recommendations for actions to improve performance.

On months with no Dashboard meeting, AUSL’s Managing Director joints the school's
instructional leadership team (principal, APs, and coaches) for a “Data Dialogue”
focusing on recent student achievement data from CDAS/NWEA (elementary) or
CDAS/Interim/EPAS (high schools). Linkit! reports are used, and the system allows
flexibility for various comparisons to be displayed during discussions (Exhibit 13).
Coaches may join Data Dialogue meetings, where their knowledge of teachers’
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strengths and development needs can be connected to results from specific teachers’
classrooms to help identify opportunities for improvement.

AUSL'’s Executive Director and three Managing Directors review summaries of this
information, for all 14 AUSL schools, during their weekly meetings. For the purposes of
these discussions, results from each AUSL schools are compared to two or three
“control schools,” which are other CPS schools located near our schools and serving
student populations of similar size and student demographics to those of the
corresponding AUSL school. We expect every AUSL school to outperform its
corresponding control schools. See Exhibits 2 and 8 for examples of this reporting,
which is also shared with AUSL’s Board of Directors. AUSL’s Board, through its
responsibility for annual “greenlighting,” has the final say about AUSL’s expansion plans
(see Exhibit 10)
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4. Historical Performance and Priorities to Drive Further Success

o Please explain any performance that did not meet the organization’s
expectations, and how that underperformance was or is being addressed.

e What are the key areas in which existing schools need to improve, and what are
the priorities to drive further success?

¢ What are the key areas in which the organization needs to improve, and what are
the priorities to drive further success?

Performance of AUSL schools. Preliminary ISAT results were just released in early
July, and we are very encouraged by our results and progress. Three of our four
Turnaround elementary schools, Harvard, Howe, and Sherman, had 50 percent or
more of their students meeting or exceeding state standards on the composite test, an
average gain of about 15 points. Seven of AUSL'’s eight elementary schools improved
their performance. See Exhibits 1 and 2.

In AUSL’s 2008 elementary proposal, we were asked to set five-year performance goals
for Turnaround schools. Our response:

“During the first two years of our elementary Turnaround schools, as a result of all of the
strategies described elsewhere in this proposal, we expect to perform better than

comparable schools on the ISAT, with the specific targets delineated in the table below.
In Years 3 through 5, we expect to outperform the district average on the ISAT. We plan

for continued growth beyond year five as we look to become a leader in the state.”

Five-Year ISAT Performance Goals for AUSL Turnaround Schools

Percent of students

Year 1 Year 2 Years 3-4 | Year5
ISAT scores at meet or exceed in 40% 50% 70% 80%
reading, math, and science
ISAT composite scores at exceed for | 5% 5% 15% 25%
reading, math, and science
ISAT composite scores at exceed for | 5% 5% 15% 25%
the highest grade level

This table, for comparison, shows the 2009 ISAT preliminary results of our four
elementary Turnaround schools on the first two of these metrics. The number to
compare to the table above is first, followed by the school’'s cumulative gain/loss from its

pre-turnaround level.

2009 Preliminary ISAT Performance Results for AUSL Turnaround Schools (July 8)
Table shows percentage for 2009, and change from pre-turnaround percentage

Howe Morton Harvard Sherman

(Year 1) (Year 1) (Year 2) (Year 3)
ISAT composite scores at meet or 50.6% 33.2% 56.4% 51.0%
exceed (+7.8) (-7.8) (+24.6) (+21.1)
ISAT composite scores at exceed 3.3% 1.3% 6.2% 3.8%

(+1.0) (-1.5) (+4.8) (+2.3)
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At Morton School of Excellence, the first-year ISAT results showed a decline in
performance. We have had concerns about Morton for the past several months, which
led to our decision to appoint a new leadership team as of July 1, 2009 Terrance Little
will be principal, and Angel Turner will be Assistant Principal. Both of these individuals
have prior experience in their roles, and both have been part of AUSL for a year or more.
We have also replaced several of Morton’s teachers. We are committed to achieving
significant improvements at Morton.

While Sherman School of Excellence’s results are not yet at the ambitious 70 percent
Year 3 target, the 10-point gain between 2008 and 2009 is encouraging, especially for a
school with over 50 percent mobility. Sherman’s “control schools” Holmes and Libby
saw 2-point gains, and Parkman a 3-point decline.

We do not yet have student achievement data for 2008-09 for AUSL's high schools.
Interim results, while helpful as formative assessments, do not typically align with EPAS
gains because interims are designed to get progressively more difficult relative to
standards as the school year goes on. However, data on attendance and misconducts
shows positive progress for our schools (see Exhibit 8). Orr Academy High School’s
agenda for improvement is described on pages 37 to 39 of this document.

Performance improvement agenda for AUSL’s central organization. In terms of
supporting our schools, the emphasis for 2009-10 for AUSL'’s leadership and central
program staff is on “P” (Positive school culture), “G” (Guaranteed and viable curriculum),
and “E” (Engaging and personalized instruction). Specific initiatives are described in
various places elsewhere in this document.

Perhaps the biggest challenge we face at the AUSL network level relates to ensuring
that we bring in enough high-quality talent, and that we develop people rapidly enough,
to meet our challenging expansion targets. We have been asked by CPS to accelerate
the development of our capacity to accept Turnaround high schools. Because trained
residents are key to our model, we need to recruit and train future mentor teachers so
they can in turn train more secondary residents. In 2009-10, all of AUSL'’s three high
schools will be training sites for residents.

Another challenge for AUSL is to generate new sources of non-CPS funding. We are
applying for a sizable federal grant for our UTR program, which would reduce our
reliance on philanthropy to fund the growth of our teacher residency program.
Foundations and individuals are enthusiastic about our model and performance, but as
we get larger our needs will exceed the amounts they typically give to new, innovative
ventures.

AUSL'’s central organization also needs to continue to develop its own systems and
structures, in particular to get our technology infrastructure more codified to better
support internal communications and access to information by multiple individuals and
teams.
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5. Academic Plan

e Describe the organizational assessment strategy. ldentify the organization’s plan
for monitoring academic performance and progress.

e For high schools: please describe your “college readiness” program and
standards.

e Please describe any changes to the following school design proposal since your
last school proposal. If there are no changes to components below, please
submit a statement confirming this.

0 Educational philosophy
0 Clarity on key, non-negotiable components of school design and on
school-level autonomies

Any innovative features of model

Curriculum and standards

Class size, structure and school staffing model

Plans for monitoring, intervention and support (remediation)

Plans for meeting needs of advanced, accelerated learners

Extra-curricular programming and support

Non-academic supports

Parental and community involvement expectations

O0O0O0O0OO0O0O0

AUSL’s academic plan for 2010 Turnaround elementary and high schools is not
expected to change significantly, and will be aligned with plans in other Turnaround
schools in our network. Some key features of our plan, and some of the recent changes
we have made, are described below.

Overview. AUSL'’s academic plan uses a rigorous, standards-based curriculum, with
frequent formative and summative assessments. AUSL'’s two Directors of Curriculum
and Assessment (one each for elementary and high schools) lead teams for network
teachers and coaches to develop common network-wide standards-based pacing
guides, assessment tools, and assessment calendars. The AUSL network’s approach to
ensuring a “Guaranteed and Viable Curriculum,” is summarized in Exhibit 14 with pages
from our recent Leadership Summit and described in more detail by a document
prepared in early 2009 by our outside consultants, the Bridgespan Group.

Beginning in 2009-10, all AUSL elementary schools will give the NWEA (Northwest
Evaluation Association) MAP (Measure of Academic Progress). AUSL piloted NWEA
assessments at two schools in 2008-09, and they will be rolled out network-wide in
2009-10. All AUSL elementary schools will give the NWEA assessments three times per
year — September, December, and May. AUSL high schools will also use NWEA (as a
diagnostic for all entering students). These summative (Computer Adaptive), nationally
normed assessments give rich, specific, real-time data that allows teachers to target
instruction to student needs, and have been shown to be strong predictors of ISAT
performance.

Network-wide curriculum for elementary schools. All AUSL elementary schools do
not use precisely the same curriculum, but we are moving towards greater alignment,
and new Turnaround schools will adopt common curriculum. Curriculum design teams,
composed of teachers from Training academies as well as Turnaround schools in their
second year or beyond, design curriculum tools for general use across the network.
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They also design tools specifically for new Turnaround schools, which usually involve
suggestions for modifying the pacing of instruction for the first year of a Turnaround.

We have decided to maintain the same expectations for all schools regarding the scope
of the content and the cognitive rigor. We are also working towards more common
components between Turnaround schools and Training academies, so that residents are
trained in these components in anticipation of using them in their own classrooms when
hired at a new Turnaround school.

For published resources, K-5 uses Everyday Math from the University of Chicago. Most
schools use Math Thematics for grades 6-8. Each of our current elementary schools
uses a different set of publisher materials for literacy; one commonality is the
implementation of balanced literacy following a Fountas & Pinnell or a Calkins model.
Lucy Calkins herself has been engaged to deliver a week of PD in summer 2009 to
several teams of teachers and coaches to strengthen AUSL teachers’ ability to teach
Literacy.

Beginning in 2008-09, new Turnaround elementary schools will all use the basal reading
series Reading Street by Pearson. Sherman has also elected to adopt this for 2009-10.

Class Diagnostic Assessment System (CDAS). All AUSL elementary schools are
continuing to use the Class Diagnostic Assessment System (CDAS) for Math and
Reading, plus quarterly Interim assessments for Writing. Each assessment system
consists of interrelated components:

e Unpacked benchmarks to clarify and align the learning targets implied in the
state benchmarks between grades, and to identify learning targets at different
levels of cognitive rigor, namely knowledge, skills & understanding, and
reasoning.

o Benchmark assessments, which are sets of forced-choice diagnostic questions
which test student attainment of the learning targets at the 3 levels of cognitive
rigor.

e Pacing guides indicating how to modify published materials (by supplementing
or deleting lessons) in order to adequately address the benchmarks, and how to
pace instruction throughout the year, keeping the ISAT dates in mind.

o Diagnostic assessments comprised of the diagnostic questions rearranged into
sets according to the level of cognitive rigor of the benchmarks taught during a
given time period, as specified on the pacing guides.

The CDAS assessment tools for Math were complete and fully implemented in all
schools in 2008-09, while Literacy and Science tools were being developed; in 2009-10,
Literacy CDAS will be rolled out network-wide while teachers will pilot and revise
Science. Rollout plans also include PD for teachers on how to use the information from
CDAS to target their lesson planning and re-teaching priorities.

Strong gains in Math ISAT scores across the board in AUSL schools (Exhibit 2) give
testimony to the usefulness of these tools for teachers. We are also beginning the
practice of maintaining portfolios of student writing and interim assessments that will
follow students from grade to grade, to allow teachers to examine students’ writing
development across school years.
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Linkit! In spring 2008, AUSL purchased Linkit!, a web-based software package for
managing and reporting student progress on assessments at the student, classroom,
school, and network level. Beginning in 2008-09, all AUSL schools loaded CDAS and
ISAT assessment data into Linkit! and used its flexible, easy-to-use reporting tools
during data analysis and planning sessions involving teachers, coaches, and school
leaders. Chicago Academy Elementary and Harvard also used NWEA assessments in
2008-09 and captured these results in Linkit! as well. Sample Linkit! reports are in
Exhibit 13.

High school curriculum and assessment. Beginning in 2009-10, all AUSL high
schools will follow a common curriculum map that outlines the specific ACT College
Readiness Standards to be taught and assessed (Interims and CDAS) each quarter in
all English, Math, Science, and History courses. This represents a transition from the
CPS High School Transformation Instructional Delivery Systems materials, in order to
align our curriculum more closely with the ACT standards (rather than the lllinois
Learning Standards). Also, the ACT College Readiness Standards for Reading are
embedded across all content areas at AUSL high schools.

High schools are continuing to use the EPAS system (Explore, PLAN, ACT) and
guarterly Interim Assessments, and capturing data using the Linklt system. All AUSL
high schools will also use our Class Diagnostic Assessment System (CDAS) beginning
in 2009-10 to assess student progress on the English, Reading, Math, and Science ACT
College Readiness Standards. Teachers will give CDAS diagnostics approximately once
every two weeks.

We are attentive to the needs of our many at-risk high school students who are
achieving below grade level. The following supports are in place:

¢ High schools use the Freshmen Watch Lists from CPS to identify incoming
freshmen who enter high school needing extra academic supports.

e Throughout the year, when new students arrive to enroll in AUSL high schools
they will take an entry assessment (NWEA) in reading and math to determine
their current performance level. These scores, generated within 24 hours, will
allow schools to place students with low performance levels in classes with
additional academic supports.

e We offer online courses to students for credit recovery.

e Students who fall behind in two or more academic classes receive in-school
interventions during the regular school day.

e Quarterly Student Success Reports from CPS are used to identify students at-
risk for ending the year “off-track” for promotion and/or graduation.

College readiness. Each AUSL high school has a post-secondary coach to engage all
students and families in the necessary components related to getting into and paying for
college. AUSL high school students have seminar classes at each grade level: study
skills for high school (9"); individual learning styles (10™); preparation for high-stakes
college entrance exams (11™) and career and college preparation through projects and
internships (12").
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Also see page 7 plan for a description of how assessment results are reported and
reviewed using Data Dialogues, as part of AUSL’s school-level performance
management process. For more background, see AUSL’s 2008 elementary proposal
pages 28-34 and AUSL’s 2008 high school proposal pages 29-36.

Engaging and Personalized Instruction is the “E” of our PASSAGE framework. In
addition to the services required by law (such as special education and resource
support, speech, ESL/bilingual classrooms and resource), the strategies that we have
used to support students in elementary schools are:

o Power of 5. Targeted by their ISAT, CDAS, and NWEA results, a group of five
students from each class in grades 3 to 8 receives tutoring during the school day
in Math and Reading that is targeted at their specific weaknesses. AUSL
employs, trains, and supervises one full-time tutor for each Turnaround school,
and the school budget also provides resources for additional part-time tutoring
support.

e City Year. At Turnaround schools, a team of 5 City Year program members tutor
students in grades K to 2 on an individual basis in reading, with a focus on word
solving, fluency, vocabulary, and comprehension.

e Saturday School. Small groups of students who scored at Academic Warning
or Below Standards receive additional instruction in Math and Reading from
certified teachers on Saturday mornings during specific months.

e Coaches. Each Turnaround elementary school has one FTE of a full-time coach
(some proximate elementary schools share coaches who specialize by grade
level cluster). These coaches support all new teachers through biweekly
observation and coaching, and also deliver workshops and PD network-wide.
Orr Academy High School had 4.3 FTE of coaches in 2008-09, and will add a
full-time special education coach in 2009-10. We expect new Turnaround
schools to be supported with coaches at similar levels.

e Specially-trained AUSL residents as teachers. See pages 21-22 for
information about the special preparation that AUSL’s Urban Teacher Residency
(UTR) provides for the individuals who hold many of the teaching positions at
Turnaround schools.

Besides the additional instruction, we also provide clear expectations and generate
excitement about academic achievement. Schools also use different kinds of incentive
systems to motivate students.

Also see pages 22-23 of this business plan for a description of new 2009-10 initiatives to
strengthen teachers’ instructional skills using the Danielson diagnostic tool.

After-school arts and sports curricular enhancement programs. AUSL employs full-
time Athletics and Fine/Performing Arts Coordinators (one of each) to develop resources
to support after-school arts and sports programs, and to coordinate coaches, teaching
artists, and partner program scheduling with our schools. AUSL supports all the CPS
elementary school sports programs such as basketball, girls’ volleyball and track and
field. AUSL sometimes runs AUSL leagues when the sport is not supported by CPS,
such as for elementary football, baseball and lacrosse. In the high schools we seek to
ensure high-quality coaching, facilities (we have funded the upgrade of two synthetic turf
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athletic fields and one natural turf football field), and attention to supporting satisfactory
academic status of our student athletes.

AUSL'’s Fine and Performing Arts Coordinator has developed a large number of partners
for our schools for after-school fine and performing arts programs. Each principal may
choose a mix that suits the interests of his or her students and that is complementary
with the arts programming available through full-time or half-time teachers on the school
staff. See Exhibit 15 for activities and programs for 2008-09, including planned
programming for AUSL’s three new Turnaround schools.

Track E calendar. Beginning in 2009-10, four additional AUSL elementary schools
(Harvard, Morton, NTA and Sherman) will join Dodge in adopting the CPS year-round
Track E school calendar. More schools (e.g., Howe, Bethune, Johnson, Dulles) may
follow in future years. We do not expect new Turnaround schools to adopt Track E
beginning in Year 1, due to facilities renovations and because summer planning time is
so critical prior to the initial opening of the reconstituted school.
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6. Governance and Organizational Structure (including transition over time)

e Describe the organization’s governance structure:
0 Composition of Board of Directors
0 Board’s roles and responsibilities
0 Key skill sets represented
0 Board's relationship to schools
e Specifically describe how the organization’s Board of Directors will support the
organization’s proposed 5-year growth plan. Identify any Board development
requirements relative to the organization’s proposed growth and governance
needs.

Board of Directors. Exhibit 16 lists AUSL’s Board of Directors, which currently includes
22 diverse and highly qualified members from the Chicago business, philanthropic, and
education community. AUSL'’s Board has only one member from AUSL’s management
team, AUSL’s Executive Director. AUSL’s full Board meets quarterly, with committee
work between meetings. AUSL’s Board committees are: Development and
Communications; Executive; Finance; Governance; and School Performance.

AUSL'’s Board of Directors supports the organization in many ways. Board members
contribute financially to AUSL'’s mission, providing $330,000 in FY 2009. Some Board
members and their firms have provided valuable in-kind pro bono services, and use their
personal and professional networks to introduce others who have provided important
advice and support to AUSL.

e Provide the following organization charts:
0 Current
O Vision for organization in three years
o0 Vision for organization in five years
e Identify the organization’s leadership team and their specific roles and
responsibilities.
e Please describe the services to be provided to the schools by the management
organization and any pre-service goals. How does the organization know
whether it is successfully delivering these services?

AUSL staff organization and leadership team. See AUSL'’s current staff organization
chart and summary profiles of AUSL senior staff in Exhibit 17. The last page of AUSL’s
5-year plan (Exhibit 3) shows the expected growth of AUSL'’s staff over the next several
years. We anticipate growth in our staff of coaches commensurate with growth in the
number of new Turnaround schools, and more modest growth in home office and UTR
program staff.

Also see page 2 for more on how the AUSL central organization supports AUSL schools,
and our PASSAGE framework in Exhibit 9.
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e Please define school- and organization-level decision-making authority as it
relates to key functions, including curriculum, professional development, culture,
staffing, etc. For a sample table, please see Appendix B.

School and organizational decision-making authority. AUSL school principals have
the same authority to make decisions on behalf of their school and CPS as other CPS
principals. Principals make all school staff hiring decisions, and are responsible for the
portion of their school budget funded by core CPS per-pupil funding. AUSL’s Board of
Directors and Managing Directors make decisions about how to invest funds received
from public and private sources (including additional CPS funding) to benefit the schools.

The autonomy afforded to AUSL principals is accompanied by accountability and
performance management systems. All AUSL principals are appointed by the CPS CEO
as Interim principals, making them at-will employees (not employed via the typical 4-year
contract with a Local School Council). AUSL'’s Managing and Executive Directors can
ask CPS to replace an AUSL principal without waiting until a 4-year term ends. On the
positive side, AUSL principals are also eligible for incentive compensation paid by AUSL,
based on their school’s results on a “balanced scorecard” of metrics (see Exhibit 18).
This compensation, which has been in the range of $10,000 annually for each principal,
is paid in addition to their annual compensation according to the Collective Bargaining
Agreement.

e Describe the organization’s approach to technology and data management:

0 What is the organization’s existing infrastructure related to technology?
What infrastructure development is being planned?

0 How will technology support the organization’s 3-5

0 year growth plan?

0 What is the organization’s data management plan? How is student
information tracked across campuses?

0 Describe the organization’s staffing needs specific to technology, and
describe how it will build additional capacity to support new growth.

Technology. AUSL schools use the CPS technology infrastructure and comply with all
CPS requirements for capturing and tracking information. We have also obtained
access to some key systems (e.g., Oracle, downloads of REA data) for use by AUSL
home office personnel supporting financial, HR/staffing, and performance management
services for our schools and network. We purchase laptops for our staff through CPS,
and CPS systems provide the source data for many of the metrics we use to track
whole-school performance.

AUSL purchased the Linkit! system and began using it in 2008-09 in all schools to
support data-driven instruction and performance management. Linkit! is used to capture
and report results from Classroom Diagnostic and Assessment System (CDAS)
assessments, as well as high school interim assessments. Linkit! reports are used in all
AUSL schools to capture and manage information at the student, classroom, school, and
network level. As we adopt the NWEA interim assessments in 2009-10, results will also
be captured in Linkit!. This technology supports data-driven reflection and conversation
for teachers, teacher teams, coaches, school leaders, and AUSL network leadership.
Also see the Academic Plan section of this business plan beginning on page 11.
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AUSL also uses a variety of other externally available technology-based supports for
various aspects of our program, for example in teacher recruitment (Applitrack) and for
collaboration between residents and mentors in our UTR program (Google Groups,
Google Calendar, and Vimeo).

AUSL’s staff currently includes one technology specialist, who is a contractor. We are
currently receiving pro bono assistance from a team at The Revere Group to advise us
on our overall technology strategy as we seek to meet the infrastructure and
communications needs of our growing staff, make our technology interfaces with CPS as
efficient as possible, all while keeping our technology support costs low.
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7. Human Capital

o Please complete the table in Appendix C indicating your projected staffing needs
for the entire network over the next five years.

o Please complete the table(s) in Appendix D outlining your school staffing roll-out
plan for both a “typical” elementary school and a “typical” high school (as
applicable)

Projected staffing needs. See Exhibit 3 for forecasted 5-year staffing needs for staff to
be funded from AUSL’s budget (home office staff, UTR program staff, coaches, and
extra APs).

AUSL Turnaround schools use per-pupil funding and adapt the staffing model to the
needs of each school’s student population. See AUSL’s 2008 elementary proposal to
ONS, page 40 for typical staffing for a Turnaround elementary school, and AUSL’s 2008
high school proposal to ONS, page 44 for typical staffing for a Turnaround high school.

¢ What is your process for identifying and developing leaders? Who will lead this
process? What are its phases and associated costs?

Identifying and developing school leaders. AUSL uses a variety of sources for
leadership talent, and we search nationally for principal candidates. Past principals have
come from positions within the AUSL network, from principal preparation programs
including UIC and New Leaders for New Schools, from other CPS schools, and from
non-CPS schools within and outside Chicago. For example, one of the three 2009
Turnaround principals was previously at another CPS school; the others were employed
as principals outside the district.

AUSL's Director of Recruiting and HR, Director of Special Projects, and Manager of
Recruiting — Schools collaborate to source and screen candidates, reaching out locally
(e.g., CPS e-bulletin, networking) and nationally through leading education and general
internet job posting services. Final principal screening and selection is conducted by
AUSL’s Executive Director and Managing Directors.

Prospective principal candidates are interviewed year round, with particular emphasis on
reviewing candidates in the fall. High school principals are employed full-time as soon
as possible after AUSL is approved by ONS as an eligible operator, and no later than
January. Elementary school principals are employed as of about February 1. Our
principals typically start working with us before they know the name of the school they
will be leading, to ensure that we are ready to go as soon as Turnaround schools are
announced.

Principals are responsible for hiring their assistant principals, with support in generating
candidates from the team above as well as from the team that supports teacher
recruitment. Assistant principals begin full-time incubation work after spring break.

Elementary Turnaround school principals and APs are supported, coached and
developed during the incubation planning period primarily by two senior AUSL staff:
AUSL’s Director of Special Projects, an experienced former CPS principal who has
provided incubation support to the principals of all of AUSL'’s previous elementary
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Turnaround schools; and AUSL’s Director of School Effectiveness — Elementary schools.
New Turnaround high school principals are supported, coached and developed by
AUSL'’s Managing Director, High Schools and our Director of Performance Management,
High schools. Central program staff also support teacher and ESP recruitment, and to
design and deliver a good portion of summer turnaround PD.

e What is the organization’s approach to teacher recruitment and hiring?
o What is managed at the school level? At the organization level?
0 Who within the organization is responsible for managing the process?
0 What key partnerships will support the acquisition of staff? Identify known
sources of teachers and leaders.

Teacher recruitment roles and responsibilities. Principals and their APs are
responsible for selecting teachers and staff for new Turnaround schools. Elementary
principals and APs work as a team to screen and evaluate candidates; they collaborate
with one another and do not make competing offers. To help ensure high quality,
AUSL's veteran Director of Special Projects meets (or observes) all elementary
Turnaround teacher candidates before they receive offers. All prospective teachers are
observed teaching before they are hired. We expect a similar model for high school
teacher hiring for 2010.

The Turnaround leadership teams are supported by members of AUSL’s home office
staff and various recruiting partners who manage activities and advertising to generate
applications and pre-screen candidates. With overall leadership from AUSL’s Director of
Recruiting and Human Resources, AUSL employs a full-time Manager of Recruiting for
AUSL Schools, and in spring 2010 this individual will be assisted by a full-time recruiting
intern plus temporary clerical help.

Turnaround teacher offer letters are standardized and ensure that teachers accepting
positions in Turnaround schools understand our expectations for their participation in
paid summer PD and a paid one-hour extension of the school day for four days per
week.

Partnerships. AUSL'’s key partnerships for teacher and key staff recruitment are:

e AUSL’s own Urban Teacher Residency program, which is expected to provide
50% or more of elementary Turnaround teacher hires and 15% to 30% of high
school teacher hires. These teacher candidates are all observed and interviewed
by principals during March, with final selections are made before spring break.
This frees up principals and APs to focus on selecting their non-AUSL teachers
and ESPs beginning immediately after spring break.

e Chicago Public Schools. We advertise in the CPS e-bulletin as soon as AUSL
is officially confirmed as the operator for specified Turnaround schools. We are
represented at all CPS-sponsored job fairs. TNTP staff have also worked to
“mine” CPS’s databases of applicants to the district (12,000 annually) and
displaced teachers to screen candidates and target AUSL'’s recruitment outreach.
For example, we were able to get names of schools where high-needs positions
were being displaced in June, and we called these specific principals to ask for
referrals.
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e The New Teacher Project (TNTP). CPS’s Department of Recruitment and
Workforce Planning, along with AUSL, engaged TNTP beginning in 2008 to
support recruitment for both CPS and AUSL Turnaround schools. TNTP staff
members screened hundreds of candidates and sent qualified prospects to AUSL
for review. Their advertising, Teacher Track database, access to CPS data, and
capacity to review and screen candidates added to the size and quality of the
pool available to us. Also, they will bring lessons learned about high school
hiring based on their experience supporting hiring for Orr (2008), Harper (2008),
and Fenger (2009).

e Others. AUSL's recruiting staff have made connections, reviewed resume
books, and attended job fairs sponsored by a variety of organizations including
the lllinois Network of Charter Schools, the U of Chicago School of Social
Service Administration, Teach for America, and the Erikson Institute.

Results. As of July 1, two of the three 2009 Turnaround schools each have one
teaching position left to fill, and the other is fully staffed. Orr Academy High School’s
hiring for 2009-10 is complete except for three special education vacancies for the 2009-
10 school year (total roster of 80+ teachers, over 25 of whom are special education).
Other network Turnaround schools are all fully staffed. We do expect the 2010 season
to be more challenging, of course, with six schools rather than three and including two
high schools.

e What is the organization’s plan to meet professional development needs?

0 What is the school’s vs. organization’s responsibility with regard to
providing professional development?

o How will the organization provide professional development for new
campus induction?

0 What is the process for identifying and coordinating ongoing common
professional development needs across schools?

0 What is the method for determining the effectiveness of professional
development at the organizational and school level?

The “E” of AUSL’'s PASSAGE framework stands for “Engaging and Personalized
Instruction.” AUSL’s core belief is that teachers make the difference in driving student
achievement gains, and we invest substantial resources in initiatives to continuously
strengthen the professional knowledge, skills, and dispositions of all of our teachers.

Urban Teacher Residency as a talent pipeline. We have mentioned the importance of
our UTR to ensure adequate numbers of teachers for new Turnaround schools. But of
greater importance than their number is the quality and suitability of these teachers for
Turnaround schools, because they bring knowledge, skills, and dispositions that are
critical to the success and cohesiveness of Turnaround schools. Specifically:

e They competed for a spot in the AUSL program (fewer than 1 in 10 applicants
were selected for the Class of 2010), and they have signed a contract to work for
four years in a high-needs AUSL school.

e They have spent a full year immersed in AUSL tools, frameworks, and language
—e.g., Danielson, Signature Strategies (more below). All residents understand
AUSL's expectations for a “turnaround-ready graduate,” which are linked to
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Danielson components (Exhibit 19). And all who are selected for Turnaround
schools exhibit at least a “Basic” level of proficiency according to the Danielson
performance continuum.

e They have intensive, turnaround-focused preparation. All have Master’'s
degrees; many will have special ed endorsements; and all those selected for
Turnaround schools will train together with their new team and principal for
several weeks prior to graduation (see Exhibit 19). Also, beginning in 2008-09,
AUSL will train residents for Type 04 early childhood certification with our new
university partner, the Erikson Institute.

e They know one another personally from their year training together, which
predisposes them to help and support one another.

Danielson and Signature Strategies as network-wide frameworks supporting
teacher effectiveness. In 2008-09, our UTR program team and external partners
(Lifelong Learning, others) developed PD and coaching tools using some of the best
available tools and frameworks (Danielson, Uncommon Schools, Marzano, Fred Jones,
others) to give AUSL residents and their mentors common tools and frameworks to learn
and practice together. The Danielson framework (widely admired and also being piloted
elsewhere in CPS) is used for diagnosing teacher effectiveness. Thirteen “Signature
Strategies” borrowed and synthesized by AUSL from other sources offer approaches for
teachers on how to minimize non-instructional time, engage students in higher-order
thinking, and increase the effectiveness of their classroom environment. See Exhibit 20
for documents related to this process: process overview page, AUSL’s Danielson-based
observation tool, brief descriptions of our Signature Strategies, and a matrix to help
coaches and teachers customize each teacher’s development plan to for PD to learn
strategies in the areas where the Danielson diagnosis suggests it is most needed.

In the spring of 2009, we began integrating these frameworks into centrally designed
and delivered, paid professional development workshops and coaching for new mentors,
coaches, lead teachers, and ultimately (beginning in Fall 2009) all AUSL teachers. We
centrally manage and coordinate content, PD session scheduling, trainers, and coaches
at the AUSL network level for the benefit of all schools, in support of our network goal to
develop all of our teachers beyond Danielson’s “Basic” performance level and to make
“Proficient” and “Distinguished” teaching the hallmark of AUSL classrooms. Coaches
will lead staff development workshop sessions, and will reinforce what is taught using
observations and one-on-one and small-group coaching. Intensive, individualized
classroom coaching is available to all teachers in AUSL turnaround schools for the first
three years (and beyond), including extensive support in deepening teachers’
pedagogical “toolboxes” through mastery of the AUSL Signature Strategies for
classroom management and instruction. We have already begun the roll-out of this
process, introducing all AUSL principals and APs to the Danielson and Signature
Strategies material during the spring of 2009 and at our summer 2009 Leadership
Summit.

Beginning in 2009-10, coaches and administrators will capture their observations using
the consistent language of the Danielson observation tool. We will collect this data to
enable us to validate the effectiveness of using this rubric and the Signature Strategies
by correlating CDAS and Interim assessment data on the achievement progress of a
teacher’s students with his or her level of proficiency as observed using the Danielson
rubric. We are also excited by the opportunity to institutionalize more common language
for the practice of teaching, especially language like the Danielson which sets a high
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“bar” for good performance. For example, see Exhibit 21 for a document using the
Danielson framework to establish expectations for how teachers should set up their
classrooms for the first day of school. We believe this framework and will help all of our
teachers, coaches and school leaders elevate their expectations of themselves, become
more transparent about their practice, and help one another more. And, AUSL Class of
2009 residency program graduates will reinforce this as they arrive in Turnaround
schools already speaking Danielson’s language and practicing a number of the
Signhature Strategies.

AUSL principals appreciate the centrally provided frameworks, PD, and coaching their
teachers get from the AUSL network. Resources are available, but nothing is
“mandatory” and the costs are borne by AUSL’s central organization, not the principal’s
budget. Principals, APs, and coaches received PD on Danielson and the Signature
Strategies in spring 2009 and during our recent three-day Leadership Summit, and
principals will be incorporating several hours of introductory Danielson/Signature
Strategy workshops into their Teacher Institute Days at the beginning of the school year.
Also, one after-school hour per week, every week, is earmarked for teacher planning
and PD. This time is paid for out of AUSL’s budget, not the school’s, and will be used
sometimes for data-driven reviews by teacher teams and other times for professional
development.

Summer professional development for new Turnaround schools. AUSL uses a
portion of Turnaround school CPS funding for paid summer PD and planning for
teachers and staff of new Turnaround schools. For six weeks during the summer (4
days/week, 4 hours/day), all of the school-based staff (administrators, teachers, and
ESPs) participate together in PD designed and delivered jointly by the school’s
administrators and by AUSL home office staff. The school team uses these weeks to
get aligned and to prepare highly detailed plans for how the school will operate,
especially as it relates to ensuring a positive school culture and climate and high
expectations from Day 1. See Exhibit 22 for a draft of this season’s schedule and for
samples of some of the material that will be covered.

Additional summer professional development for targeted teams of AUSL and
school staff. In the summer of 2009, we will continue to add to our calendar of PD and
planning sessions for various AUSL school teams. AUSL home office staff and coaches
all work 12 months a year, and are available to design and lead these programs which
include:

e AUSL Leadership Summit (2 days): principals, assistant principals, all AUSL
coaches, and home office staff

e AUSL Signature Strategies training: lead teachers (HS department chairs plus 2-
3 lead teachers per elementary school), all coaches, and school leaders

e Training for new AUSL UTR mentors (4 days)
High School Curriculum Tools training: lead teachers and coaches (HS only)

e Reading CDAS and Writing Interim Assessments training: lead teachers and
coaches (Elem only)
Linklt training: “power users” at all AUSL schools

o Data-Driven Instruction — Policies and Protocols: school leadership teams
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All AUSL-provided PD is train-the-trainer with attendees expected to train all faculty and
staff, targeting the specific needs of the school.

¢ What is the organization’s approach to staff performance evaluations?
0 What are the key elements driving evaluations?
o With what frequency are evaluations conducted and by whom?
0 What is the process for addressing development needs and concerns?

Performance evaluations. AUSL has developed a process for mid-year and year-end
performance reviews of all of our principals, based on mutually-agreed goals between
the principal and his or her Managing Director. See Exhibit 18 for a sample (disguised)
review form. These reviews are reinforced by semi-annual incentive compensation
payments to principals, with the potential for a principal to earn up to $11,000 in
additional compensation each year based on their evaluation results.

In addition, all AUSL principals are nominated by AUSL for CPS employment and
appointed by the CPS CEO as Interim principals; they do not have a four-year LSC
contract. Therefore, if the leadership at an AUSL school is not meeting expectations,
that leader may be replaced.

Performance reviews for teachers and staff in AUSL schools are based on CPS
collective bargaining agreement protocols, and use CPS forms. However, the new and
more structured tools and rubrics for coaching and PD described above will help
teachers and administrators develop a common language for discussing teachers’
professional practice, and will structure and guide teachers’ efforts to master new
knowledge and skills.

The AUSL UTR program’s residents also receive semi-annual, written formative and
summative assessments during their training year. These evaluations are based on the
Danielson rubric, and include input from the resident’s mentor, principal, and the Mentor-
Resident Coach responsible for the program at their training site. Residents whose
progress is unsatisfactory, or who fail to meet university requirements, are separated
from the program. The use of Danielson-based observation and evaluation tools during
the 2008-09 school year at the UTR program has been a good “pilot” for refining tools
and processes that will be used with all AUSL teachers beginning in 2009-10.

Coaches and other employees of AUSL are evaluated annually by their managers
with oversight from AUSL'’s Executive and Managing Directors. AUSL’s employees are
not unionized, and are all at-will employees.

Collective Bargaining Agreement guidelines and CPS policies establish discipline and
performance feedback protocols for all CPS employees. Others (e.g., residents,
coaches, and AUSL staff) receive formal and informal feedback, including written
warning letters if necessary.

0 What is the organization’s strategy to retain high-performing teachers?
Retaining high-performing teachers. AUSL and principals in our schools employ

many strategies to retain high-performing teachers:
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e AUSL'’s selection of inspiring, motivating, and collegial principals who are
suited to the Turnaround school leadership challenge. Our criteria for principal
selection weigh heavily the candidates’ experience and vision for selecting
teachers and staff, as well as his or her inspirational leadership skills and track
record.

o Extraresources and supports for teachers and students. AUSL Turnaround
schools have coaches, tutors, data-driven instruction tools, extra PD, curricular
enhancement programs, and refurbished facilities.

e AUSL network career ladder opportunities. AUSL network teachers have
some special opportunities. For example, teachers all AUSL high schools can
aspire and train to become a mentor teacher (with extra 0.2 pay), since we will be
expanding our capacity for secondary mentors. Elementary teachers can aspire
to be lead teachers (a position which also includes a $1000 annual stipend).
AUSL’s UTR program Mentor-Resident Coaches are all former teachers. Since
the AUSL network continues to add schools, teachers and APs can aspire to fill
available leadership positions as the network expands.

e Contractual commitment (AUSL UTR graduates). In exchange for their paid
year of training, participants in AUSL’s Urban Teacher Residency program sign a
contract to teach in a high-needs CPS school selected by AUSL for four years
following completion of the one-year training program. If they do not, they are
expected to repay AUSL for a portion of their training expenses.

e CPS/CTU school. AUSL teachers and ESP staff benefit from the attractive
compensation, benefits, work hours, and job security provisions of the Collective
Bargaining Agreement.

Separating poor performers. Ensuring a high-quality school staff also sometimes
requires separating, rather than retaining, some teachers or other staff. Not every hire
succeeds. AUSL Turnaround schools have a higher proportion of non-tenured teachers
than the typical CPS school. This gives principals greater flexibility to separate poor
performers, including any poorly performing AUSL graduates, who are released from
their contract if they are non-renewed by an AUSL principal. AUSL'’s ability to separate
poor performers is also facilitated by the presence of AUSL data-driven instruction tools
(which help make poor teacher performance more transparent) and coaches (whose role
in giving struggling teachers coaching and feedback more promptly can help principals
distinguish which teachers are progressing and which are not willing or able to
progress).
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8. Facilities

¢ Identify the organization’s core requirements for a facility (elementary and high
school as appropriate) to accommodate the organization’s stated growth plan,
e.g.,
0 Square footage
0 Number and type of classrooms
o Amenities, etc.
¢ Identify anticipated facility sources in terms of priority and mix, e.qg.,:
o CPS
0 Leases from private sources
0 Purchase from private sources
o New construction
¢ Identify contingency plans if desired facility strategy is not achieved.
e Describe the organization’s capacity and experience in managing these
strategies, including required renovation.

As a CPS performance school using the Turnaround school model, AUSL relies on CPS
to ensure that our facilities meet CPS requirements. After Turnaround schools are
identified, AUSL principals and home office staff will work with CPS to identify needs for
renovations, upgraded furniture and equipment, etc.

As part of AUSL’s mission, we also seek philanthropic contributions to fund facilities
improvements (for example, new $2.6 million track and field at Orr Academy High
School). Such investments are not the same for every school, but depend on the
school and community needs, as well as the availability of donors. We will continue to
seek such opportunities for existing and future Turnaround schools.
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9. Financing and Philanthropic Need

e Submit a multi-year financial plan, including revenue and expenditure projections
that reflect proposed growth and development needs over time. The projections
should:

Include a separate budget for each school

Include a back-office budget

Indicate per pupil management fees

Incorporate financial implications of facilities plans

Explicitly detail major assumptions including, but not limited to, those

listed in Appendix E

e How will the organization reach its fundraising goals over the next 5 years?
Please provide a development plan including staffing needs.

o What financial controls does the organization have in place at the central- and
school-level to ensure long-term financial viability?

O000O0

(all numbers below are thousands of dollars)

Financial plan. Exhibit 4 is a copy of the April 21, 2009 presentation to AUSL’s Board
of Directors of projected financial results for FY2009 and the financial plan for FY 2010.
By way of explanation, AUSL’s financial planning addresses three streams of funds:
“green box” funding which flows from CPS directly to the CPS schools in the AUSL
network, based on CPS'’s typical per-pupil formulas; “yellow box” (or CPS premium)
funds which represent additional funding from CPS to AUSL to support part of the cost of
its activities related teacher training and to management of Turnaround schools; and

“red box” funding, which is raised by AUSL from non-CPS sources and which is used to
invest in additional resources and activities in our schools, as well as to cover all of
AUSL’s central program and “overhead” costs.

This presentation can be updated with these key facts: AUSL'’s projected operating
surplus for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 shown in the April 21 presentation was
$947.1. The current preliminary surplus amount is $687.0. The difference resulted from
delays in receiving funds from two confirmed grants.

AUSL’s 5-year financial plan in Exhibit 3 summarizes the financial impact of a possible
5-year trajectory for growth. To support the cost of scaling up, AUSL is seeking
increased federal government funding for our program (e.g., Department of Education
Teacher Quality Partnership grant) and would also need increased CPS funding. AUSL
does not expect funding from individuals and foundations to increase in proportion to the
planned scale-up of our activities, and we do not receive (or expect) significant near-
term increases in funding from the State of lllinois. AUSL’s UTR for secondary residents
was recently approved as an Americorps program.

Financial controls and long-term viability. As CPS performance schools, financial
decisions of AUSL principals (“green box”) are governed by all regular CPS policies and
controls. Expenditures controlled by AUSL are managed through annual revenue,
expense, and development planning, with regular reviews of results relative to plan.
AUSL’s Managing Director of Finance and Administration and our Financial Manager
have implemented disciplined processes and procedures, including budget
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accountability for AUSL managers. Annual audit results have all been satisfactory (see
Exhibit 5)

As AUSL’s scale increases, and depending on how well other non-CPS sources of
funding develop, it may become necessary for AUSL and CPS to discuss an increase in
the historically fixed rates for the fees that AUSL receives for Turnaround school and
Training Academy activities, including per-resident subsidies. A significant portion of the
costs these fees support are incurred as compensation to CPS-payroll employees
supporting AUSL’s mission, i.e., mentor teacher 0.2 payments, Training Academy AP
position costs, compensation for Turnaround school incubation personnel, and our UTR
Director and mentor-resident coaches. CPS’s recent policy change to increase its
budget assessment for pension pick-up, combined with normal lane and step
adjustments, has accelerated the escalation of these costs. We will need to work closely
with CPS to ensure that the funding formulas for resident training and Turnaround
schools are sufficient, especially in light of regular and significant annual increases in
position costs
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10. Risk Management

e What are the greatest anticipated risks to achieving the organization’s desired
outcomes over the next 5 years?

e How will the organization develop capacity to mitigate anticipated risks?

Risks. We are pleased with the performance of our organization so far as it relates to
driving rapid and sustained improvements in student achievement in the schools we turn
around. While there have been a few disappointments, our model (especially for
elementary schools) seems to be working, and we look forward to building on a good
start at Orr to continue to refine and extend our impact with failing high schools. Our
organizational capacity is also stable and strong.

However, we do see these risks to achieving our goals at the ambitious pace we have
outlined in our 5-year plan:

Unpredictability and/or inconsistency in the number of new Turnaround schools
assigned to us by CPS, with resulting adverse impact on our teacher pipeline.
Because of the need to train residents, AUSL begins to commit significant resources to
new Turnaround schools 12 to 18 months before the schools are confirmed by CPS for
AUSL management. Specifically, we will begin accepting applications for our UTR class
of 2011 (prospective teachers for Turnaround schools opening in September 2011) in
September 2009.

e In 2009, AUSL had no new Turnaround high school (despite having been
previously recommended by ONS for one). 28 secondary residents completed
our program in the class of 2009, but only 13 of them will join AUSL schools (in
a few middle school Turnaround positions, plus a few openings at Orr and
Collins). The other 15 we invested in to train will go elsewhere (mostly in
Chicago) and will not serve together in a cohort in an AUSL school. We hope
their disappointed expectations will not adversely affect future recruiting.

e Also, the opportunity to add another high school to strengthen our capacity to
train high school residents for future Turnaround schools has been deferred by
a year. We are now training 28 residents for positions in Turnaround high
schools beginning in fall 2010. If we got one high school instead of two, that
would be unfortunate; but if we were to get no new Turnaround high school at
all for 2010, the 2-year gap in Turnaround school placement opportunities for
our graduates would present a serious problem for ensuring and expanding the
continuity of our pipeline for “turnaround-ready” secondary school teachers.

e |f CPS and/or the State of Illinois put an end to whole-school transformation
interventions entirely, we would need to reassess our entire organization and
model.

We mitigate this risk as follows:
e Regular dialogue with CPS decision-makers at ONS and the office of the CEO to
help ensure that our plans for Turnaround school management capacity stay

aligned with CPS’s plans to use the Turnaround school model for reform of failing
schools.

Academy for Urban School Leadership — July 2009 29



e Investments in PR and community outreach initiatives to help the media
understand our story and to help organize and support the parent and community
voices that support what we do, to help reduce the risk that organized opposition
to the Turnaround model will prevail.

e Contingency placement plans and a flexible contract for our residents. We do
not commit to our residents that they are guaranteed to get positions at new
Turnaround schools. We do, however, require even residents who are not
selected for AUSL schools to repay the investment that CPS and AUSL make in
their development by teaching in a high-needs Chicago public or charter school,
and we assist them in finding positions.

Insufficient non-CPS funding to keep up with our capacity for growth. With
President Obama and Secretary Duncan in Washington, we hope for and expect
significant federal funding for our innovative model for preparing teachers for high-need
schools. If federal funding does not come through as expected, we may need to slow
our growth plans and/or increase the share of our support coming from CPS; we do not
think it is reasonable to expect that our support from philanthropy will increase
significantly from its current level of $6 million to $7 million annually.
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ACADEMY FOR URBAN SCHOOL LEADERSHIP (AUSL)
Invited Operator Proposal for 2010 Turnaround Schools
July 15, 2009

TARGETED SUBMISSIONS

1. As part of the Invited evaluation process, ONS seeks insight on current schools’
performance and data-driven improvements. How are your interim assessments
indicating student progress towards the organization’s performance goals, and what are
you learning from the use of the Linkit system? What is the predictability between
interim and summative assessments? What is the organization’s process to address
performance below the target at the student, classroom, and school level?

Building capacity for data-driven instruction has been a critical priority for the AUSL
network all along. We have now completed (in Math, for all network elementary schools)
a full program involving the development and use of standards-based curriculum and
pacing guides, frequent assessments, and a user-friendly technology tool for making
results transparent to teachers, schools, and the network. Work is continuing to
complete and extend our capacity to do this to other content areas, and to all of our
elementary and high schools.

The regular, frequent feedback on teacher and school effectiveness has enabled us to
undertake a number of initiatives to accelerate student achievement growth. For
example:

e Re-teaching. AUSL believes that students can only demonstrate mastery on
summative assessments if their teachers are checking for student understanding
of standards on a frequent basis. Students who are below the achievement level
receive re-teaching. Coaches and team lead teachers have results meetings to
get to the quick answers regarding what standards are immediately re-teachable.
Typically, students who fall between 50% and 70% on a standard are poised in a
position to receive re-teaching and reassessment in the hopes of demonstrating
mastery in another check for understanding within a week or two of re-teaching.

o Feedback to teachers to improve their effectiveness. Because students can
be categorized by missed standards, teachers can differentiate quite easily
based on the Linklt! data. Frequent, accessible, and detailed formative data for
elementary classroom teachers gives teachers real-time feedback about the
effectiveness of their individual lessons and allows them to reteach strategically
several times a week so that student misconceptions are cleared up well in
advance of interim and summative assessments
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Increased teacher accountability for student progress. At the school level,
the schools are sharing data transparently by grade level and we’re working with
Linklt! to refine their system so that all teachers can see how each student is
progressing on all assessments and standards, to reinforce messages to
students that their growth matters.

Earlier action to address problems. At Chicago Academy High School, for
example, we have piloted on-line credit recovery, which we are investigating for
the other schools as well.

From using Linklt!,in our schools, we have also been able to make other discoveries less
directly related to individual students’ progress.

Teacher professional development and engagement. Much of the work to
develop CDAS assessments is done by our teachers, who receive hourly pay
for this extra work. We have been able to compare student performance of
students whose teachers who have participated in unpacking standards and
developing assessment items, versus the performance of students whose
teachers are not participating in the development of these tools. While certainly
many mitigating factors exist in contemplating this data, there appears to be
correlation, with the teachers who participated in the projects producing student
achievement greater than their colleagues’ students on the interim
assessments.

Refinement of assessment tools. We've undertaken some realignment of the
Interim assessments this year to help the assessments give teachers more
direct information regarding how their students achieved on the standards
embedded in the curriculum for the quarter. We anticipate (although it is still too
early as we have used Linklt! for only one summative assessment in February)
that we will see correlations between performance on Interim assessments,
teachers’ abilities to re-teach skills, and student achievement.

Linkit! has allowed AUSL to collect assessment results from CDAS, NWEA/Interims, and
ISAT/EPAS in a single system, thus aiding analysis of patterns and trends. It is still too
early to confirm the predictive value of formative assessments, in part because Interim
assessments are designed to get progressively more difficult (so scores could decline
even as students progress) and because AUSL has been “tweaking” the assessments to
better align them with standards and curriculum in ways that could limit their
comparability over time.

For more information on how AUSL uses data to assess progress at the classroom and
school level, see pages 7, 8, 12, and 13.
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2. Please describe how the organization addresses school level requests for
programmatic flexibility versus creating centralized supports at scale (i.e. with curriculum
coaches with multiple math curriculums across campuses)?

As a network, AUSL is still small enough that our senior central program staff members
are close to what happens in our schools and can adapt our network programs and
processes in a nimble way. Also, our PASSAGE framework and performance
management dialogues provide high-level vision and guidance for what is expected and
non-negotiable, without micro-managing principals.

As we grow, we expect our schools to be more alike than different. Many of our schools
were either newly started or newly turned around by AUSL, so there are typically no
issues with “legacy” school cultures, curricula, etc. School leaders and teachers value
the resources and supports provided by the AUSL network and embedded AUSL
coaches and tutors, and are willing to accept the standardization that accompanies
them.

At the elementary school level, we are moving towards increased network-wide
standardization of the curriculum, with support from principals and teachers. Our
curriculum and pacing guides are standards-based, and do not draw from any single
textbook. However, standardization of all curricula is not an absolute requirement for our
approaches to work. For example, at Chicago Academy Elementary, which has a
“legacy” school culture and curriculum built up over its eight years of existence, AUSL
has made considerable progress in moving teachers and schools towards standards-
based curriculum while also allowing some choice in the teaching materials that are
used. This is especially true of literacy and science instruction, where schools are
expected to use CDAS to vertically and horizontally align their curriculum to IL
benchmarks while continuing to use their site-specific publisher materials or teacher-
prepared materials.

At the high school level, we also strongly believe that standards need to drive the
curriculum and not any one program, book, or series. When we initially brought the
history curriculum that was piloted at Chicago Academy High School to Orr Academy
High School, even though the curriculum was based in standards, we found that
teachers had a difficult time seeing past content that they were not personally interested
in teaching. For example, while one teacher at one school took joy in teaching current
events around war, another took joy in developing a unit around the environment. When
the content becomes flexible and the standards remain from school to school, teachers
become responsible for linking the standards to the skill and, therefore, creating relevant
and meaningful instruction for their students. The coaches at the high school level are
adept at coaching teachers around merging the chosen content for that school site with
the standards common across all schools. We are confident that teacher buy-in around
teaching standards through their chosen content will be a key lever to increase student
achievement.

There are also a few school-specific variations from the core AUSL curriculum. For
example, Orr Academy High School has Education To Careers programming, and
Abbott Skill-building, while Chicago Academy High School (smaller enrollment, different
student demographic) does not. Also, after-school curricular enhancement programs
are not uniform for every school; for example, a school with its own music teacher but no
art teacher would use AUSL curricular enhancement offerings more for art, and less for
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music. Principals have discretion on how they use a budgeted amount of funds
allocated to them for curricular enhancements. In an example from the elementary
schools, Chicago Academy Elementary provides pre-algebra for all of its eighth grade
students, Dodge and Tarkington place eighth grade students in either regular math or a
pre-algebra program, and other schools plan to offer pre-algebra in the future.

Finally, AUSL is able to accommodate different school calendars. Five of AUSL’s

elementary schools (Dodge, Harvard, Morton, NTA, and Sherman) will be on the Track E
calendar beginning in 2009-10. Other schools may adopt this in future years.
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3. Following the recent report by Access Living called “Renaissance 2010 and Students
with Disabilities,” Renaissance schools are under particular scrutiny regarding their
services to students with disabilities. Please provide an update on AUSL’s strategy for
providing services to students with special needs and its expected outcomes, especially
at the high school level.

Our schools are staffed with special education teachers in accordance with the needs of
their students. The table below, based on the latest data in the CPS CEO school reports
(2006-07), shows the percentage of students with IEPs in each of AUSL’s schools:

School IEP %, 2008-09
Chicago Academy HS 18%

Collins Academy HS 21%

Orr Academy HS 29%

Bethune* 9% (2006-07)
Chicago Academy Elementary | 11%

Dodge 9%

Dulles* 9% (2006-07)
Harvard 8%

Howe 12%

Johnson* 13%

Morton 14%

National Teachers Academy 14%

Sherman 9%
Tarkington 11%

* Not under AUSL management in 2008-09.

As CPS Performance schools, AUSL schools are subject to the same compliance
requirements, and have access to the same centralized OSS resources, as other CPS
schools. AUSL high schools take advantage of CPS’s school-to-career programs,
including ETC courses and counseling services for students with disabilities.

None of the schools profiled in the Access Living report were AUSL schools, and many
were not CPS performance schools. Nevertheless, we appreciate the concerns raised in
the report and we are committed to support all of our students. Each school has begun
the process of School Based Problem Solving to identify students with special needs
and to provide additional help for struggling students.

In addition to CPS requirements and resources, we have also added some AUSL-
specific features to help us to identify and support students with special needs. Some
examples of initiatives in our high schools, where the special education populations are
large, include:

¢ In AUSL high schools, all entering students (and all students for new turnaround
schools) will be assessed at the beginning of the school year using the NWEA
assessment. Since many students arrive with skills well below high school grade
level, this initial assessment of elementary-level skills will help us place all students
in the right classes.
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High school special education teachers are members of the content-area teams in
their schools.

AUSL has created a new position, a full-time Special Education Coach, who will
support Orr Academy High School beginning in the 2009-10 school year.

At Chicago Academy High School and Collins, we will begin in 2009-10 to offer pull-
out classes for some students with severe needs. Orr Academy High School has
had this in place, but smaller CAHS and Collins have not until now.

With support from National-Louis University, we have arranged for all of our
residents getting their M.A.T. through our program to elect course work for either a
Middle Grades endorsement or an LBS 1 certification to be completed during their
residency training year. Thirteen of our 29 residents in the current class elected the
special education track and will have this important training and credential.
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4. What are the organization’s most important lessons learned from the Orr experience?
How are you addressing unforeseen challenges, institutionalizing successes, and how
will this knowledge drive improvement in future high school Turnarounds?

Orr’s results. We are pleased with Orr’s preliminary results as its first year ends. We
do not yet have student achievement results data for 2008-09; see Exhibit 7 for the
academic goals we have set for the school and for each class. However, interim
assessment results improved between October and March, 95 percent of juniors took
the PSAE, and 76 percent of Orr's graduating class of 2009 have been accepted to
college, earning over $1 million in scholarships (across 150+ college-accepted seniors).
Orr’s results for student and teacher attendance and for student misconducts (Exhibit 8)
are all meaningfully improved between 2007-08 and 2008-09, and on all metrics Orr is
outperforming the two “control schools” (Crane and Marshall) that we monitor as points
of comparison.

Successes. Some of the factors that we credit for this good start are:

e Pipeline of teachers from AUSL’s residency program. Orr's 2008-09 staff of
80+ core classroom teachers included 18 AUSL-trained teachers. All of them
have been retained at Orr for 2009-10, and we are adding six more from the
Class of 2009. They have been successful beginning teachers and have
stepped up as leaders in the school.

e Systems, structures, and tools borrowed from many other AUSL network
schools. Through regular dialogue and the PASSAGE framework, principals
across the AUSL network learn from one another’s experiences. Orr has
adopted proven systems, structures, and tools from Chicago Academy HS (e.qg.,
bell schedule, Learner’s Life, Small Learning Communities). AUSL’s elementary
schools have been the model for many other approaches: for example, Orr will
pilot CDAS standards-based assessments beginning in 2008-09; and Orr
teachers and coaches use AUSL’s Linkit! system for collecting and reporting
interim assessment results at the student, classroom, school, and network level.
AUSL'’s centralized school performance reporting supports regular “dashboard
discussions” in which the school’s administrative team and AUSL’s Managing
Director review results and develop plans.

e Coaches. Orr has a team of 4.3 FTEs of embedded AUSL coaches, and will add
a sped coach in 2009-10. This team reports to AUSL'’s Director of Curriculum
and Assessment for high schools. These resources have been hugely valuable
in supporting and developing teachers and in supporting data-driven instruction
cycles and in obtaining resources for teachers, freeing up administrators to focus
on the heavy Year 1 Turnaround school demands for attention to school culture
and climate and to the design and implementation of new school-wide systems,
structures, policies, and management processes.

o Data dialogues after interim assessments. Each quarter, a 3-hour meeting of
Orr’s principal, APs, all coaches, and AUSL home office’s Curriculum and
Assessment Director and Managing Director was held to review interim
assessment results across the entire school and develop recommendations for
interventions. Peter Goddard and his colleagues from CPS’s Office of
Performance Management observed one such meeting in May 2009.

e Facility. Orr's ESP team has done an outstanding job of keeping the facility
nurturing, hospitable, orderly, and well-kept. This has contributed significantly to
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the important Year 1 Turnaround school priority of establishing a positive school
culture and climate. In this respect, Orr is a model for other high schools in the
AUSL network.

o Expanded after-school curricular enhancement programs. Orr has 75 after-
school programs in arts, athletics, leadership, and academic support and
enrichment, many of which are new this year. Fifty percent of Orr’s students are
enrolled/engaged in academic and/or social after-school activities.

“Lessons learned.” A few unforeseen challenges/opportunities taught us important
lessons from this experience that we will take to future high school turnaround schools
are:

o Appreciate the challenge of, and ensure leadership capacity for, designing and
implementing the many non-instructional systems and structures needed in a
high school. In this respect a Turnaround school is like a new start school,
except harder because the students need to un-learn old ways and because the
school is full from the start, not building up one grade at a time.

e Appreciate the difficulty of recruiting the entire teaching staff in one year. Finding
80+ highly qualified teachers plus nearly 50 ESPs is overwhelming for any
principal. The Orr experience has reinforced the value of the pipeline of talent
from AUSL’'s UTR. We made a few mistakes with the many non-AUSL staff we
hired for Orr, which we are correcting, and we are increasing our capacity for
home office support for high school hiring to give future principals more support.

e Embedded AUSL coaches have been extremely valuable. Orr’s five AUSL
coaches were able to support the teachers while the administrators dealt with
other pressing matters. Orr’'s administrators have the skills to be instructional
leaders, but in Year 1 of a turnaround they did not have the time.

Year 2 agenda. We did not expect Orr’s turnaround to be fully accomplished in one
year, and it is still a work in progress. The near-term agenda includes continuing
attention to culture/climate and management processes, but also increased emphasis on
strengthening the instructional capacity of our teachers.

e Codifying management and operational processes. In Year 1 at a
Turnaround school, dozens of non-academic processes and policies need to be
reviewed and adapted to the new school’s requirements: attendance, lunch
forms, safety and security, backup coverage for staff absences, counseling
department, etc. Orr continues to work on these, and has hired a new Director of
Performance Management as a senior member of the administrative team to
focus on this agenda. Also, AUSL and CPS have jointly engaged McKinsey &
Company to perform pro bono work during the summer of 2009, using Orr as a
pilot for redesigned systems and structures for managing student attendance.

e Developing more capacity to address high levels of student mobility. Orr,
like many high-poverty Turnaround schools, has high turnover in its student
population. Mobility for 2007-08 was more than 40 percent on average for the 3
pre-AUSL schools. In 2009-10, Orr will launch a “welcome center” for new
arrivals. Each new arrival will spend a full day getting an orientation to the
school, taking NWEA diagnostic tests in Reading and Math, having his/her
transcript carefully reviewed, and getting an introduction to the school’s policies
and norms about dress, conduct, Learner’s Life, etc.
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e CDAS pilot. In 2009-10, Orr will be launching the development of high school-
level data-driven instruction tools and protocols modeled after the standards-
based, LInkit!-supported Classroom Diagnostic and Assessment System used in
AUSL elementary schools. These will give teachers and coaches formative
assessment results every few weeks, shortening the teach-test-reteach cycle and
complementing quarterly interim assessments.

e Staff changes. Orr filled close to 100 teacher positions all in the same season,
and some of them have not proven to be good fits. Ten PAT teachers have not
been renewed for 2009-10 (none of these were AUSL graduates), and one other
teacher was terminated. As of early July 2009, all but 3 special education
positions for 2009-10 are now filled

e Teacher professional development. Along with all AUSL network schools, Orr
will be launching a teacher professional development initiative designed to use
the Danielson framework to assess teacher performance, accompanied by PD
and coaching related to AUSL Signature Strategies for classroom management
and instruction.

e Orras an AUSL Training academy in Year 2. Beginning in 2009-10, Orr will
become a Training academy for AUSL Residents. This will help AUSL to
accelerate the development of our capacity to prepare teachers for future
Turnaround high schools. By adding Orr as a training site in 2009-10, we start
now to ramp up capacity for training more secondary residents.

Institutionalizing successes. AUSL has operated Training academies since 2002-03
and Turnaround schools since 2006-07. As of the end of 2008-09 we have accumulated
27 school years’ worth of experience managing elementary schools plus eight school
years’ worth of experience managing high schools. Our PASSAGE framework, strong
capacity and skills from AUSL's central program staff, and our accumulated experiences
have equipped us to continue to add value to all of the schools we manage for CPS.

Orr has benefited from the experiences of all of its predecessor AUSL network schools
(elementary and secondary), as well as from AUSL home office resources, performance
management dialogues, and the talent pipeline and professional development leadership
capacity associated with AUSL’s Urban Teacher Residency program. Specific lessons
from Orr’s first year are significant, but are only part of the accumulated institutional
knowledge that AUSL brings to future Turnaround schools.
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5. What are the risks to the quality of your teacher pipeline associated with your growth
plan, and how will you address these risks?

See responses to the Targeted Submissions sub-questions below, which focus on
teacher retention and recruitment. AUSL will also address the effectiveness of all
continuing teachers in our schools through new teacher assessment and professional
development tools. For example:

e Charlotte Danielson’s Framework for Teaching will provide the rubric for regular
diagnostic assessments, and will help us “raise the bar” by communicating high
expectations for the specific knowledge and skills teachers need.

e Based on development needs identified using the Danielson tool, AUSL’s own
coaches and UTR program staff will deliver targeted PD to help teachers learn
and practice proven “Signature Strategies” for Instruction and Classroom
Management. These diagnostic and PD supports will be available to all teachers
in our schools, not just to residents and new teachers.

See pages 22-23 for more on these strategies to improve our teacher quality.
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Specifically:
e What is the retention rate of teachers across the portfolio of schools?

A study published recently by the Consortium for Chicago School Research at the
University of Chicago reported that the average teacher turnover rate across CPS
schools was 20 percent (percent of teachers who were not at the same school after 1
year). The table below shows AUSL’s record on that metric for the percent of teachers
who were teaching in 2008-09 and who, according to their principals as of June 25, will
not be returning in 2009-10.

2008-09 to 2009-10 turnover of teachers at AUSL

schools
7/9/2009
Total %

2008-09 Not turnover % turnover

regular returning # we're (total of teachers

teachers in 2009-  disappointed departures we're

excl AP, 10, per to be losing, as % of  disappointed

prin principal  per principal base) to lose

CAHS 33 0 0 0% 0%
Collins 12 8 2 67% 17%
Orr 96 11 0 11% 0%
HS total 141 19 2 13% 1%
CA elem 29 2 1 7% 3%
Dodge 31 5 2 16% 6%
Harvard 28 1 0 4% 0%
Howe 28 5 2 18% 7%
Morton 17 6 1 35% 6%
NTA 28 4 1 14% 4%
Sherman 30 3 3 10% 10%
Tarkington 55 4 4 7% 7%
Elem total 217 28 13 13% 6%

Sources: Oracle pull for teacher lists (March 2009).
Principals self-reports at summit re non-returning and reasons.
Note: 1 at NTA, 1 at TCA departed due to budget cuts, departures included above.

All AUSL schools except Collins and Morton have teacher retention that is better than
the CPS average. Morton's overall performance has been disappointing in Year 1 of its
turnaround, and our decisions to change five of its 17 teachers (plus the school’s
principal and AP) are part of our strategy to redirect the school. Teacher turnover at
Collins, a relatively small AUSL new start school, has also been disappointing this year.
We will seek to get Collins’ capacity to train new teachers back up to a satisfactory level
as soon as possible.
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e What is the current pipeline of elementary and high school teachers from the
AUSL teacher training institute?

The pipeline of teachers from AUSL'’s Urban Teacher Residency program has been
critical at Orr. We wish there could have been even more; these teachers performed
well in their classrooms and were leaders in the school. See AUSL'’s 2008 elementary
proposal, pages 9 and 10, for a description of our program.

AUSL'’s UTR Class of 2010 has already started their pre-residency summer training.
The Class of 2010 has 43 elementary residents and 29 secondary residents. A few key
facts about the class:

e 12 residents already have their initial Illinois teaching certificate, and have
chosen our program for the extra apprenticeship and mentoring to become
“turnaround-ready.” They will obtain an M.Ed from UIC.

¢ One resident will obtain her Master’s degree and Type 04 Early Childhood
certificate through the Erikson Institute, AUSL’s newest university partner.

o All of the 60 National-Louis University residents will earn either a Middle Grades
endorsement or an LBS 1 special education endorsement in addition to their
M.A.T. and initial teaching certificate. 20 of the elementary residents and 13 of
the secondary residents have elected the special education track.

e 32 percent of the residents are men.

e 39 percent of the residents are non-white (28 percent are African-American)

e Every resident has signed a contract committing to teach in a CPS high-needs
school selected by AUSL for four years following their completion of our program.

e What is best practice for the ratio of AUSL trained vs. non AUSL trained teachers
in Turnaround elementary and high schools?

AUSL Turnaround elementary school principals are expected to select at least 50
percent of their core classroom teachers from graduates of the AUSL residency
program, and in 2008 and 2009 these targets were met or exceeded.

While we are still ramping up capacity to recruit and train high school residents, our
ultimate aspiration is that in a few years our new Turnaround high schools will be able to
fill about half of their core classroom teaching positions with AUSL graduates too. For
2010, and depending on the size of the school, the cohort could be 15 to 30 percent of
the school’s teachers. Orr Academy High School had 18 AUSL-trained teachers in
2008-09 and will add 6 more in 2009-10 (of a total teacher population of 80+, including
special education).

Our 5-year plan calls for no growth in the number of elementary residents we train, but
considerable growth in the number of secondary residents. Our capacity in the near
term is constrained in part by recruitment, and in part by the number of experienced
secondary teachers we have available to be mentors, especially in light of a few key
teaching staff departures at Collins. We are working to increase our capacity:

Academy for Urban School Leadership — July 2009 42



e We are exploring new approaches to expand the number of secondary residents
who apply to our program, especially in high-needs content areas like Math and
Science.

e We have decided to have Orr Academy High School be an AUSL Training
Academy for 2009-10, somewhat earlier than expected for a new Turnaround
school.

e Our recruitment of teachers to fill open positions at Collins includes assessment
of candidates based on their potential to become AUSL mentor teachers.

e The Director of our UTR program is developing optional PD and other resources
available to encourage strong-performing secondary teachers who are not
already AUSL mentors to put themselves forward to be considered for the
opportunity to perform the mentor role in a future school year.

e What is the pipeline for the support roles like coaches, social workers, etc.? How
are these employees integrated into the AUSL model?

Most support roles (counselors, social workers, special education teachers, deans, etc.)
are employed by principals as CPS employees, using resources from the principal’s
budget. AUSL’s central program staff employs two people who work year round to
cultivate sources, advertise, and screen talent for all school-based positions (including
AUSL coaches and tutors), including specialized support personnel.

Turnaround schools also have “embedded” AUSL employees, who are employees of
AUSL (not CPS) and who sometimes serve multiple schools. These include:

e Elementary Turnaround Coaches (on average about 1 per school, although they
are typically deployed to serve a grade level cluster of teachers across a couple
of schools). See the business plan pages 22-23 for more information about how
these coaches support teacher effectiveness.

e Elementary Tutors (1 per school, supplemented with part-time tutors hired by the
principal). See page 14 describing their work with our Power of 5 program.

AUSL only needs to recruit a few such people each year, and we have had a good
pipeline of candidates including former teachers and even principals. We modified our
employee benefits package to make it more competitive relative to CPS’s benefits. We
also have some talented individuals in these roles who want to work in Chicago, but who
do not live in the city and are thus not eligible for CPS employment.

e Do teacher and principal staffing plans include any movement from existing
AUSL schools (or the district)? What are the corresponding succession plans to
ensure that there is a net increase in the number of teachers and leaders?

All of the AUSL program graduates are net new teachers to the district via AUSL'’s
program. AUSL'’s 7 graduating classes have produced 312 new teachers. Of the 242
graduates of the classes of 2003 through 2008, 80 percent were classroom teachers
with CPS in 2008-09. Two Class of 2003 graduates, Andre Cowling (Harvard) and
Edward Morris (Dodge), are now AUSL principals.
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We have not compiled the data on the prior employment of non-AUSL teachers and staff
recruited for Turnaround schools. They include a mix of talent from charter schools,
other CPS schools, and teachers new to lllinois.

AUSL principals include many who are new to the district; however, some principals
have come to AUSL schools from other CPS schools. We choose the best people from
the pool of applicants. One of the three 2009 Turnaround principals came from another
CPS school, the other two from outside the district.

Academy for Urban School Leadership — July 2009 44



6. What efficiencies have resulted from clustering of feeder elementary and high school
Turnarounds, and what have been the benefits of geographically proximate schools on
student performance?

Clustering AUSL schools is “nice to have” but is not central to AUSL'’s effectiveness or
our operating model. Decision-making, policies and accountability are at the level of
individual schools, and at the level of all elementary (or secondary) schools in the
network. Membership in a geographically clustered network- within-the-AUSL-network is
not a key element of the AUSL model.

Nevertheless, there are some advantages to having AUSL-operated schools clustered in
one or a few contiguous communities. Some of the benefits:

Elementary schools: Schools in the same general area turned around the same year
can plan to share staff when they hire teachers. For example, Bethune and Johnson are
sharing both an Art teacher and a Music teacher, with each person at 0.5 on each of the
school’s budgets. Also, beginning in 2009-10 AUSL'’s elementary coaches will be
specialized by grade level cluster to support two nearby schools, rather than having a
coach dedicated to a single site.

High schools: A potential benefit of having AUSL elementary schools close to an
AUSL high school would be the opportunity for AUSL high schools to enroll a significant
number of students who were prepared in AUSL elementary schools. But because
schools to be reconstituted are selected based on their historically poor performance,
not their proximity to other schools in the AUSL network, we don’t count on AUSL-
operated feeder elementary schools when we accept a new Turnaround high school.
We would like to have an AUSL high school on the South Side, to be available for its
neighborhood as well as to be part of a K-12 cluster including Sherman, Harvard, Dulles,
and prospective new Turnaround elementary schools in the area.

All schools: Having multiple, successful AUSL-operated schools in a community helps
AUSL become better known, which could help mitigate the initial resistance from some
communities when new Turnaround schools are announced. Also, proximity can
facilitate certain community partnerships to bring resources into the schools. As an
example, UCAN is providing grant-funded social-emotional wraparound services to our
students at Bethune School of Excellence, Johnson School of Excellence, and Collins
Academy High School.
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